
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE:  July 5, 2023 
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 
 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 

 
PAGE:         AGENDA ITEMS 
 
  1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE 

  
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 

Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon. 
 

(b) The Homeless Prevention Advisory Council will be meeting on July 12, 2023 from 12:00 pm to 1:30 
pm located in the first floor conference room at 182 SW Academy St, Dallas Oregon, 97338. 
 

 
 

  3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes) 

  4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM June 28, 2023 

  6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
        

(a) Polk County Contract No. 23-125, Service Contract 
(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 

   (b)   Polk County Contract No. 23-126, Service Contract 
    (Rosana Warren, Public Health) 
 
   (c)   FY2023 Forest Service Payments to States 
    Election to receive and allocate payment 
    (Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer)  
 
   (d)   Polk County Contract No. 23-127, Service Contract 
    (Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 
   (e)  Polk County Contract No. 23-128, Service Contract 
    (Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 
   (f)  Polk County Order No. 23-09, Solid Waste Rate Increase 
    (Austin McGuigan, Community Development Director) 
  
   (g)  Polk County Contract No. 23-129, Service Contract 
    (Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 

(i)   Polk County Contract No. 23-130, Service Contract 
 (Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 

 
   (j)  Polk County Contract No. 23-131, Service Contract 
    (Rosana Warren, Public Health) 
 
   (k)  Polk County Contract No. 23-132, Service Contract 
    (Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 
   (l)  Polk County Contract No. 23-133 (Amendment 1 to Contract No. 23-25, Rede Group 
    (Rosana Warren, Public Health) 
 



POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

   (m)  Polk County Contract No. 23-135, Service Contract 
    (Rosana Warren, Public Health) 
 

                              THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 
 
  ADJOURNMENT 

    
    
 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES June 28, 2023  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Pope declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Mordhorst was present and Commissioner Gordon was present via 
Zoom. 
 
Staff present: Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer 
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 
A public meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners will be held on June 28, 2023, at 9:00 
A.M. in the Polk County Courthouse. The purpose of this meeting is to discuss the budget for the 
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 as approved by the Polk County Budget Committee. A copy of the 
budget may be inspected or obtained at the Board of Commissioners office, Polk County Courthouse, 
between the hours of 8:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M.  This budget is for an annual budget period and is 
prepared on a basis of accounting that is consistent with the preceding year. 
 
A public meeting of the Polk County 4-H, Master Gardener, Agriculture, Forestry, Extension District 
will be held on June 28, 2023 at 10:00 am at Polk County Courthouse Conference Room, Dallas, 
Oregon. The purpose of this meeting is to discuss the budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2023 as approved by the Polk County 4-H, Master Gardener, Agriculture, Forestry, Extension District 
Budget Committee. A copy of the budget may be inspected or obtained at the Board of 
Commissioners Office, Polk County Courthouse, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. This 
budget is for an annual budget period. This budget was prepared on a basis of accounting that is the 
same used the preceding year. 
 

 
3. COMMENTS 
 None. 
 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.  
 
5.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING OF June 21, 2023 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF June 21, 2023. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
 
 



June 28, 2023 
Page 2 

 

  

6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
7. RESOLUTION 23-08, ADOPTION OF THE FY2023-2023 BUDGET 
 Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer, presented to the Board Resolution No. 23-08 in the matter 

of the Polk County Budget, appropriation of funds and imposing taxes for the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2023 as well a memorandum that went over his recommendation and 
background information. Mr. Hansen is recommending that the Board of Commissioner adopt 
Resolution No. 23-08. The Resolution for consideration has total appropriations in the amount 
of $128,417,550 The permanent property tax rate being considered in the Resolution is 
$1.716/$I,000 which is the permanent rate established by the Department of Revenue for Polk 
County. The amount for the Public Safety operating levy is $0.495/$1,000 which was approved 
in the May 2023 election. Total budget for Polk County is $128,417,550. This is an approximate 
5.79% increase over last year's adopted budget. The major reasons for this increase are 
additional monies in the Health Services Fund, Behavioral Health Fund, and Public Works Fund. 

 
MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON 

SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE FY2023-2024 BUDGET AND ADOPT 
RESOLUTION NO. 23-08. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
8. GENERAL LIABILITY/PROPERTY INSURANCE FY2023-2024 
 Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer, presented to the Board a memorandum that recommends 

the Board approve the following for General Liability/Property Insurances for FY23-24: 
 
 1. Purchase General Liability insurance in the amount of $773,959.71 less a deductible of -

$333,848.00 and multi-line credit -$22,005.59 for a net of $418,106.13 (Option CLiability 
Retro Financing Plan). 

 2. Purchase Automobile Liability insurance in the amount of $57,627.28. 
 3. Purchase Auto Physical Damage in the amount of $42,236.58. 
 4. Purchase Property/Boiler insurance from CCIS in the amount of $181,490.67 for buildings 

and contents. 
 5. Purchase the optional Crime Coverage in the amount of $2,688. 
 6. Purchase Cyber Security Coverage and Excess Coverage $32,025 
 7. Utilize the multi-line of credit. All coverages (#2, #3, and #4) include the multi-line of credit. 
 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON 
SECONDED, TO PURCHASE LIABILITY AND PROPERTY INSURANCE 
POLICIES FOR FY2023-2024. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
9. WORKERS COMPENSATION INSURANCE FY2023-2023 
 Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer, presented a memorandum to the Board that went over his 

recommendation on which workers compensation insurance Polk County should use. Mr. 
Hansen is recommending that the Board select SAIF as its workers compensation insurance 
carrier and select a fixed plan in the amount of $267,416.61. 

   
 MOTION:  COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST 

SECONDED, TO SELECT SAIF AS POLK COUNTY’S WORKERS 



June 28, 2023 
Page 3 

 

  

COMPENSATIONS INSURANCE CARRIER WITH THE FIXED PLAN OF 
$267,416.61. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 

 
  
 
 
The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

a) Polk County Contract No. 23-105(Amendment 2 to Contract No. 19-50, 
Oregon Healthy Authority 
(Rosana Warren, Public Health) 
 

b) Polk County Contract No. 23-109, Oregon Health Authority 
(Rosana Warren, Public Health) 

 

There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Pope adjourned the meeting 
at 9:17 a.m. 
 

 

  
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Jeremy Gordon, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Craig Pope, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: July 5, 2023 



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Behavioral Health  Consent Calendar Date:  July 05, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Whitney Sherer 

 Address:  6705 Redstone Street SE 

 City, State, Zip:  Turner, OR 97392 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 01, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  Varies 

 Background: 

 Whitney Sherer has agreed to provide Behavioral Health services to referred Polk County Behavioral 
 Health individuals. 

 Discussion: 

 This contract is a continuation of services Whitney Sherer has been providing Polk County 
 individuals in the past fiscal years. Whitney Sherer meets the criteria for a service provider and has 
 been cleared to work with us through a criminal history records review. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Behavioral Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
 contract. The fiscal year 2023-2024 Mental Health Outpatient budget was prepared in anticipation 
 of this agreement. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Whitney Sherer. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  06/23/23 

 CONTRACTOR  WHITNEY SHERER 
 6705 REDSTONE STREET SE 
 TURNER, OR 97392 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 CONTACT PERSON:  WHITNEY SHERER 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide Behavioral Health Clinical services as outlined in 
 Exhibit B. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM JULY 01, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2024 

 BUDGET LINE #:  240-8540-540-M20

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  VARIES 

 TERMS:  Service Rates per Exhibit B 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 23-125



 AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

 POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 a poli�cal subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereina�er referred to as "County" and 

 WHITNEY SHERER 
 6705 REDSTONE STREET SE 

 TURNER, OR 97392 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 hereina�er referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  is  authorized  to  obtain,  by  contract,  the  services  necessary  to  conduct  its 
 opera�on; and 

 WHEREAS,  Contractor  has  available,  or  can  obtain,  the  necessary  licenses  or  cer�ficates 
 required for the performance of said services; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  par�es  above-men�oned,  for  and 
 in considera�on of the mutual promises hereina�er stated as follows: 

 SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A.  The  County  is  desirous  of  securing  the  services  of  the  Contractor  to  perform  services 
 more  specifically  outlined  in  Exhibit  B:  Statement  of  Work,  based  on  Contractor’s 
 specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

 B.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  authorized  services  to  Polk  County  referrals  at  Contractor’s 
 facili�es,  Polk  County  Buildings  on  space  available  basis,  and/or  consumer’s  school 
 facility,  work  loca�on,  or  home  depending  upon  the  needs  of  the  individual.  Depending 
 on  the  nature  of  services  provided,  the  loca�on  of  services  may  be  curtailed  by  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement of Work. 

 C.  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the  document  en�tled  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement  of  Work,  which  is  a�ached  and  by  reference  herein,  made  an  integral  part  of 
 this Agreement. 

 1 



 SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

 A.  As  considera�on  for  the  services  provided  by  the  Contractor  during  the  period  beginning 
 July  1,  2023,  and  ending  June  30,  2024,  payment  shall  be  retroac�ve  for  approved 
 services  provided  to  Polk  County  referrals  on  or  a�er  the  period  beginning  date.  Any 
 renewals  and/or  changes  to  this  agreement  must  be  submi�ed  in  wri�ng,  in  the  form  of 
 an amendment to this Contract and signed by both Par�es. 

 B.  Agreement  is  effec�ve  upon  the  signature  of  all  par�es.  It  is  understood  by  both  par�es 
 that  no  commitments  have  been  or  are  made  by  either  party  beyond  the  termina�on  of 
 the Agreement. 

 C.  The  County  will  pay  to  the  Contractor,  by  check(s)  or  ACH  direct  payment  upon  receipt  of 
 an  authorized  billing  document  at  the  rates  outlined  in  Exhibit  B  and  as  approved  by  Polk 
 County.  Billings  shall  be  submi�ed  to  HS  Fiscal  either  electronically  to 
 hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us  or  by  mail  to  Polk  County  Health  Services  Business  Services 
 Department,  182  SW  Academy  Street  Suite  204,  Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  County  shall 
 endeavor  remit  payment  within  2-3  weeks  of  receipt  of  appropriate  billing,  suppor�ng 
 documenta�on and signed invoice. 

 D.  It  is  agreed  that  Contractor  shall  accept  payment  from  Polk  County  as  full  and  total 
 payment  for  services  and  that  Contractor  shall  not  bill  any  Polk  County  clients  (or  their 
 insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

 E.  Contractor  is  engaged  hereby  as  an  independent  contrac tor,  and  the  services  to  be 
 rendered  are  those  of  an  independent  contractor,  subject  to  ORS  Chapter  656,  and  will 
 be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

 i.  Contractor  will  be  solely  responsible  for  payment  of  any  Federal  or  State  taxes 
 required as a result of this Agreement. 

 ii.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  to  en�tle  Contractor  to  any  benefits  generally 
 granted  to  County  employees.  Without  limita�on,  but  by  way  of  illustra�on,  the 
 benefits  which  are  not  intended  to  be  extended  by  this  Agreement  to  the  Contractor 
 are  vaca�on,  holiday  and  sick  leave,  other  leaves  with  pay,  tenure,  medical  and 
 dental  coverage,  life  and  disability  insurance,  over�me,  Social  Security,  workers' 
 compensa�on, unemployment compensa�on or re�rement benefits . 

 iii.  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  for  purposes  of  the  Oregon  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  Law  (ORS  Chapter  656)  and  is  solely  liable  for  any  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  coverage  under  this  Agreement.  If  the  Contractor  has  the  assistance 

 2 



 of  other  persons  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  qualify 
 and  remain  qualified  for  the  term  of  this  Agreement  as  a  direct  responsibility 
 employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib u�ng employer under ORS 656.411. 

 F.  Exhibit  A  –  Business  Associate  Agreement  a�ached  hereto  is  by  this  reference 
 incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

 SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 A.  Extent  of  Agreement:  This  Agreement  contains  all  the  terms  and  condi�ons  agreed  upon 
 by  the  par�es.  No  other  understandings,  oral  or  otherwise,  regarding  the  subject  ma�er 
 of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the par�es hereto. 

 B.  Cap�ons:  The  cap�ons  or  headings  in  this  Agreement  are  for  convenience  only  and  in  no 
 way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 C.  Payment  as  Sole  Monetary  Obliga�on  of  the  County:  The  Contractor  is  engaged  as  an 
 independent  contractor.  Payment  as  provided  herein  shall  be  the  sole  monetary 
 obliga �on  of  the  County.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  responsi bility  for  payment  of 
 all  opera�ng  costs,  Federal,  State,  County  or  city  taxes/assessments  and  any  other 
 charges  imposed  by  law  upon  employers  shall  be  the  sole  responsibility  of  the 
 Contractor. 

 D.  Licensing  and  Program  Standards:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with  all  applicable 
 State,  County,  and  municipal  standards  for  licensing,  and  any  other  standards  or  criteria 
 described in this Agreement and its a�achments. 

 E.  Contractor-client  Rela�onship:  The  Contractor  will  establish  a  system  through  which  a 
 client  and/or  the  client’s  parents  or  guardian  may  represent  grievances  about  the 
 opera�on  of  the  Contractor’s  service  program.  At  the  �me  arrangements  are  made  for 
 the  Contractor’s  service,  the  Contractor  will  advise  the  child  and  parents  or  guardian  of 
 the provision.  The Contractor shall no�fy the County of all unresolved grievances. 

 F.  Safeguarding of Client Informa�on: 

 i.  The  use  or  disclosure  by  any  party  of  any  informa�on  concern ing  a  recipient  of 
 services  purchased  under  this  Agreement,  for  any  purpose  not  directly  connected 
 with  the  administra �on  of  the  County's  or  the  Contractor's  responsibili�es  with 
 respect  to  such  purchased  services,  is  prohibited,  except  on  wri�en  consent  of  the 
 County,  or  if  the  County  is  not  the  recipient,  on  wri�en  consent  of  the  recipient  or 
 a�orney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 3 



 ii.  For  the  purposes  of  safeguarding  protected  client  informa�on,  Contractor  agrees  to 
 abide  by  all  County  rules  and  regula�ons  regarding  Communica�on  technology  as 
 documented  in  the  County’s  Communica�ons  Technology  Policy.  Contractors 
 providing  services  from  a  County  facility  will  be  provided  appropriate  County 
 equipment  to  perform  its  du�es  under  this  agreement.  To  the  extent  that  Contractor 
 elects  to  use  their  own  technology  (computer,  cellular  phone,  etc…)  Contractor 
 warrants  that  such  equipment  shall  be  compliant  with  County  rules  and  regula�ons, 
 and its obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 G.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  and  Rehabilita�on  Act  of  1973:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply 
 with  the  requirements  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  and  Sec�on  504  of  the 
 Rehabilita �on  Act  of  1973,  and  their  implemen�ng  Federal  regula�ons,  including 
 Execu�ve Order 11246 as amended. 

 H.  Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

 i.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to 
 assure  full  compliance  with  Federal  regula�ons  and  the  County’s  guidelines  on 
 allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

 ii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  maintain  fiscal  records  consistent  with  generally  accepted 
 accoun�ng  prac�ces  and  controls,  which  will  properly  reflect  all  direct  and  indirect 
 costs  and  funds  expended  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor 
 shall  make  these  records  available  at  reasonable  �mes  upon  request  to  State  and 
 Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

 iii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  collect  financial  sta�s�cs  on  a  regular  basis  and  to  make 
 financial reports at �mes in the form prescribed by the County. 

 I.  Program  Records,  Controls,  Reports,  and  Monitoring  Procedures:  The  Contractor  agrees 
 to  maintain  program  records  including  sta�s�cal  records,  and  to  provide  program 
 records  to  the  County  at  �mes  and  in  the  form  prescribed  by  the  County.  The  Contractor 
 agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to  assure  full  compliance 
 with  the  program  and  facili�es  review  (including  mee�ngs  with  consumers,  reviews  of 
 service  records,  review  of  policy  and  procedures,  review  of  staffing  ra�os  and  job 
 descrip�ons,  and  mee�ngs  with  any  staff  directly  of  indirectly  involved  in  the  provision 
 of  services)  may  be  conducted  at  any  reasonable  �me  by  State  and  Federal  personnel 
 and other persons authorized by the County. 

 J.  Reten�on  of  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  retain  all  books,  records,  and  other 
 documents  relevant  to  this  Agreement  for  three  (3)  years  a�er  final  payment  is  made 

 4 



 under  the  Agreement  or  all  pending  ma�ers  are  closed,  whichever  is  later.  If  li�ga�on  or 
 other  ac�on  involving  the  Agreement  is  started  before  the  end  of  the  three  (3)  year 
 period,  the  records  shall  be  retained  un�l  all  issues  arising  out  of  the  ac�on  are  resolved 
 or un�l the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

 K.  Insurance: 

 i.  Contractor  agrees  that  it  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  agent  of  the 
 County.  The  Contractor  and  the  County  shall  not  be  responsible  for  any  legal  liability, 
 loss,  malprac�ce,  damages,  costs  and  expenses  arising  in  favor  of  any  person  on 
 account  of  personal  injuries,  death  or  property  loss  or  damage  occurring,  growing 
 out  of,  incident  to  or  resul�ng  directly  or  indirectly  from  the  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 other party under this Agreement. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  obtain,  and  at  all  �mes  keep  in  effect,  comprehensive  liability 
 insurance  and  property  damage  insurance  covering  ac�vi�es,  opera�ons,  and 
 omissions  of  the  Contractor,  all  subcontractors,  and  all  named  addi�onal  insureds. 
 Contractor  may  sa�sfy  this  requirement  for  general  liability  insurance  in  any  manner 
 allowed  by  ORS  30.282.  Such  liability  insurance,  whatever  the  form,  shall  be  in  an 
 amount  not  less  than  one  million  dollars  ($1,000,000)  with  provision  for  increased 
 coverage  as  such  limits  are  increased  by  legisla�ve  ac�on.  In  the  event  of  unilateral 
 cancella�on  or  restric�on  by  the  insurance  company  of  the  Contractor's  insurance 
 policy  referred  to  in  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor  shall  immediately  no�fy  the 
 County verbally and in wri�ng. 

 iii.  As  evidence  of  the  insurance  coverage  required  by  this  Agreement,  and  prior  to  the 
 execu�on  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  a  Cer�ficate  of  Insurance  to 
 Polk  County,  to  Polk  County  Health  Services,  182  SW  Academy  Street,  Suite  204, 
 Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  Cer�ficate  form,  to  be  completed  by  the  Contractor's 
 insurer,  naming  Polk  County  as  addi�onal  insured,  will  be  maintained  in  the  County's 
 file of this Agreement. 

 iv.  There  shall  not  be  any  cancella�on,  material  changes  or  failure  to  renew  such 
 insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior no�ce to the County. 

 L.  Subcontrac�ng:  Unless  subcontrac�ng  is  authorized  elsewhere  in  the  Agree ment,  the 
 Contractor  shall  not  enter  into  any  subcontracts  for  any  of  the  work  contemplated  under 
 this  Agreement  without  obtaining  prior  wri�en  approval  from  the  County,  which 
 approval  shall  be  a�ached  to  the  original  Agreement.  Approval  by  the  County  of  a 
 subcontract  shall  not  result  in  any  obliga�ons  of  the  County  in  addi�on  to  the  agreed 
 rates  of  payment  and  total  considera�on.  Any  subcontracts  which  the  County  may 

 5 



 authorize  shall  contain  all  requirements  of  this  Agreement,  and  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 responsible  for  the  performance  of  the  subcontractor.  Contractor  may  subcon tract 
 medical  inves�gator's  du�es  so  long  as  the  sub contractor  possesses  medical 
 qualifica�ons equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

 M.  Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on:  Any  altera�ons,  varia�ons,  modifica�ons  to  or  waivers 
 of  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  valid  only  when  they  have  been  reduced  to 
 wri�ng,  duly  signed,  and  approved  by  the  Contractor  and  the  County  and  a�ached  to 
 the original of this Agreement. 

 N.  Excuses  for  Nonperformance:  Neither  party  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  held  responsible 
 for  delay  or  failure  in  performance  of  the  ac�vi�es  required  herein  when  such  delay  or 
 failure  is  due  to  causes  beyond  the  control  and  without  the  fault  or  negligence  of  the 
 party.  Such  causes  may  include,  but  are  not  restricted  to,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  strikes, 
 acts  of  God  or  the  public  enemy,  unusually  severe  weather,  legal  acts  of  public 
 authori�es,  or  delays  or  defaults  caused  by  public  carriers,  which  cannot  reasonably  be 
 forecast  or  provided  against.  Either  party  may  terminate  the  Agreement  a�er 
 reasonably  determining  that  such  delay  or  failure  will  prevent  con�nued  performance  of 
 the  Agreement,  and  a�er  giving  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  other  party  of  the  cause,  its  effect 
 on  Agreement  performance  and  effec �ve  date  of  termina�on.  If  the  Agreement  is  so 
 terminated,  the  obliga�on  of  the  County  shall  be  limited  to  payment  for  services 
 provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of termina�on. 

 O.  Remedies:  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  or  perform  any  of  the  other 
 requirements  under  the  Contract,  and  such  failure  is  not  excused  under  the  paragraph 
 �tled  "Excuses  for  Nonperformance",  the  County,  a�er  giving  the  Contractor  wri�en 
 no�ce  of  such  failure,  may  withhold  part  or  all  of  the  Contractor's  payment  for  the 
 services  un�l  such  failure  is  corrected.  If  the  Contractor  does  not  correct  such  failure 
 within  a  reasonable  �me  allowed  by  the  County,  the  County  may  terminate  the 
 Agreement  in  accordance  with  the  clause  �tled  "Termina�on."  However,  this  paragraph, 
 and  any  ac�ons  taken  or  not  taken  under  it,  shall  not  affect  the  County's  rights  under  the 
 "Termina�on" clause. 

 P.  Termina�on:  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  par�es  or 
 unilaterally  by  both  par�es  at  any  �me  upon  thirty  (30)  days’  no�ce  to  the  other  party 
 in  wri�ng  and  delivered  personally  or  by  Cer�fied  Mail.  The  County  may  also  unilaterally 
 terminate  this  Agreement  effec�ve  upon  delivery  of  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  Contrac tor,  or 
 at  such  later  date  as  may  be  established  by  the  County,  under  any  of  the  following 
 condi�ons: 

 6 



 i.  If  funds,  specifically  authorized  by  Legisla�ve  acts,  do  not  become  available  in 
 amounts  sufficient  to  allow  for  purchase  of  the  stated  quan�ty  of  services.  When 
 possible  and  when  agreed  upon  by  the  par�es,  the  Agreement  may  be  modified  in 
 accordance  with  the  paragraph  en�tled  “Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on”  to 
 accommodate a reduc�on in funds. 

 ii.  If  Federal  or  State  laws,  regula�ons  or  guidelines  are  modified  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 Agreement  or  no  longer  qualify  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments  authorized  by 
 this Agreement. 

 iii.  If  any  license  or  cer�ficate  required  by  law  or  regula�on  to  be  held  by  the  Contractor 
 to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  Agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied,  revoked, 
 not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Contractor  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cer�ficate. 

 iv.  Termina�on  under  this  clause  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obliga�ons  or 
 liabili�es  of  either  party  already  reasonably  incurred  prior  to  such  termina�on, 
 except  that  the  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  its  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es 
 a�er  the  termina�on  date,  which  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es  result  from  the 
 Contractor's  failure  to  provide  for  termina�on  of,  or  exercises  the  right  to  terminate, 
 its  commitments.  No  right  of  ac�on  or  damages  shall  accrue  to  the  benefit  of  the 
 Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

 v.  The  County,  by  wri�en  no�ce  of  default  (including  breach  of  contract)  to  the 
 Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

 a.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  Agreement  within 
 the �me speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

 b.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  perform  any  of  the  other  requirements  of  this 
 Agreement; or 

 c.  If  the  Contractor  so  fails  to  perform  the  work  required  in  the  Agreement  that 
 performance  of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and 
 a�er  receipt  of  wri�en  no�ce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  correct  such  failure  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period 
 as the County may authorize. 

 vi.  If  the  Agreement  is  terminated  under  this  clause,  the  County's  obliga�ons  shall  be 
 limited  to  payment  for  services  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Agreement  prior  to 

 7 



 the  date  of  termina�on,  less  any  damages  suffered  by  the  County.  The  rights  and 
 remedies  of  the  County  in  this  clause  related  to  defaults  (including  breach  of 
 contract)  by  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  exclusive  and  are  in  addi�on  to  any  other 
 rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

 Q.  Hold  Harmless:  Except  for  claims  arising  in  whole  from  the  negligence  of  County,  its 
 employees  or  its  agents,  Contractor  agrees  to  indemnify  and  hold  County  harmless  from 
 and  against  all  ac�ons,  suits,  claims  and  demands  arising  out  of  Contractor’s 
 performance  under  this  Contract  and  agrees  to  defend  County  in  such  ac�ons,  suits, 
 claims and demands. 

 R.  Waiver  of  Default:  Waiver  of  any  default  shall  not  be  deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any 
 subsequent  default.  Waiver  of  breach  of  any  provision  of  the  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any  other  or  subsequent  breach  and  shall  not  be  construed  to 
 be  a  modifica�on  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement  unless  stated  to  be  such  in  wri�ng, 
 signed  by  an  authorized  representa�ve  of  the  County,  and  a�ached  to  the  original 
 Agreement in accordance with the paragraph en�tled "Re-nego�a�on or Modifica�on". 

 S.  Severability:  The  par�es  agree  that  if  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  declared 
 by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdic�on  to  be  illegal  or  in  conflict  with  any  law,  the  validity  of 
 the  remaining  terms  and  provisions  shall  not  be  affected,  and  the  rights  and  obliga�ons 
 of  the  par�es  shall  be  construed  and  enforced  as  if  the  Agreement  did  not  contain  the 
 par�cular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 T.  Fees  Prohibited:  The  Contractor  will  not  impose  or  demand  any  fees  from  any  person  or 
 agency  for  services  provided  and  paid  for  under  this  Agreement,  unless  the  fees  have 
 been approved in advance by the County in wri�ng. 

 U.  Non-Discrimina�on:  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  they  are  an  equal  opportunity 
 employer  and  no  person  shall  be  denied  services  or  discrimi nated  against  on  the  basis  of 
 race,  color,  religion,  sex,  sexual  orienta�on,  na�onal  origin,  marital  status  or  age,  and 
 there  shall  be  no  discrimina�on  in  the  selec�on,  compensa�on  or  the  employ ment 
 prac�ces with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

 V.  Assignment  of  Agreement:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  or  transfer  its  interest  in  this 
 Agreement  without  prior  wri�en  approval  of  the  County,  which  shall  be  a�ached  to  the 
 original  Agreement.  Any  such  assignment,  if  approved,  is  subject  to  such  condi�ons  and 
 provisions,  as  the  County  may  deem  necessary.  No  approval  by  the  County  of  any 
 assignment  or  transfer  of  interest  shall  be  deemed  to  create  any  obliga�on  of  the  county 
 in addi�on to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement considera�on. 

 8 



 W.  Funds  Authorized  and  Available:  The  County  cer�fies  that  at  the  �me  of  signing  this 
 Agree ment,  sufficient  funds  are  authorized  and  available,  or  are  an�cipated  to  be 
 available,  for  expenditure  to  finance  costs  of  this  Agreement  within  the  County's  current 
 appropri a�on or limita�on. 

 X.  Recovery  of  Overpayments:  If  billings  under  this  Agreement,  or  under  any  Agreement 
 between  the  Contractor  and  the  County,  result  in  payments  to  the  Contractor  for  which 
 the  Contractor  is  not  en�tled  under  the  terms  of  such  Agreement,  the  County,  a�er 
 giving  wri�en  no�fica�on  to  the  Contractor,  may  withhold  from  payments  due  to  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  such  amounts,  over  such  periods  of  �me,  as  are 
 necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

 Y.  Criminal  History  Records  Checks:  Contractor  agrees  to  authorize  a  review  of  state  and 
 federal  records  by  Polk  County  as  a  qualified  en�ty,  to  determine  the  nature  of  any 
 criminal  ac�vity  the  Contractor  may  have  been  involved  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 943-007-001  for  purposes  described  in  OAR  407-007-0400.  No  work  will  be  assigned  to 
 Contractor  un�l  a  Criminal  History  Check  is  completed  and  verified  by  the  qualified 
 en�ty.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  Polk  County  within  five  days  of  being  arrested,  charged,  or 
 convicted of any crime. 

 SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

 A.  Payment  of  Subcontractors,  Industrial  Accident  Fund  Contribu�ons,  Liens  and 
 Withholding Taxes: 

 1.  Contractor  shall  make  payment  promptly,  as  due,  to  all  persons  supplying  to  such 
 contractor  labor  or  material  for  the  prosecu�on  of  the  work  provided  for  in  this 
 contract. 

 2.  Contractor  shall  pay  all  contribu�ons  or  amounts  due  the  Industrial  Accident  Fund 
 from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 3.  Contractor  shall  not  permit  any  lien  or  claim  to  be  filed  or  prosecuted  against  the 
 state,  county,  school  district,  municipality,  Municipal  Corpora�on  or  subdivisions 
 thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

 4.  Contractor  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
 employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 B.  Payment  of  Claims  by  County  :  If  Contractor  fails,  neglects  or  refuses  to  make  prompt 
 payment  of  any  claim  for  labor  or  services  furnished  to  the  contractor  or  a  subcontractor 
 by  any  person  in  connec�on  with  the  public  contract  as  such  claim  becomes  due,  the 

 9 



 proper  officer  or  officers  represen�ng  Polk  County  may  pay  such  claim  to  the  person 
 furnishing  the  labor  or  services  and  charge  the  amount  of  payment  against  funds  due  or 
 to  become  due  the  Contractor  by  reason  of  this  contract.  Payment  of  a  claim  in  this 
 manner  shall  not  relieve  the  contractor  or  contractor’s  surety  from  obliga�on  with 
 respect to any unpaid claims. 

 C.  Hours  of  Labor:  All  laborers  providing  contract  services  shall  be  paid  at  least  �me  and  a 
 half  for  all  over�me  worked  in  excess  of  40  hours  in  any  one  week,  except  for  individuals 
 under  these  contracts  who  are  excluded  under  ORS  653.010  to  653.261  or  under  29  USC 
 sec�on 201 to 209 from receiving over�me. 

 D.  Payment  for  Medical  Care:  Contractor  shall  promptly,  as  due,  make  payment  to  any 
 person,  co-partnership,  associa�on  or  corpora�on,  furnishing  medical,  surgical  and 
 hospital  care  or  other  needed  care  and  a�en�on,  incident  to  sickness  or  injury,  to  the 
 employees  for  such  Contractor,  of  all  sums  which  the  Contractor  agrees  to  pay  for  such 
 services  and  all  moneys  and  sums  which  the  contractor  collected  or  deducted  from  the 
 wages  of  employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
 providing or paying such service. 

 E.  Providing  Workers’  Compensa�on  Insurance:  All  employers  working  under  this  contract 
 are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 F.  Health  Care  Benefits  for  Employees:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  health  care  benefits  to 
 all  employees  who  are  performing  services  previously  performed  by  public  employees  if 
 the  condi�ons  specified  in  ORS  653.767  require  such  payment.  Benefits  must  equal  or 
 exceed  those  benefits  specified  in  ORS  279.315(3).  This  clause  does  not  apply  to 
 contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

 G.  Americans  with  Disabili�es  Act  Compliance:  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor  will 
 comply  and  does  comply  with  all  relevant  provisions  of  the  Americans  with  Disabili�es 
 Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 10 



 SIGNATURE PAGE 

 BY SIGNATURE BELOW, both par�es agree to and accept all terms and condi�ons of this 
 Agreement between County and Contractor along with the following: 

 ●  Exhibit A: Business Associate Agreement 
 ●  Exhibit B: Statement of Work 

 CONTRACTOR 

 Signature  Date 
 Title: 

 COUNTY 

 Chair  Date 
 Board of Commissioners 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 Morgan Smith  Date 
 County Counsel 

 11 



 EXHIBIT A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 Between 
 POLK COUNTY  and WHITNEY SHERER 

 1.  DEFINITIONS: 

 Except  as  otherwise  defined  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA  Agreement),  any 
 and  all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  defini�on  as  those  in  the  HIPAA 
 Privacy  Rule.  1  Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon, 
 shall  be  referred  to  as  “COUNTY”  and  Whitney  Sherer,  shall  be  referred  to  as 
 “CONTRACTOR”. 

 2.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

 A.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on  other  than 
 as permi�ed or required by this BA Agreement or as permi�ed or required by law. 

 B.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health Informa�on other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 C.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  mi�gate,  to  the  extent  prac�cable,  any  harmful  effect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  by 
 CONTRACTOR in viola�on of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  not  provided  for  by  this  BA  Agreement  of  which  it  becomes 
 aware. 

 E.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restric�ons  and 
 condi�ons  that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to 
 such informa�on. 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa�on in performance of Business Associate func�ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden�fiable Health Informa�on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa�on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 12 



 F.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access, 
 at  the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the 
 COUNTY  or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the 
 requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 G.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for 
 reasonable compliance. 

 H.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  prac�ces,  books,  and  records,  including 
 policies  and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  rela�ng  to  the  use  and 
 disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary 
 of  the  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  �me  and  manner  agreed 
 between  the  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for 
 purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining  the  COUNTY’S  compliance  with  the  Privacy 
 Rule. 

 I.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on 
 and  informa�on  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to 
 respond  to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected 
 Health Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 J.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  �me  and 
 manner  necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informa�on  collected  in  accordance 
 with  sec�on  2.A  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a 
 request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 3.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in 
 this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on to 
 perform certain health plan func�ons for or on behalf of the COUNTY as specified in the 
 Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure 
 would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary 
 policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

 13 



 A.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any limita�on(s) in the  No�ce of Privacy 
 Prac�ces  of the COUNTY in accordance with 45 CFR  § 164.520, to the extent that 
 such limita�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 B.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any changes in, or revoca�on of, 
 permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on, to the 
 extent that such changes may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected 
 Health Informa�on. 

 C.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any restric�on to the use or disclosure of 
 Protected Health Informa�on that the COUNTY has agreed to in accordance with 45 
 CFR § 164.522, to the extent that such restric�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or 
 disclosure of Protected Health Informa�on. 

 5.  PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: The COUNTY shall not request CONTRACTOR to 
 use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on in any manner that would not be 
 permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY except if such use or 
 disclosure is permi�ed under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION: 

 A.  Term  . This BA Agreement shall be effec�ve as of July  01, 2023, and shall terminate 
 when all of the Protected Health Informa�on provided by the COUNTY to 
 CONTRACTOR, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY, is 
 destroyed or returned to the COUNTY, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy 
 Protected Health Informa�on, protec�ons are extended to such informa�on, in 
 accordance with the termina�on provisions in this Sec�on. 

 B.  Termina�on for Cause  . Upon the COUNTY’S knowledge  of a material breach by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 i.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to cure the breach without the 
 interven�on of the COUNTY within the �meline specified in Sec�on III (P) of the 
 Polk County Agreement; or 

 ii.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to terminate this BA Agreement and 
 the Polk County Agreement within the �meline specified in Sec�on III of the Polk 
 County Agreement. At the direc�on of its Board of Directors, the COUNTY may 
 terminate this BA Agreement and the Polk County Agreement as permi�ed in 

 14 



 Sec�on III of the Polk County Agreement if CONTRACTOR has not cured the 
 breach upon conclusion of the technical assistance and correc�ve ac�on 
 described in paragraph (i.) of this sec�on; or 

 iii.  If neither termina�on nor cure is feasible, the COUNTY shall report the viola�on 
 to the Secretary. 

 C.  Effect of Termina�on  . 

 i.  Except as provided in paragraph (ii.) of this sec�on, upon termina�on of this BA 
 Agreement, for any reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all Protected 
 Health Informa�on received from the COUNTY, or created or received by 
 CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY. This provision shall apply to Protected 
 Health Informa�on that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 
 CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall retain no copies of the Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 ii.  In the event that CONTRACTOR determines that returning or destroying the 
 Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the 
 COUNTY wri�en no�fica�on of the condi�ons that make return or destruc�on 
 infeasible. Upon wri�en acknowledgement by the COUNTY that the return or 
 destruc�on of Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall 
 extend the protec�ons of this BA Agreement to such Protected Health 
 Informa�on and limit further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health 
 Informa�on to those purposed that make the return or destruc�on infeasible, for 
 so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health Informa�on. 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS: 

 A.  Regulatory References  . References in this BA Agreement  to the Privacy Rule or any 
 sec�on of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or sec�on as in effect or as 
 amended. 

 B.  Amendment  . The COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree to take  such ac�on as is 
 necessary to amend this BA Agreement from �me to �me as is necessary for the 
 COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 C.  Survival  . The respec�ve rights and obliga�ons of  CONTRACTOR under Sec�on 6.C of 
 this BA Agreement shall survive the termina�on of this BA Agreement. 

 15 



 D.  Interpreta�on  . Any ambiguity in this BA Agreement shall be resolved to permit the 
 COUNTY to comply with the Privacy Rule. In the event of any inconsistency between 
 the provisions of this BA Agreement and the mandatory provisions of the Privacy 
 Rule, the Privacy Rule shall control. Where laws in the State of Oregon or other 
 federal law is more stringent than the Privacy Rule, the more stringent Oregon or 
 federal law shall control. 

 8.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

 A.  Background Requirement  : The COUNTY, in accordance  with § 164.306 and § 164.308 
 (b), may permit the CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic 
 Protected Health Informa�on on the COUNTY’S behalf only if the COUNTY obtains 
 sa�sfactory assurances, in accordance with § 164.314(a) that the CONTRACTOR will 
 appropriately safeguard the informa�on. The COUNTY must document the 
 sa�sfactory assurances through a wri�en contract or other arrangement with the 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 B.  Part I. Security Assurances  : The CONTRACTOR will Implement  administra�ve, 
 physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
 confiden�ality, integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health 
 informa�on that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the 
 COUNTY as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
 1996 and the requirements of Health Insurance Reform, the Security Standards 
 (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 i.  Ensure that any agent, including a SUBCONTRACTOR, to whom it provides such 
 informa�on, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to 
 protect it. 

 ii.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 iii.  Authorize termina�on of the contract by the COUNTY, if the COUNTY determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 C.  Part II.  Other arrangements:  When the COUNTY and the  CONTRACTOR are both 
 governmental en��es, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 i.  It enters into a memorandum of understanding with the CONTRACTOR that 
 contains terms that accomplish the objec�ves of Part I.; or 

 16 



 ii.  Other  law  (including  regula�ons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objec�ves of Part I. 

 D.  If the CONTRACTOR is required by law to perform a func�on or ac�vity on behalf of 
 the COUNTY or to provide a service described in the defini�on of CONTRACTOR as 
 specified in § 160.103 of the regula�on to the COUNTY, the COUNTY may permit the 
 CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic Protected Health 
 Informa�on on its behalf to the extent necessary to comply with the legal mandate 
 without mee�ng the requirements of Part I., although the COUNTY will a�empt in 
 good faith to obtain sa�sfactory assurances as required by Part I. (A), and will 
 document the a�empt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if 
 not obtained. 

 17 



 EXHIBIT B: 
 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 POLK  COUNTY,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon  and,  WHITNEY  SHERER,  hereina�er 
 called “Contractor,” hereby agree to the following: 

 1.  STATEMENT OF SERVICES 

 A.  Contractor  agrees  to  work  within  scope,  training  and  experience  as  a  Licensed 
 Professional  Counselor,  to  provide  services,  support  and  training  that  meets  the  needs  of 
 both Contractor and County as evidenced by the Service Authoriza�on and Ac�vity form. 

 B.  Contractor  shall  perform  all  services  deemed  necessary  in  their  professional  opinion 
 based  upon  their  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se  as  evidenced  in  the  applica�on 
 materials  and  other  professional  endorsements,  notwithstanding  any  limita�ons  set 
 forth in this agreement. 

 C.  Contractor  shall  only  use  methods  or  techniques  in  which  the  Contractor  has 
 documented  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se.  Contractor  will  ensure  services  provided 
 are  within  rules  and  guidelines  of  Oregon  Health  Authority,  Health  Services  Division: 
 Behavioral Health Services, Chapter 309-019. 

 2.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 A.  Contractors  must  provide  primary  source  verifica�on  of  creden�als.  No  work  will  be 
 assigned  to  Contractors  who  render  direct  service  to  clients  or  pa�ents  un�l  creden�als 
 have been validated for Medicaid claims. 

 B.  Annual  requirements  mandate  that  the  Contractor  will  submit  a  conflict  of  Interest 
 Statement.  Contractor  queries  of  the  OIG  and  EPLS  List  of  Excluded  Individuals/En��es 
 database  will  also  be  performed  annually.  Bases  for  exclusion  include  convic�ons  for 
 program-related  fraud  and  pa�ent  abuse,  licensing  board  ac�ons  and  default  on  Health 
 Educa�on  Assistance  Loans.  It  is  the  expecta�on  that  Contractor  will  maintain 
 creden�aling  required  to  perform  job  du�es  in  good  standing.  It  is  the  responsibility  of 
 the  Contractor  to  report  any  circumstances  that  would  jeopardize  this  standing  or  lead 
 to exclusionary status. Failure to do so may lead to contract termina�on  . 

 C.  Contractor  agrees  to  report  cases  of  suspected  Medicaid,  Medicare  fraud,  waste,  or 
 abuse  to  the  PCBH  Compliance  Officer  at  503-623-9289.  If  there  is  reason  to  believe 
 that  PCBH  cannot  respond  appropriately  to  a  suspected  case  of  fraud,  waste,  or  abuse, 
 or  if  the  case  involves  PCBH,  then  Contractor  agrees  to  make  a  report  to  Ethicspoint  at 
 888-265-4068. 

 18 



 D.  County  may  conduct  performance  reviews  annually  to  assess  Contractor’s  performance 
 as it relates to the services required under this contract. 

 E.  Absences: 

 i.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  at  least  five  (5)  business  days  in  advance  for  all 
 an�cipated extended absences (i.e. vaca�ons, professional mee�ngs, etc.). 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  of  unplanned  absences  (ie:  illness  or  other 
 unforeseen events) at least one hour prior to expected work �me. 

 F.  Contractor  agrees  to  provide  10  business  day  no�ce  of  changes  to  their  clinic  schedule 
 availability. 

 G.  All  client  records  are  considered  the  property  of  the  County  and  shall  not  be  retained  by 
 the  Contractor.  Contractor  shall  have  all  service  notes  and  documenta�on  completed 
 within  three  business  days  of  service  encounter.  Contractor  shall  maintain  client/pa�ent 
 records and documenta�on within CMS guidelines. 

 H.  Contractor  may  elect  to  use  the  electronic  health  record  system  supported  by  the 
 County.  Contractor  shall  provide  County  with  a  Cer�ficate  of  Electronic  Health  Record 
 Technology  (CEHRT)  when  Contractor  elects  to  use  a  system  that  is  not  supported  by  the 
 County or Oregon Health Authority. 

 I.  Documents  that  are  required  for  billing  shall  be  submi�ed  three  days  a�er  the  close  of 
 business  on  the  last  weekday  of  each  month.  Documenta�on  found  to  be  out  of 
 compliance  with  County  and/or  State  guidelines  shall  be  corrected  within  ten  (10) 
 business days. 

 J.  Billable  service  notes  shall  meet  documenta�on  standards  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 309-019-0135 through 309-019-0145. 

 A.  Contractor  is  required  to  receive  two  hours  of  clinical  supervision  quarterly  ,  which  shall 
 include  at  least  one  hour  of  individual  face-to-face  contact  either  in  person  or  via 
 two-way  audio  visual  conferencing  from  a  qualified  clinical  supervisor.  Contractor  will  be 
 required  to  provide  documenta�on  of  supervision  received,  if  obtained  by  a  Clinical 
 Supervisor Outside of County. Failure to do so may lead to contract termina�on. 

 3.  AUTHORIZED SERVICES 

 A.  County  will  only  pay  for  service  and  ac�vi�es  that  have  been  pre  authorized  and  agreed 
 upon in wri�ng by both par�es on a Service and Ac�vity Authoriza�on Form. 

 19 



 B.  County  will  authorize  services  based  on  Level  of  Care  as  outlined  in  the  Individual 
 Service  Plan.  All  services  submi�ed  for  payment  must  be  supported  by  the  Individual 
 Service Plan and verified by County to be compliant with applicable regula�ons. 

 4.  RATES AND METHOD OF PAY 

 A.  County  shall  reimburse  the  Contractor  at  the  rate  of  $110.00  per  hour  for  services  as 
 outlined  in  the  Service  Ac�vity  Authoriza�on  form  with  services  paid  on  a  per 
 occurrence basis to the nearest quarter hour upon receipt of an invoice. 

 B.  County  will  have  no  legal  obliga�on  to  pay  for  any  unauthorized  services,  including 
 unauthorized expenditures. 

 20 



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Public Health  Consent Calendar Date:  July 05, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Dr. Caroline Castillo 

 Address:  74 Touchstone Drive 

 City, State, Zip:  Lake Oswego, OR 97035 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 02, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  Varies 

 Background: 

 Caroline Castillo, M.D. has agreed to provide medical services for Polk County Public Health, as the 
 Health Officer. This is a new contract to Polk County. 

 Discussion: 

 Caroline Castillo, M.D. meets the criteria for a service provider and has been cleared to work with us 
 through a criminal history records review. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Public Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
 contract. The fiscal year 2023-2024 Public Health budget was prepared in anticipation 
 of this agreement. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Caroline Castillo, M.D. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  06/23/23 

 CONTRACTOR  DR. CAROLINE CASTILLO 
 74 TOUCHSTONE DRIVE 
 LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97035 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 CONTACT PERSON:  DR. CAROLINE CASTILLO 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide PH Medical Director services as described in 
 Exhibit B. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM JULY 01, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2024 

 BUDGET LINE #:  235-8540-VARIES

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  VARIES 

 TERMS:  Service Rates per Exhibit B 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 23-126



 AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

 POLK COUNTY 
 DIVISION HEALTH 

 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 a poli�cal subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereina�er referred to as "County" and 

 DR. CAROLINE CASTILLO 
 74 TOUCHSTONE DRIVE 

 LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97035 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 hereina�er referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  is  authorized  to  obtain,  by  contract,  the  services  necessary  to  conduct  its 
 opera�on; and 

 WHEREAS,  Contractor  has  available,  or  can  obtain,  the  necessary  licenses  or  cer�ficates 
 required for the performance of said services; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  par�es  above-men�oned,  for  and 
 in considera�on of the mutual promises hereina�er stated as follows: 

 SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A.  The  County  is  desirous  of  securing  the  services  of  the  Contractor  to  perform  services 
 more  specifically  outlined  in  Exhibit  B:  Statement  of  Work,  based  on  Contractor’s 
 specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

 B.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  authorized  services  to  Polk  County  referrals  at  Contractor’s 
 facili�es,  Polk  County  Buildings  on  space  available  basis,  and/or  consumer’s  school 
 facility,  work  loca�on,  or  home  depending  upon  the  needs  of  the  individual.  Depending 
 on  the  nature  of  services  provided,  the  loca�on  of  services  may  be  curtailed  by  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement of Work. 

 C.  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the  document  en�tled  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement  of  Work,  which  is  a�ached  and  by  reference  herein,  made  an  integral  part  of 
 this Agreement. 

 1 



 SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

 A.  As  considera�on  for  the  services  provided  by  the  Contractor  during  the  period  beginning 
 July  01,  2023,  and  ending  June  30,  2024,  payment  shall  be  retroac�ve  for  approved 
 services  provided  to  Polk  County  referrals  on  or  a�er  the  period  beginning  date.  Any 
 renewals  and/or  changes  to  this  agreement  must  be  submi�ed  in  wri�ng,  in  the  form  of 
 an amendment to this Contract and signed by both Par�es. 

 B.  Agreement  is  effec�ve  upon  the  signature  of  all  par�es.  It  is  understood  by  both  par�es 
 that  no  commitments  have  been  or  are  made  by  either  party  beyond  the  termina�on  of 
 the Agreement. 

 C.  The  County  will  pay  to  the  Contractor,  by  check(s)  or  ACH  direct  payment  upon  receipt  of 
 an  authorized  billing  document  at  the  rates  outlined  in  Exhibit  B  and  as  approved  by  Polk 
 County.  Billings  shall  be  submi�ed  to  HS  Fiscal  either  electronically  to 
 hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us  or  by  mail  to  Polk  County  Health  Services  Business  Services 
 Department,  182  SW  Academy  Street  Suite  204,  Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  County  shall 
 endeavor  remit  payment  within  2-3  weeks  of  receipt  of  appropriate  billing,  suppor�ng 
 documenta�on and signed invoice. 

 D.  It  is  agreed  that  Contractor  shall  accept  payment  from  Polk  County  as  full  and  total 
 payment  for  services  and  that  Contractor  shall  not  bill  any  Polk  County  clients  (or  their 
 insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

 E.  Contractor  is  engaged  hereby  as  an  independent  contrac tor,  and  the  services  to  be 
 rendered  are  those  of  an  independent  contractor,  subject  to  ORS  Chapter  656,  and  will 
 be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

 i.  Contractor  will  be  solely  responsible  for  payment  of  any  Federal  or  State  taxes 
 required as a result of this Agreement. 

 ii.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  to  en�tle  Contractor  to  any  benefits  generally 
 granted  to  County  employees.  Without  limita�on,  but  by  way  of  illustra�on,  the 
 benefits  which  are  not  intended  to  be  extended  by  this  Agreement  to  the  Contractor 
 are  vaca�on,  holiday  and  sick  leave,  other  leaves  with  pay,  tenure,  medical  and 
 dental  coverage,  life  and  disability  insurance,  over�me,  Social  Security,  workers' 
 compensa�on, unemployment compensa�on or re�rement benefits . 

 iii.  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  for  purposes  of  the  Oregon  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  Law  (ORS  Chapter  656)  and  is  solely  liable  for  any  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  coverage  under  this  Agreement.  If  the  Contractor  has  the  assistance 

 2 



 of  other  persons  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  qualify 
 and  remain  qualified  for  the  term  of  this  Agreement  as  a  direct  responsibility 
 employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib u�ng employer under ORS 656.411. 

 F.  Exhibit  A  –  Business  Associate  Agreement  a�ached  hereto  is  by  this  reference 
 incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

 SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 A.  Extent  of  Agreement:  This  Agreement  contains  all  the  terms  and  condi�ons  agreed  upon 
 by  the  par�es.  No  other  understandings,  oral  or  otherwise,  regarding  the  subject  ma�er 
 of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the par�es hereto. 

 B.  Cap�ons:  The  cap�ons  or  headings  in  this  Agreement  are  for  convenience  only  and  in  no 
 way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 C.  Payment  as  Sole  Monetary  Obliga�on  of  the  County:  The  Contractor  is  engaged  as  an 
 independent  contractor.  Payment  as  provided  herein  shall  be  the  sole  monetary 
 obliga �on  of  the  County.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  responsi bility  for  payment  of 
 all  opera�ng  costs,  Federal,  State,  County  or  city  taxes/assessments  and  any  other 
 charges  imposed  by  law  upon  employers  shall  be  the  sole  responsibility  of  the 
 Contractor. 

 D.  Licensing  and  Program  Standards:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with  all  applicable 
 State,  County,  and  municipal  standards  for  licensing,  and  any  other  standards  or  criteria 
 described in this Agreement and its a�achments. 

 E.  Contractor-client  Rela�onship:  The  Contractor  will  establish  a  system  through  which  a 
 client  and/or  the  client’s  parents  or  guardian  may  represent  grievances  about  the 
 opera�on  of  the  Contractor’s  service  program.  At  the  �me  arrangements  are  made  for 
 the  Contractor’s  service,  the  Contractor  will  advise  the  child  and  parents  or  guardian  of 
 the provision.  The Contractor shall no�fy the County of all unresolved grievances. 

 F.  Safeguarding of Client Informa�on: 

 i.  The  use  or  disclosure  by  any  party  of  any  informa�on  concern ing  a  recipient  of 
 services  purchased  under  this  Agreement,  for  any  purpose  not  directly  connected 
 with  the  administra �on  of  the  County's  or  the  Contractor's  responsibili�es  with 
 respect  to  such  purchased  services,  is  prohibited,  except  on  wri�en  consent  of  the 
 County,  or  if  the  County  is  not  the  recipient,  on  wri�en  consent  of  the  recipient  or 
 a�orney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 3 



 ii.  For  the  purposes  of  safeguarding  protected  client  informa�on,  Contractor  agrees  to 
 abide  by  all  County  rules  and  regula�ons  regarding  Communica�on  technology  as 
 documented  in  the  County’s  Communica�ons  Technology  Policy.  Contractors 
 providing  services  from  a  County  facility  will  be  provided  appropriate  County 
 equipment  to  perform  its  du�es  under  this  agreement.  To  the  extent  that  Contractor 
 elects  to  use  their  own  technology  (computer,  cellular  phone,  etc…)  Contractor 
 warrants  that  such  equipment  shall  be  compliant  with  County  rules  and  regula�ons, 
 and its obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 G.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  and  Rehabilita�on  Act  of  1973:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply 
 with  the  requirements  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  and  Sec�on  504  of  the 
 Rehabilita �on  Act  of  1973,  and  their  implemen�ng  Federal  regula�ons,  including 
 Execu�ve Order 11246 as amended. 

 H.  Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

 i.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to 
 assure  full  compliance  with  Federal  regula�ons  and  the  County’s  guidelines  on 
 allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

 ii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  maintain  fiscal  records  consistent  with  generally  accepted 
 accoun�ng  prac�ces  and  controls,  which  will  properly  reflect  all  direct  and  indirect 
 costs  and  funds  expended  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor 
 shall  make  these  records  available  at  reasonable  �mes  upon  request  to  State  and 
 Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

 iii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  collect  financial  sta�s�cs  on  a  regular  basis  and  to  make 
 financial reports at �mes in the form prescribed by the County. 

 I.  Program  Records,  Controls,  Reports,  and  Monitoring  Procedures:  The  Contractor  agrees 
 to  maintain  program  records  including  sta�s�cal  records,  and  to  provide  program 
 records  to  the  County  at  �mes  and  in  the  form  prescribed  by  the  County.  The  Contractor 
 agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to  assure  full  compliance 
 with  the  program  and  facili�es  review  (including  mee�ngs  with  consumers,  reviews  of 
 service  records,  review  of  policy  and  procedures,  review  of  staffing  ra�os  and  job 
 descrip�ons,  and  mee�ngs  with  any  staff  directly  of  indirectly  involved  in  the  provision 
 of  services)  may  be  conducted  at  any  reasonable  �me  by  State  and  Federal  personnel 
 and other persons authorized by the County. 

 J.  Reten�on  of  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  retain  all  books,  records,  and  other 
 documents  relevant  to  this  Agreement  for  three  (3)  years  a�er  final  payment  is  made 

 4 



 under  the  Agreement  or  all  pending  ma�ers  are  closed,  whichever  is  later.  If  li�ga�on  or 
 other  ac�on  involving  the  Agreement  is  started  before  the  end  of  the  three  (3)  year 
 period,  the  records  shall  be  retained  un�l  all  issues  arising  out  of  the  ac�on  are  resolved 
 or un�l the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

 K.  Insurance: 

 i.  Contractor  agrees  that  it  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  agent  of  the 
 County.  The  Contractor  and  the  County  shall  not  be  responsible  for  any  legal  liability, 
 loss,  malprac�ce,  damages,  costs  and  expenses  arising  in  favor  of  any  person  on 
 account  of  personal  injuries,  death  or  property  loss  or  damage  occurring,  growing 
 out  of,  incident  to  or  resul�ng  directly  or  indirectly  from  the  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 other party under this Agreement. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  obtain,  and  at  all  �mes  keep  in  effect,  comprehensive  liability 
 insurance  and  property  damage  insurance  covering  ac�vi�es,  opera�ons,  and 
 omissions  of  the  Contractor,  all  subcontractors,  and  all  named  addi�onal  insureds. 
 Contractor  may  sa�sfy  this  requirement  for  general  liability  insurance  in  any  manner 
 allowed  by  ORS  30.282.  Such  liability  insurance,  whatever  the  form,  shall  be  in  an 
 amount  not  less  than  one  million  dollars  ($1,000,000)  with  provision  for  increased 
 coverage  as  such  limits  are  increased  by  legisla�ve  ac�on.  In  the  event  of  unilateral 
 cancella�on  or  restric�on  by  the  insurance  company  of  the  Contractor's  insurance 
 policy  referred  to  in  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor  shall  immediately  no�fy  the 
 County verbally and in wri�ng. 

 iii.  As  evidence  of  the  insurance  coverage  required  by  this  Agreement,  and  prior  to  the 
 execu�on  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  a  Cer�ficate  of  Insurance  to 
 Polk  County,  to  Polk  County  Health  Services,  182  SW  Academy  Street,  Suite  204, 
 Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  Cer�ficate  form,  to  be  completed  by  the  Contractor's 
 insurer,  naming  Polk  County  as  addi�onal  insured,  will  be  maintained  in  the  County's 
 file of this Agreement. 

 iv.  There  shall  not  be  any  cancella�on,  material  changes  or  failure  to  renew  such 
 insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior no�ce to the County. 

 L.  Subcontrac�ng:  Unless  subcontrac�ng  is  authorized  elsewhere  in  the  Agree ment,  the 
 Contractor  shall  not  enter  into  any  subcontracts  for  any  of  the  work  contemplated  under 
 this  Agreement  without  obtaining  prior  wri�en  approval  from  the  County,  which 
 approval  shall  be  a�ached  to  the  original  Agreement.  Approval  by  the  County  of  a 
 subcontract  shall  not  result  in  any  obliga�ons  of  the  County  in  addi�on  to  the  agreed 
 rates  of  payment  and  total  considera�on.  Any  subcontracts  which  the  County  may 

 5 



 authorize  shall  contain  all  requirements  of  this  Agreement,  and  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 responsible  for  the  performance  of  the  subcontractor.  Contractor  may  subcon tract 
 medical  inves�gator's  du�es  so  long  as  the  sub contractor  possesses  medical 
 qualifica�ons equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

 M.  Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on:  Any  altera�ons,  varia�ons,  modifica�ons  to  or  waivers 
 of  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  valid  only  when  they  have  been  reduced  to 
 wri�ng,  duly  signed,  and  approved  by  the  Contractor  and  the  County  and  a�ached  to 
 the original of this Agreement. 

 N.  Excuses  for  Nonperformance:  Neither  party  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  held  responsible 
 for  delay  or  failure  in  performance  of  the  ac�vi�es  required  herein  when  such  delay  or 
 failure  is  due  to  causes  beyond  the  control  and  without  the  fault  or  negligence  of  the 
 party.  Such  causes  may  include,  but  are  not  restricted  to,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  strikes, 
 acts  of  God  or  the  public  enemy,  unusually  severe  weather,  legal  acts  of  public 
 authori�es,  or  delays  or  defaults  caused  by  public  carriers,  which  cannot  reasonably  be 
 forecast  or  provided  against.  Either  party  may  terminate  the  Agreement  a�er 
 reasonably  determining  that  such  delay  or  failure  will  prevent  con�nued  performance  of 
 the  Agreement,  and  a�er  giving  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  other  party  of  the  cause,  its  effect 
 on  Agreement  performance  and  effec �ve  date  of  termina�on.  If  the  Agreement  is  so 
 terminated,  the  obliga�on  of  the  County  shall  be  limited  to  payment  for  services 
 provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of termina�on. 

 O.  Remedies:  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  or  perform  any  of  the  other 
 requirements  under  the  Contract,  and  such  failure  is  not  excused  under  the  paragraph 
 �tled  "Excuses  for  Nonperformance",  the  County,  a�er  giving  the  Contractor  wri�en 
 no�ce  of  such  failure,  may  withhold  part  or  all  of  the  Contractor's  payment  for  the 
 services  un�l  such  failure  is  corrected.  If  the  Contractor  does  not  correct  such  failure 
 within  a  reasonable  �me  allowed  by  the  County,  the  County  may  terminate  the 
 Agreement  in  accordance  with  the  clause  �tled  "Termina�on."  However,  this  paragraph, 
 and  any  ac�ons  taken  or  not  taken  under  it,  shall  not  affect  the  County's  rights  under  the 
 "Termina�on" clause. 

 P.  Termina�on:  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  par�es  or 
 unilaterally  by  both  par�es  at  any  �me  upon  thirty  (30)  days’  no�ce  to  the  other  party 
 in  wri�ng  and  delivered  personally  or  by  Cer�fied  Mail.  The  County  may  also  unilaterally 
 terminate  this  Agreement  effec�ve  upon  delivery  of  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  Contrac tor,  or 
 at  such  later  date  as  may  be  established  by  the  County,  under  any  of  the  following 
 condi�ons: 

 6 



 i.  If  funds,  specifically  authorized  by  Legisla�ve  acts,  do  not  become  available  in 
 amounts  sufficient  to  allow  for  purchase  of  the  stated  quan�ty  of  services.  When 
 possible  and  when  agreed  upon  by  the  par�es,  the  Agreement  may  be  modified  in 
 accordance  with  the  paragraph  en�tled  “Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on”  to 
 accommodate a reduc�on in funds. 

 ii.  If  Federal  or  State  laws,  regula�ons  or  guidelines  are  modified  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 Agreement  or  no  longer  qualify  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments  authorized  by 
 this Agreement. 

 iii.  If  any  license  or  cer�ficate  required  by  law  or  regula�on  to  be  held  by  the  Contractor 
 to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  Agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied,  revoked, 
 not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Contractor  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cer�ficate. 

 iv.  Termina�on  under  this  clause  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obliga�ons  or 
 liabili�es  of  either  party  already  reasonably  incurred  prior  to  such  termina�on, 
 except  that  the  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  its  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es 
 a�er  the  termina�on  date,  which  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es  result  from  the 
 Contractor's  failure  to  provide  for  termina�on  of,  or  exercises  the  right  to  terminate, 
 its  commitments.  No  right  of  ac�on  or  damages  shall  accrue  to  the  benefit  of  the 
 Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

 v.  The  County,  by  wri�en  no�ce  of  default  (including  breach  of  contract)  to  the 
 Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

 a.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  Agreement  within 
 the �me speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

 b.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  perform  any  of  the  other  requirements  of  this 
 Agreement; or 

 c.  If  the  Contractor  so  fails  to  perform  the  work  required  in  the  Agreement  that 
 performance  of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and 
 a�er  receipt  of  wri�en  no�ce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  correct  such  failure  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period 
 as the County may authorize. 

 vi.  If  the  Agreement  is  terminated  under  this  clause,  the  County's  obliga�ons  shall  be 
 limited  to  payment  for  services  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Agreement  prior  to 

 7 



 the  date  of  termina�on,  less  any  damages  suffered  by  the  County.  The  rights  and 
 remedies  of  the  County  in  this  clause  related  to  defaults  (including  breach  of 
 contract)  by  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  exclusive  and  are  in  addi�on  to  any  other 
 rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

 Q.  Hold  Harmless:  Except  for  claims  arising  in  whole  from  the  negligence  of  County,  its 
 employees  or  its  agents,  Contractor  agrees  to  indemnify  and  hold  County  harmless  from 
 and  against  all  ac�ons,  suits,  claims  and  demands  arising  out  of  Contractor’s 
 performance  under  this  Contract  and  agrees  to  defend  County  in  such  ac�ons,  suits, 
 claims and demands. 

 R.  Waiver  of  Default:  Waiver  of  any  default  shall  not  be  deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any 
 subsequent  default.  Waiver  of  breach  of  any  provision  of  the  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any  other  or  subsequent  breach  and  shall  not  be  construed  to 
 be  a  modifica�on  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement  unless  stated  to  be  such  in  wri�ng, 
 signed  by  an  authorized  representa�ve  of  the  County,  and  a�ached  to  the  original 
 Agreement in accordance with the paragraph en�tled "Re-nego�a�on or Modifica�on". 

 S.  Severability:  The  par�es  agree  that  if  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  declared 
 by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdic�on  to  be  illegal  or  in  conflict  with  any  law,  the  validity  of 
 the  remaining  terms  and  provisions  shall  not  be  affected,  and  the  rights  and  obliga�ons 
 of  the  par�es  shall  be  construed  and  enforced  as  if  the  Agreement  did  not  contain  the 
 par�cular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 T.  Fees  Prohibited:  The  Contractor  will  not  impose  or  demand  any  fees  from  any  person  or 
 agency  for  services  provided  and  paid  for  under  this  Agreement,  unless  the  fees  have 
 been approved in advance by the County in wri�ng. 

 U.  Non-Discrimina�on:  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  they  are  an  equal  opportunity 
 employer  and  no  person  shall  be  denied  services  or  discrimi nated  against  on  the  basis  of 
 race,  color,  religion,  sex,  sexual  orienta�on,  na�onal  origin,  marital  status  or  age,  and 
 there  shall  be  no  discrimina�on  in  the  selec�on,  compensa�on  or  the  employ ment 
 prac�ces with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

 V.  Assignment  of  Agreement:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  or  transfer  its  interest  in  this 
 Agreement  without  prior  wri�en  approval  of  the  County,  which  shall  be  a�ached  to  the 
 original  Agreement.  Any  such  assignment,  if  approved,  is  subject  to  such  condi�ons  and 
 provisions,  as  the  County  may  deem  necessary.  No  approval  by  the  County  of  any 
 assignment  or  transfer  of  interest  shall  be  deemed  to  create  any  obliga�on  of  the  county 
 in addi�on to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement considera�on. 

 8 



 W.  Funds  Authorized  and  Available:  The  County  cer�fies  that  at  the  �me  of  signing  this 
 Agree ment,  sufficient  funds  are  authorized  and  available,  or  are  an�cipated  to  be 
 available,  for  expenditure  to  finance  costs  of  this  Agreement  within  the  County's  current 
 appropri a�on or limita�on. 

 X.  Recovery  of  Overpayments:  If  billings  under  this  Agreement,  or  under  any  Agreement 
 between  the  Contractor  and  the  County,  result  in  payments  to  the  Contractor  for  which 
 the  Contractor  is  not  en�tled  under  the  terms  of  such  Agreement,  the  County,  a�er 
 giving  wri�en  no�fica�on  to  the  Contractor,  may  withhold  from  payments  due  to  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  such  amounts,  over  such  periods  of  �me,  as  are 
 necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

 Y.  Criminal  History  Records  Checks:  Contractor  agrees  to  authorize  a  review  of  state  and 
 federal  records  by  Polk  County  as  a  qualified  en�ty,  to  determine  the  nature  of  any 
 criminal  ac�vity  the  Contractor  may  have  been  involved  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 943-007-001  for  purposes  described  in  OAR  407-007-0400.  No  work  will  be  assigned  to 
 Contractor  un�l  a  Criminal  History  Check  is  completed  and  verified  by  the  qualified 
 en�ty.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  Polk  County  within  five  days  of  being  arrested,  charged,  or 
 convicted of any crime. 

 SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

 A.  Payment  of  Subcontractors,  Industrial  Accident  Fund  Contribu�ons,  Liens  and 
 Withholding Taxes: 

 1.  Contractor  shall  make  payment  promptly,  as  due,  to  all  persons  supplying  to  such 
 contractor  labor  or  material  for  the  prosecu�on  of  the  work  provided  for  in  this 
 contract. 

 2.  Contractor  shall  pay  all  contribu�ons  or  amounts  due  the  Industrial  Accident  Fund 
 from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 3.  Contractor  shall  not  permit  any  lien  or  claim  to  be  filed  or  prosecuted  against  the 
 state,  county,  school  district,  municipality,  Municipal  Corpora�on  or  subdivisions 
 thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

 4.  Contractor  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
 employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 B.  Payment  of  Claims  by  County  :  If  Contractor  fails,  neglects  or  refuses  to  make  prompt 
 payment  of  any  claim  for  labor  or  services  furnished  to  the  contractor  or  a  subcontractor 
 by  any  person  in  connec�on  with  the  public  contract  as  such  claim  becomes  due,  the 

 9 



 proper  officer  or  officers  represen�ng  Polk  County  may  pay  such  claim  to  the  person 
 furnishing  the  labor  or  services  and  charge  the  amount  of  payment  against  funds  due  or 
 to  become  due  the  Contractor  by  reason  of  this  contract.  Payment  of  a  claim  in  this 
 manner  shall  not  relieve  the  contractor  or  contractor’s  surety  from  obliga�on  with 
 respect to any unpaid claims. 

 C.  Hours  of  Labor:  All  laborers  providing  contract  services  shall  be  paid  at  least  �me  and  a 
 half  for  all  over�me  worked  in  excess  of  40  hours  in  any  one  week,  except  for  individuals 
 under  these  contracts  who  are  excluded  under  ORS  653.010  to  653.261  or  under  29  USC 
 sec�on 201 to 209 from receiving over�me. 

 D.  Payment  for  Medical  Care:  Contractor  shall  promptly,  as  due,  make  payment  to  any 
 person,  co-partnership,  associa�on  or  corpora�on,  furnishing  medical,  surgical  and 
 hospital  care  or  other  needed  care  and  a�en�on,  incident  to  sickness  or  injury,  to  the 
 employees  for  such  Contractor,  of  all  sums  which  the  Contractor  agrees  to  pay  for  such 
 services  and  all  moneys  and  sums  which  the  contractor  collected  or  deducted  from  the 
 wages  of  employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
 providing or paying such service. 

 E.  Providing  Workers’  Compensa�on  Insurance:  All  employers  working  under  this  contract 
 are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 F.  Health  Care  Benefits  for  Employees:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  health  care  benefits  to 
 all  employees  who  are  performing  services  previously  performed  by  public  employees  if 
 the  condi�ons  specified  in  ORS  653.767  require  such  payment.  Benefits  must  equal  or 
 exceed  those  benefits  specified  in  ORS  279.315(3).  This  clause  does  not  apply  to 
 contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

 G.  Americans  with  Disabili�es  Act  Compliance:  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor  will 
 comply  and  does  comply  with  all  relevant  provisions  of  the  Americans  with  Disabili�es 
 Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 10 



 SIGNATURE PAGE 

 BY SIGNATURE BELOW, both par�es agree to and accept all terms and condi�ons of this 
 Agreement between County and Contractor along with the following: 

 ●  Exhibit A: Business Associate Agreement 
 ●  Exhibit B: Statement of Work 

 CONTRACTOR 

 Signature  Date 
 Title: 

 COUNTY 

 Chair  Date 
 Board of Commissioners 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 Morgan Smith  Date 
 County Counsel 

 11 

6/26/2023

Caroline Castillo, MD



 EXHIBIT A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 Between 
 POLK COUNTY  and  DR. CAROLINE CASTILLO 

 1.  DEFINITIONS: 

 Except  as  otherwise  defined  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA  Agreement),  any 
 and  all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  defini�on  as  those  in  the  HIPAA 
 Privacy  Rule.  1  Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon, 
 shall  be  referred  to  as  “COUNTY”  and  DR.  CAROLINE  CASTILLO,  shall  be  referred  to  as 
 “CONTRACTOR”. 

 2.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

 A.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on  other  than 
 as permi�ed or required by this BA Agreement or as permi�ed or required by law. 

 B.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health Informa�on other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 C.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  mi�gate,  to  the  extent  prac�cable,  any  harmful  effect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  by 
 CONTRACTOR in viola�on of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  not  provided  for  by  this  BA  Agreement  of  which  it  becomes 
 aware. 

 E.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restric�ons  and 
 condi�ons  that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to 
 such informa�on. 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa�on in performance of Business Associate func�ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden�fiable Health Informa�on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa�on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 12 



 F.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access, 
 at  the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the 
 COUNTY  or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the 
 requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 G.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for 
 reasonable compliance. 

 H.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  prac�ces,  books,  and  records,  including 
 policies  and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  rela�ng  to  the  use  and 
 disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary 
 of  the  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  �me  and  manner  agreed 
 between  the  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for 
 purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining  the  COUNTY’S  compliance  with  the  Privacy 
 Rule. 

 I.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on 
 and  informa�on  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to 
 respond  to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected 
 Health Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 J.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  �me  and 
 manner  necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informa�on  collected  in  accordance 
 with  sec�on  2.A  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a 
 request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 3.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in 
 this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on to 
 perform certain health plan func�ons for or on behalf of the COUNTY as specified in the 
 Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure 
 would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary 
 policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

 13 



 A.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any limita�on(s) in the  No�ce of Privacy 
 Prac�ces  of the COUNTY in accordance with 45 CFR  § 164.520, to the extent that 
 such limita�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 B.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any changes in, or revoca�on of, 
 permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on, to the 
 extent that such changes may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected 
 Health Informa�on. 

 C.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any restric�on to the use or disclosure of 
 Protected Health Informa�on that the COUNTY has agreed to in accordance with 45 
 CFR § 164.522, to the extent that such restric�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or 
 disclosure of Protected Health Informa�on. 

 5.  PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: The COUNTY shall not request CONTRACTOR to 
 use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on in any manner that would not be 
 permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY except if such use or 
 disclosure is permi�ed under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION: 

 A.  Term  . This BA Agreement shall be effec�ve as of July  01, 2023, and shall terminate 
 when all of the Protected Health Informa�on provided by the COUNTY to 
 CONTRACTOR, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY, is 
 destroyed or returned to the COUNTY, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy 
 Protected Health Informa�on, protec�ons are extended to such informa�on, in 
 accordance with the termina�on provisions in this Sec�on. 

 B.  Termina�on for Cause  . Upon the COUNTY’S knowledge  of a material breach by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 i.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to cure the breach without the 
 interven�on of the COUNTY within the �meline specified in Sec�on III (P) of the 
 Polk County Agreement; or 

 ii.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to terminate this BA Agreement and 
 the Polk County Agreement within the �meline specified in Sec�on III of the Polk 
 County Agreement. At the direc�on of its Board of Directors, the COUNTY may 
 terminate this BA Agreement and the Polk County Agreement as permi�ed in 

 14 



 Sec�on III of the Polk County Agreement if CONTRACTOR has not cured the 
 breach upon conclusion of the technical assistance and correc�ve ac�on 
 described in paragraph (i.) of this sec�on; or 

 iii.  If neither termina�on nor cure is feasible, the COUNTY shall report the viola�on 
 to the Secretary. 

 C.  Effect of Termina�on  . 

 i.  Except as provided in paragraph (ii.) of this sec�on, upon termina�on of this BA 
 Agreement, for any reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all Protected 
 Health Informa�on received from the COUNTY, or created or received by 
 CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY. This provision shall apply to Protected 
 Health Informa�on that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 
 CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall retain no copies of the Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 ii.  In the event that CONTRACTOR determines that returning or destroying the 
 Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the 
 COUNTY wri�en no�fica�on of the condi�ons that make return or destruc�on 
 infeasible. Upon wri�en acknowledgement by the COUNTY that the return or 
 destruc�on of Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall 
 extend the protec�ons of this BA Agreement to such Protected Health 
 Informa�on and limit further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health 
 Informa�on to those purposed that make the return or destruc�on infeasible, for 
 so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health Informa�on. 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS: 

 A.  Regulatory References  . References in this BA Agreement  to the Privacy Rule or any 
 sec�on of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or sec�on as in effect or as 
 amended. 

 B.  Amendment  . The COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree to take  such ac�on as is 
 necessary to amend this BA Agreement from �me to �me as is necessary for the 
 COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 C.  Survival  . The respec�ve rights and obliga�ons of  CONTRACTOR under Sec�on 6.C of 
 this BA Agreement shall survive the termina�on of this BA Agreement. 

 15 



 D.  Interpreta�on  . Any ambiguity in this BA Agreement shall be resolved to permit the 
 COUNTY to comply with the Privacy Rule. In the event of any inconsistency between 
 the provisions of this BA Agreement and the mandatory provisions of the Privacy 
 Rule, the Privacy Rule shall control. Where laws in the State of Oregon or other 
 federal law is more stringent than the Privacy Rule, the more stringent Oregon or 
 federal law shall control. 

 8.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

 A.  Background Requirement  : The COUNTY, in accordance  with § 164.306 and § 164.308 
 (b), may permit the CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic 
 Protected Health Informa�on on the COUNTY’S behalf only if the COUNTY obtains 
 sa�sfactory assurances, in accordance with § 164.314(a) that the CONTRACTOR will 
 appropriately safeguard the informa�on. The COUNTY must document the 
 sa�sfactory assurances through a wri�en contract or other arrangement with the 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 B.  Part I. Security Assurances  : The CONTRACTOR will Implement  administra�ve, 
 physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
 confiden�ality, integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health 
 informa�on that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the 
 COUNTY as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
 1996 and the requirements of Health Insurance Reform, the Security Standards 
 (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 i.  Ensure that any agent, including a SUBCONTRACTOR, to whom it provides such 
 informa�on, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to 
 protect it. 

 ii.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 iii.  Authorize termina�on of the contract by the COUNTY, if the COUNTY determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 C.  Part II.  Other arrangements:  When the COUNTY and the  CONTRACTOR are both 
 governmental en��es, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 i.  It enters into a memorandum of understanding with the CONTRACTOR that 
 contains terms that accomplish the objec�ves of Part I.; or 

 16 



 ii.  Other  law  (including  regula�ons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objec�ves of Part I. 

 D.  If the CONTRACTOR is required by law to perform a func�on or ac�vity on behalf of 
 the COUNTY or to provide a service described in the defini�on of CONTRACTOR as 
 specified in § 160.103 of the regula�on to the COUNTY, the COUNTY may permit the 
 CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic Protected Health 
 Informa�on on its behalf to the extent necessary to comply with the legal mandate 
 without mee�ng the requirements of Part I., although the COUNTY will a�empt in 
 good faith to obtain sa�sfactory assurances as required by Part I. (A), and will 
 document the a�empt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if 
 not obtained. 

 17 



 EXHIBIT B: 

 POLK COUNTY CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
 PUBLIC HEALTH OFFICER 

 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 POLK  COUNTY,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon  and,  DR.  CAROLINE  CASTILLO, 
 hereina�er called “Contractor,” hereby agree to the following: 

 1.  STATEMENT  OF  SERVICES.  This  posi�on  meets  the  requirements  of  ORS  431.418  for  a 
 local health  department  to  have  a  physician  to  act  as  a  medical  director  to  the  medical 
 and  paramedical  aspects  of  public  health  programs.  This  posi�on  also  performs  a  Health 
 Officer  role  to  promote  popula�on  based  health.  Contractor  shall  perform  Medical 
 Director services as described below. 

 A.  GENERAL  INFORMATION.  Contractor  shall  provide  skilled  medical  consulta�on, 
 oversight  and  sign  standing  medical  orders  for  County’s  Public  Health  programs 
 (Family  Planning,  Immuniza�on,  WIC,  STD  and  General  Health  Clinics)  up  to  four 
 (4)  hours  per  month.  In  the  event  of  a  Public  Health  emergency,  Contractor  may 
 provide addi�onal  hours,  for  the  dura�on  of  the  emergency  and  as  mutually 
 agreed by both par�es.  

 B.  REQUIRED SERVICES, DELIVERABLES AND DELIVERY SCHEDULE.    

 i.  Provide  clinical  consulta�ons  and  medical  direc�on  to  public  health  staff 
 on-site  or  by  phone  regarding  individual  cases  and  outbreaks  of  Sexually 
 Transmi�ed  Infec�ons,  Immuniza�ons, HIV  Preven�on,  Communicable 
 Disease  Inves�ga�ons,  Tuberculosis,  Environmental   Health  and  Blood 
 borne  Pathogens  exposures.  This  includes  client  visits  when 
 medically appropriate. 

 ii.  Backup  the  Public  Health  Nurse  Prac��oner(s)  by  managing  specific 
 pa�ent cases that are beyond the scope of the Public Health Department. 

 iii.  Be  on-call  during  regular  office  hours  for  consulta�on  with  the  nurse  or 
 nurse  prac��oners  of  the  Public  Health  Department.  Contractor  agrees  to 
 return  calls  to  the  Public  Health  Department  within  thirty  (30)  minutes  of 
 contact  from  staff  for  urgent  cases,  and  within  sixty  (60)  minutes  of 
 contact from staff for non-urgent cases.  

 18 



 iv.  Develops,  reviews  and  approves  medical  standing  orders  and/or  reviews, 
 recommends revisions,  and  approves  State-developed  standing  orders  for 
 Clinic  services:  Sexually Transmi�ed  Infec�ons,  Immuniza�ons,  HIV 
 Preven�on,  Communicable  Disease Inves�ga�on,  Tuberculosis  treatment 
 and case management and Code Blue emergency response.  

 v.  Review  and  approve  Public  Health  Department  medical  policies, 
 procedures, and protocols, upon request. 

 vi.  Promotes  popula�on  health,  through  maintaining  effec�ve  rela�onships 
 with  physicians,   other  clinical  providers  and  organiza�ons,  represen�ng 
 Public  Health  in  a  professional  manner;  this  may  include  targeted 
 outreach  to  the   medical  community  and  providing  public  rela�ons  work 
 when  appropriate  at  community  presenta�ons  and  at  professional  and 
 civic group mee�ngs on public health issues. 

 vii.  A�end  and  par�cipate  in  the  quarterly  Public  Health  Advisory  Board 
 mee�ngs.  Typical  Health  Advisory  Board  mee�ngs  are  two  (2)  hours  in 
 dura�on. 

 viii.  A�end  at  least  two  (2)  monthly  staff  mee�ngs  annually  and  provide 
 in-service  training  to  staff  during  mee�ngs.  Typical  staff  mee�ngs  are  two 
 (2) hours in dura�on.  

 ix.  Provides  input  on  public  health  issues  in  the  department.  Upon  approval 
 by  the  County,  Contractor  may  be  asked  to  respond  to  media  requests  for 
 informa�on. 

 x.  Prescribe  and  dispense  medica�on,  if  applicable,  according  to  all  rules 
 governed  by  licensure,   Drug  Enforcement  administra�on  (DEA) 
 requirements  and/or  as  supported  by  professional   guidelines, 
 professional  publica�ons  or  as  meets  the  standards  of  care  in  the 
 community.  

 xi.  Provide  documenta�on  that  meets  Medicare,  Medicaid  and  other 
 contracted  insurance requirements  in  paper  or  electronic  form  according 
 to County policies and procedures. 

 xii.  Provide  a  qualified  on-call  physician  to  fulfill  the  du�es  of  the  Health 
 Officer in Contractor’s absence. 

 19 



 C.  SPECIAL  REQUIREMENTS.  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  and  shall 
 have  control over  the  means,  methods,  techniques,  sequences  and  procedures  of 
 performing  the  work,  subject  to the  plans  and  specifica�ons  under  this  Contract 
 and  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  the  errors  and omissions  of  Contractor’s 
 employees, subcontractors and agents.  

 Contractor  has  the  skill  and  knowledge  possessed  by  well-informed  members  of 
 its  industry,  trade  or profession  and  Contractor  will  apply  that  skill  and 
 knowledge  with  care  and  diligence  and  perform Services  in  a  �mely,  professional 
 and  workmanlike  manner  in  accordance  with  standards  applicable 
 to Contractor’s industry, trade or profession. 

 D.  METHOD  OF  PAYMENT  FOR  SERVICES.  County  shall  pay  Contractor  $760  per 
 month  based  on  a  maximum  regular  contract  expecta�on  of  4  hours  per  month, 
 paid  at  a  rate  of $190.00  per  hour  for  comple�ng  all  Services  required  under  this 
 Contract.  Upon  mutual  agreement  and  wri�en  approval,  monthly  hours  may  be 
 increased  on  a  temporary  basis  at  the  discre�on  of  Polk  County  Public  Health 
 Administrator at the hourly rate of $190/hr. 

 20 



Election to Allocate the State Payment

A countv's election to receive a pavment and to allocate the State pavment must be

transmitted bv the Governor's office or other aooropriate executive office of the state such

as State Treasurer. on behalf of the Governor. The Forest Service will not accept an election

directlv from a countv or from anv non-sovernmental nization actine on behalf of a

countv.

Election to Receive PaYment

The State must transmit, for each county in which a national forest is situated, the county's election to receive

a share of the Secure Rural Schools Act State payment or a share of the State's 25-percent payment based on

the 7-year rolling average annual receipts. The State may use this form to transmit county elections to the

Forest Service. lf the State fails to transmit a county's election by the deadline of August t,2023 (midnight,

mountain time), the countywill be considered to have elected to receive a share of the State payment.

To assist States and counties in making an informed decision between the Secure Rural Schools Act and the

i.908 Act Amended payment methods the Forest Service has created a worksheet with estimated pavment

amounts under both methods. These estimated State Payments are calculated using the formula described in

the Act and the currently available data for historic payments, acreage, per capita personal income and

assumes all affected counties will elect to receive a share of the State payment. The actual county shares of

the State payment will be calculated only for counties that elect to receive a share of the State payment or the

county payment (for BLM lands in western Oregon) and will be calculated using the updated acreage and per

capital personal income amounts available in the fall of FY2o23.

Election to Allocate the State Payment

Each county that elects to receive a share of the State payment must make an additional election to allocate

the State payment. The guidelines for making the allocation vary depending on the amount of the county

share of the State payment.

Page 1 of 5



a

a

a

$1OO,OO0 or less. (Minor distribution) An eligible county that elects to receive a share of the State

payment that is S1O0,0OO or less (a minor distribution) may elect to use 10O-percent of its share for

public roads and schools under Title l. A county that elects to receive a minor distribution must

make an affirmative election to use the lO0-percent of its share for Title I purposes. ln the

alternative, the county may opt to allocate L5-percent to 2O-percent of its share to Title ll, Title lll , or

a combination of both. The total percentage allocated to Title ll and Title lll combined must be no

less than L5-percent and no greater than 20-percent. The county also may opt to return its

allocation, in whole or part, to the Federal Government.

StOO,OOt to 5349,999 (Moderate distribution) lf the county share of the State payment is more

than 5100,000 but less than 5350,000, the county must allocate l5-percent to 20- percent of its

share to Title ll, Title lll, or a combination of both. The total percentage allocated to Title ll and/or

Titlelll mustbenolessthanL5-percentandnogreaterthan2O-percent. Thecountyalsomayopt
to return its allocation, in whole or part, to the Federal Government.

5350,000 or greater (Major distribution) lf the county share of the State payment is 5350,000 or

greater, the county must allocate l5-percent to 2O-percent of its share to Title ll, Title lll, or a

combination of both, except that the allocation for Title lll projects may not exceed 7-percent. The

total percentage allocated to Title ll and Title lll combined must be no less than L5-percent and no

greater than 2O-percent. The county also may opt to return its allocation, in whole or part, to the

Federal Government.

To provide maximum flexibility, projects funded underTitle ll must be initiated (reviewed and recommended

by a resource advisory committee) by September 30, 2025, and Title ll funds must be obligated by September

30,2026. ln addition, projects funded underTitle lll must be initiated by September 30, 2025, and Title lll

funds must be obligated by September 30, 2026.

An eligible county that fails to elect to allocate its share of the State payment shall be considered to have

elected to expend 8O-percent of the share for public schools and roads. The remaining 2O-percent will be

available to the Forest Service to carry out projects in the eligible county to further the purposes of Title ll'

Instructions for transmitting counfy elections.

ln the following table, each state and county name are already populated to assist in the preparation of the

form.

Enter an X in Column B for each county that elects to receive a share of the State's 25-percent payment (the 7-

year rolling average of national forest receipts). Enter an X in Column C for each county that elects to receive

a share of the Secure Rural Schools Act State payment.

For each county that elects to receive a share of the Secure Rural Schools Act State payment, refer to the

allocation guidelines above and then enter a numerical percentage to indicate the county's allocation of its

share of the State payment:

o Column D, enter the percent of county share of State payment to be allocated to public schools and

roads;

Page 2 of 5



o

o

a

Column E, enter the percent of county share of State payment to be allocated to title ll, Special

Projects on national forests;

Column F, enter the percent of county share of State payment to be allocated to title lll, County Funds

for uses authorized under title lll;

Column G, enter the percent of county share of State payment to be returned to the U.S. Treasury, if

any:

Election to Receive

Payment

Percent

for Title
lll,

County
Funds

Percent to
Return to

U.S.

Treasury

Percent
for Public
Schools &

Roads

(Title l)

Percent
forTitle ll,

Special

Projects

25-
percent of

7-year
rolling

average

receipts

Secure

Rural

Schools

Act State
payment

State Name:
Oreson

For eoch county with an X in Column C, enter a
percentage (number) in the columns below, not

to exceed L00totol

For eoch county enter X
in one of the columns

below
County Name

Column GColumn E Column FColumn C Column DColumn A Column B

Baker(001)

Benton(003)

Clackamas(005)

Columbia(009)

Coos(01L)

Crook(013)

Curry(015)

Deschutes(017)

Douglas(019)

Grant{023)

Harney(025)

Hood River(027)

!ackson(029)

lefferson(031)

Allocation of the Secure Rural Schools Act

State PaYment

Total of
Column

D, E, F,

G

Totol

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Page 3 of 5

0



Election to Receive

Payment

Percent
for Title

ilt,

County

Funds

Percent to
Return to

U.S.

Treasury

Secure

Rural

Schools

Act State
payment

Percent
for Public

Schools &
Roads

(Title l)

Percent
forTitle ll,

Special

Projects

25-
percent of

7-year
rolling

average

receipts

State Name:

Oregon

For each county with on X in Column C, enter o
percentage (number) in the columns below, not

to exceed 700totol

For eoch county enter X
in one of the columns

below
County Name

Column F Column GColumn C Column D Column EColumn BColumn A

Josephine(033)

Klamath(035)

Lake(037)

Lane(039)

Lincoln(041)

Linn(043)

Malheur(045)

Marion(047)

Morrow(049)

Multnomah(051)

08 7X 85Polk(053)

Iillamook(057)

Umatilla(059)

Union(061)

Wallowa(063)

Wasco(065)

Allocation of the Secure Rural Schools Act

State PaYment

Total of
Column

D, E, F,

G

Totol

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

100

0

0

0

0

0

Page 4 of 5



Election to Receive

Payment

Percent
for Title

ilt,

County
Funds

Percent to
Return to

U.S.

Treasury

Percent
for Public

Schools &
Roads

(Title r)

Percent
forTitle ll,

Special

Projects

25-
percent of

7-year
rolling

average
receipts

Secure

Rural

Schools

Act State
payment

OreRon

State Name:

For each county with an X in Column C, enter a
percentage (number) in the columns below, not

to exceed 700total

For each county enter X

in one of the columns
below

County Name

Column F Column GColumn D Column EColumn B Column CColumn A

Washington(057)

Wheeler(069)

Yamhill(071)

Allocation of the Secure Rural Schools Act

State PaYment

Total of
Column
D, E, F,

G

Totol

0

0

0

* *Required Contact Information**

Preparer's name and title:

Gregory P Hansen
Preparer's mailing address

Polk County Board of Commissioners
850 Main Street
Dallas, OR 97338Preparer's phone number:

503-623-8173

Preparer S ature
Preparer's email:

hansen.greg@co. polk.or.us

Page 5 of 5



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Behavioral Health  Consent Calendar Date:  July 05, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Lori Linton Nelson 

 Address:  PO BOX 886 

 City, State, Zip:  Aurora, OR 97002 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 01, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  Varies 

 Background: 

 Lori Linton Nelson has agreed to provide Behavioral Health services to referred Polk County 
 Behavioral Health individuals. 

 Discussion: 

 This contract is a continuation of services Lori Linton Nelson has been providing Polk County 
 individuals in the past fiscal years. Lori Linton Nelson meets the criteria for a service provider and 
 has been cleared to work with us through a criminal history records review. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Behavioral Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
 contract. The fiscal year 2023-2024 Behavioral Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this 
 agreement. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Lori Linton Nelson. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  06/22/23 

 CONTRACTOR  LORI LINTON NELSON 
 PO BOX 886 
 AURORA, OR 97002 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 CONTACT PERSON:  LORI LINTON NELSON 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide Nurse Prac��oner services as outlined in Exhibit 
 B. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM JULY 01, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2024 

 BUDGET LINE #:  240-8540-540-M83

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  VARIES 

 TERMS:  Service Rates per Exhibit B 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 23-127

mailto:HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us


 AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

 POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 a poli�cal subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereina�er referred to as "County" and 

 LORI LINTON NELSON 
 PO BOX 886 

 AURORA, OR 97002 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 hereina�er referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  is  authorized  to  obtain,  by  contract,  the  services  necessary  to  conduct  its 
 opera�on; and 

 WHEREAS,  Contractor  has  available,  or  can  obtain,  the  necessary  licenses  or  cer�ficates 
 required for the performance of said services; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  par�es  above-men�oned,  for  and 
 in considera�on of the mutual promises hereina�er stated as follows: 

 SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A.  The  County  is  desirous  of  securing  the  services  of  the  Contractor  to  perform  services 
 more  specifically  outlined  in  Exhibit  B:  Statement  of  Work,  based  on  Contractor’s 
 specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

 B.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  authorized  services  to  Polk  County  referrals  at  Contractor’s 
 facili�es,  Polk  County  Buildings  on  space  available  basis,  and/or  consumer’s  school 
 facility,  work  loca�on,  or  home  depending  upon  the  needs  of  the  individual.  Depending 
 on  the  nature  of  services  provided,  the  loca�on  of  services  may  be  curtailed  by  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement of Work. 

 C.  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the  document  en�tled  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement  of  Work,  which  is  a�ached  and  by  reference  herein,  made  an  integral  part  of 
 this Agreement. 

 1 



 SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

 A.  As  considera�on  for  the  services  provided  by  the  Contractor  during  the  period  beginning 
 July  1,  2023,  and  ending  June  30,  2024,  payment  shall  be  retroac�ve  for  approved 
 services  provided  to  Polk  County  referrals  on  or  a�er  the  period  beginning  date.  Any 
 renewals  and/or  changes  to  this  agreement  must  be  submi�ed  in  wri�ng,  in  the  form  of 
 an amendment to this Contract and signed by both Par�es. 

 B.  Agreement  is  effec�ve  upon  the  signature  of  all  par�es.  It  is  understood  by  both  par�es 
 that  no  commitments  have  been  or  are  made  by  either  party  beyond  the  termina�on  of 
 the Agreement. 

 C.  The  County  will  pay  to  the  Contractor,  by  check(s)  or  ACH  direct  payment  upon  receipt  of 
 an  authorized  billing  document  at  the  rates  outlined  in  Exhibit  B  and  as  approved  by  Polk 
 County.  Billings  shall  be  submi�ed  to  HS  Fiscal  either  electronically  to 
 hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us  or  by  mail  to  Polk  County  Health  Services  Business  Services 
 Department,  182  SW  Academy  Street  Suite  204,  Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  County  shall 
 endeavor  remit  payment  within  2-3  weeks  of  receipt  of  appropriate  billing,  suppor�ng 
 documenta�on and signed invoice. 

 D.  It  is  agreed  that  Contractor  shall  accept  payment  from  Polk  County  as  full  and  total 
 payment  for  services  and  that  Contractor  shall  not  bill  any  Polk  County  clients  (or  their 
 insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

 E.  Contractor  is  engaged  hereby  as  an  independent  contrac tor,  and  the  services  to  be 
 rendered  are  those  of  an  independent  contractor,  subject  to  ORS  Chapter  656,  and  will 
 be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

 i.  Contractor  will  be  solely  responsible  for  payment  of  any  Federal  or  State  taxes 
 required as a result of this Agreement. 

 ii.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  to  en�tle  Contractor  to  any  benefits  generally 
 granted  to  County  employees.  Without  limita�on,  but  by  way  of  illustra�on,  the 
 benefits  which  are  not  intended  to  be  extended  by  this  Agreement  to  the  Contractor 
 are  vaca�on,  holiday  and  sick  leave,  other  leaves  with  pay,  tenure,  medical  and 
 dental  coverage,  life  and  disability  insurance,  over�me,  Social  Security,  workers' 
 compensa�on, unemployment compensa�on or re�rement benefits . 

 iii.  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  for  purposes  of  the  Oregon  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  Law  (ORS  Chapter  656)  and  is  solely  liable  for  any  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  coverage  under  this  Agreement.  If  the  Contractor  has  the  assistance 

 2 

mailto:hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us


 of  other  persons  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  qualify 
 and  remain  qualified  for  the  term  of  this  Agreement  as  a  direct  responsibility 
 employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib u�ng employer under ORS 656.411. 

 F.  Exhibit  A  –  Business  Associate  Agreement  a�ached  hereto  is  by  this  reference 
 incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

 SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 A.  Extent  of  Agreement:  This  Agreement  contains  all  the  terms  and  condi�ons  agreed  upon 
 by  the  par�es.  No  other  understandings,  oral  or  otherwise,  regarding  the  subject  ma�er 
 of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the par�es hereto. 

 B.  Cap�ons:  The  cap�ons  or  headings  in  this  Agreement  are  for  convenience  only  and  in  no 
 way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 C.  Payment  as  Sole  Monetary  Obliga�on  of  the  County:  The  Contractor  is  engaged  as  an 
 independent  contractor.  Payment  as  provided  herein  shall  be  the  sole  monetary 
 obliga �on  of  the  County.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  responsi bility  for  payment  of 
 all  opera�ng  costs,  Federal,  State,  County  or  city  taxes/assessments  and  any  other 
 charges  imposed  by  law  upon  employers  shall  be  the  sole  responsibility  of  the 
 Contractor. 

 D.  Licensing  and  Program  Standards:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with  all  applicable 
 State,  County,  and  municipal  standards  for  licensing,  and  any  other  standards  or  criteria 
 described in this Agreement and its a�achments. 

 E.  Contractor-client  Rela�onship:  The  Contractor  will  establish  a  system  through  which  a 
 client  and/or  the  client’s  parents  or  guardian  may  represent  grievances  about  the 
 opera�on  of  the  Contractor’s  service  program.  At  the  �me  arrangements  are  made  for 
 the  Contractor’s  service,  the  Contractor  will  advise  the  child  and  parents  or  guardian  of 
 the provision.  The Contractor shall no�fy the County of all unresolved grievances. 

 F.  Safeguarding of Client Informa�on: 

 i.  The  use  or  disclosure  by  any  party  of  any  informa�on  concern ing  a  recipient  of 
 services  purchased  under  this  Agreement,  for  any  purpose  not  directly  connected 
 with  the  administra �on  of  the  County's  or  the  Contractor's  responsibili�es  with 
 respect  to  such  purchased  services,  is  prohibited,  except  on  wri�en  consent  of  the 
 County,  or  if  the  County  is  not  the  recipient,  on  wri�en  consent  of  the  recipient  or 
 a�orney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 3 



 ii.  For  the  purposes  of  safeguarding  protected  client  informa�on,  Contractor  agrees  to 
 abide  by  all  County  rules  and  regula�ons  regarding  Communica�on  technology  as 
 documented  in  the  County’s  Communica�ons  Technology  Policy.  Contractors 
 providing  services  from  a  County  facility  will  be  provided  appropriate  County 
 equipment  to  perform  its  du�es  under  this  agreement.  To  the  extent  that  Contractor 
 elects  to  use  their  own  technology  (computer,  cellular  phone,  etc…)  Contractor 
 warrants  that  such  equipment  shall  be  compliant  with  County  rules  and  regula�ons, 
 and its obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 G.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  and  Rehabilita�on  Act  of  1973:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply 
 with  the  requirements  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  and  Sec�on  504  of  the 
 Rehabilita �on  Act  of  1973,  and  their  implemen�ng  Federal  regula�ons,  including 
 Execu�ve Order 11246 as amended. 

 H.  Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

 i.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to 
 assure  full  compliance  with  Federal  regula�ons  and  the  County’s  guidelines  on 
 allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

 ii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  maintain  fiscal  records  consistent  with  generally  accepted 
 accoun�ng  prac�ces  and  controls,  which  will  properly  reflect  all  direct  and  indirect 
 costs  and  funds  expended  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor 
 shall  make  these  records  available  at  reasonable  �mes  upon  request  to  State  and 
 Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

 iii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  collect  financial  sta�s�cs  on  a  regular  basis  and  to  make 
 financial reports at �mes in the form prescribed by the County. 

 I.  Program  Records,  Controls,  Reports,  and  Monitoring  Procedures:  The  Contractor  agrees 
 to  maintain  program  records  including  sta�s�cal  records,  and  to  provide  program 
 records  to  the  County  at  �mes  and  in  the  form  prescribed  by  the  County.  The  Contractor 
 agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to  assure  full  compliance 
 with  the  program  and  facili�es  review  (including  mee�ngs  with  consumers,  reviews  of 
 service  records,  review  of  policy  and  procedures,  review  of  staffing  ra�os  and  job 
 descrip�ons,  and  mee�ngs  with  any  staff  directly  of  indirectly  involved  in  the  provision 
 of  services)  may  be  conducted  at  any  reasonable  �me  by  State  and  Federal  personnel 
 and other persons authorized by the County. 

 J.  Reten�on  of  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  retain  all  books,  records,  and  other 
 documents  relevant  to  this  Agreement  for  three  (3)  years  a�er  final  payment  is  made 

 4 



 under  the  Agreement  or  all  pending  ma�ers  are  closed,  whichever  is  later.  If  li�ga�on  or 
 other  ac�on  involving  the  Agreement  is  started  before  the  end  of  the  three  (3)  year 
 period,  the  records  shall  be  retained  un�l  all  issues  arising  out  of  the  ac�on  are  resolved 
 or un�l the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

 K.  Insurance: 

 i.  Contractor  agrees  that  it  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  agent  of  the 
 County.  The  Contractor  and  the  County  shall  not  be  responsible  for  any  legal  liability, 
 loss,  malprac�ce,  damages,  costs  and  expenses  arising  in  favor  of  any  person  on 
 account  of  personal  injuries,  death  or  property  loss  or  damage  occurring,  growing 
 out  of,  incident  to  or  resul�ng  directly  or  indirectly  from  the  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 other party under this Agreement. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  obtain,  and  at  all  �mes  keep  in  effect,  comprehensive  liability 
 insurance  and  property  damage  insurance  covering  ac�vi�es,  opera�ons,  and 
 omissions  of  the  Contractor,  all  subcontractors,  and  all  named  addi�onal  insureds. 
 Contractor  may  sa�sfy  this  requirement  for  general  liability  insurance  in  any  manner 
 allowed  by  ORS  30.282.  Such  liability  insurance,  whatever  the  form,  shall  be  in  an 
 amount  not  less  than  one  million  dollars  ($1,000,000)  with  provision  for  increased 
 coverage  as  such  limits  are  increased  by  legisla�ve  ac�on.  In  the  event  of  unilateral 
 cancella�on  or  restric�on  by  the  insurance  company  of  the  Contractor's  insurance 
 policy  referred  to  in  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor  shall  immediately  no�fy  the 
 County verbally and in wri�ng. 

 iii.  As  evidence  of  the  insurance  coverage  required  by  this  Agreement,  and  prior  to  the 
 execu�on  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  a  Cer�ficate  of  Insurance  to 
 Polk  County,  to  Polk  County  Health  Services,  182  SW  Academy  Street,  Suite  204, 
 Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  Cer�ficate  form,  to  be  completed  by  the  Contractor's 
 insurer,  naming  Polk  County  as  addi�onal  insured,  will  be  maintained  in  the  County's 
 file of this Agreement. 

 iv.  There  shall  not  be  any  cancella�on,  material  changes  or  failure  to  renew  such 
 insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior no�ce to the County. 

 L.  Subcontrac�ng:  Unless  subcontrac�ng  is  authorized  elsewhere  in  the  Agree ment,  the 
 Contractor  shall  not  enter  into  any  subcontracts  for  any  of  the  work  contemplated  under 
 this  Agreement  without  obtaining  prior  wri�en  approval  from  the  County,  which 
 approval  shall  be  a�ached  to  the  original  Agreement.  Approval  by  the  County  of  a 
 subcontract  shall  not  result  in  any  obliga�ons  of  the  County  in  addi�on  to  the  agreed 
 rates  of  payment  and  total  considera�on.  Any  subcontracts  which  the  County  may 

 5 



 authorize  shall  contain  all  requirements  of  this  Agreement,  and  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 responsible  for  the  performance  of  the  subcontractor.  Contractor  may  subcon tract 
 medical  inves�gator's  du�es  so  long  as  the  sub contractor  possesses  medical 
 qualifica�ons equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

 M.  Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on:  Any  altera�ons,  varia�ons,  modifica�ons  to  or  waivers 
 of  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  valid  only  when  they  have  been  reduced  to 
 wri�ng,  duly  signed,  and  approved  by  the  Contractor  and  the  County  and  a�ached  to 
 the original of this Agreement. 

 N.  Excuses  for  Nonperformance:  Neither  party  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  held  responsible 
 for  delay  or  failure  in  performance  of  the  ac�vi�es  required  herein  when  such  delay  or 
 failure  is  due  to  causes  beyond  the  control  and  without  the  fault  or  negligence  of  the 
 party.  Such  causes  may  include,  but  are  not  restricted  to,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  strikes, 
 acts  of  God  or  the  public  enemy,  unusually  severe  weather,  legal  acts  of  public 
 authori�es,  or  delays  or  defaults  caused  by  public  carriers,  which  cannot  reasonably  be 
 forecast  or  provided  against.  Either  party  may  terminate  the  Agreement  a�er 
 reasonably  determining  that  such  delay  or  failure  will  prevent  con�nued  performance  of 
 the  Agreement,  and  a�er  giving  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  other  party  of  the  cause,  its  effect 
 on  Agreement  performance  and  effec �ve  date  of  termina�on.  If  the  Agreement  is  so 
 terminated,  the  obliga�on  of  the  County  shall  be  limited  to  payment  for  services 
 provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of termina�on. 

 O.  Remedies:  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  or  perform  any  of  the  other 
 requirements  under  the  Contract,  and  such  failure  is  not  excused  under  the  paragraph 
 �tled  "Excuses  for  Nonperformance",  the  County,  a�er  giving  the  Contractor  wri�en 
 no�ce  of  such  failure,  may  withhold  part  or  all  of  the  Contractor's  payment  for  the 
 services  un�l  such  failure  is  corrected.  If  the  Contractor  does  not  correct  such  failure 
 within  a  reasonable  �me  allowed  by  the  County,  the  County  may  terminate  the 
 Agreement  in  accordance  with  the  clause  �tled  "Termina�on."  However,  this  paragraph, 
 and  any  ac�ons  taken  or  not  taken  under  it,  shall  not  affect  the  County's  rights  under  the 
 "Termina�on" clause. 

 P.  Termina�on:  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  par�es  or 
 unilaterally  by  both  par�es  at  any  �me  upon  thirty  (30)  days’  no�ce  to  the  other  party 
 in  wri�ng  and  delivered  personally  or  by  Cer�fied  Mail.  The  County  may  also  unilaterally 
 terminate  this  Agreement  effec�ve  upon  delivery  of  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  Contrac tor,  or 
 at  such  later  date  as  may  be  established  by  the  County,  under  any  of  the  following 
 condi�ons: 

 6 



 i.  If  funds,  specifically  authorized  by  Legisla�ve  acts,  do  not  become  available  in 
 amounts  sufficient  to  allow  for  purchase  of  the  stated  quan�ty  of  services.  When 
 possible  and  when  agreed  upon  by  the  par�es,  the  Agreement  may  be  modified  in 
 accordance  with  the  paragraph  en�tled  “Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on”  to 
 accommodate a reduc�on in funds. 

 ii.  If  Federal  or  State  laws,  regula�ons  or  guidelines  are  modified  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 Agreement  or  no  longer  qualify  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments  authorized  by 
 this Agreement. 

 iii.  If  any  license  or  cer�ficate  required  by  law  or  regula�on  to  be  held  by  the  Contractor 
 to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  Agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied,  revoked, 
 not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Contractor  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cer�ficate. 

 iv.  Termina�on  under  this  clause  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obliga�ons  or 
 liabili�es  of  either  party  already  reasonably  incurred  prior  to  such  termina�on, 
 except  that  the  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  its  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es 
 a�er  the  termina�on  date,  which  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es  result  from  the 
 Contractor's  failure  to  provide  for  termina�on  of,  or  exercises  the  right  to  terminate, 
 its  commitments.  No  right  of  ac�on  or  damages  shall  accrue  to  the  benefit  of  the 
 Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

 v.  The  County,  by  wri�en  no�ce  of  default  (including  breach  of  contract)  to  the 
 Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

 a.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  Agreement  within 
 the �me speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

 b.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  perform  any  of  the  other  requirements  of  this 
 Agreement; or 

 c.  If  the  Contractor  so  fails  to  perform  the  work  required  in  the  Agreement  that 
 performance  of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and 
 a�er  receipt  of  wri�en  no�ce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  correct  such  failure  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period 
 as the County may authorize. 

 vi.  If  the  Agreement  is  terminated  under  this  clause,  the  County's  obliga�ons  shall  be 
 limited  to  payment  for  services  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Agreement  prior  to 

 7 



 the  date  of  termina�on,  less  any  damages  suffered  by  the  County.  The  rights  and 
 remedies  of  the  County  in  this  clause  related  to  defaults  (including  breach  of 
 contract)  by  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  exclusive  and  are  in  addi�on  to  any  other 
 rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

 Q.  Hold  Harmless:  Except  for  claims  arising  in  whole  from  the  negligence  of  County,  its 
 employees  or  its  agents,  Contractor  agrees  to  indemnify  and  hold  County  harmless  from 
 and  against  all  ac�ons,  suits,  claims  and  demands  arising  out  of  Contractor’s 
 performance  under  this  Contract  and  agrees  to  defend  County  in  such  ac�ons,  suits, 
 claims and demands. 

 R.  Waiver  of  Default:  Waiver  of  any  default  shall  not  be  deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any 
 subsequent  default.  Waiver  of  breach  of  any  provision  of  the  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any  other  or  subsequent  breach  and  shall  not  be  construed  to 
 be  a  modifica�on  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement  unless  stated  to  be  such  in  wri�ng, 
 signed  by  an  authorized  representa�ve  of  the  County,  and  a�ached  to  the  original 
 Agreement in accordance with the paragraph en�tled "Re-nego�a�on or Modifica�on". 

 S.  Severability:  The  par�es  agree  that  if  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  declared 
 by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdic�on  to  be  illegal  or  in  conflict  with  any  law,  the  validity  of 
 the  remaining  terms  and  provisions  shall  not  be  affected,  and  the  rights  and  obliga�ons 
 of  the  par�es  shall  be  construed  and  enforced  as  if  the  Agreement  did  not  contain  the 
 par�cular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 T.  Fees  Prohibited:  The  Contractor  will  not  impose  or  demand  any  fees  from  any  person  or 
 agency  for  services  provided  and  paid  for  under  this  Agreement,  unless  the  fees  have 
 been approved in advance by the County in wri�ng. 

 U.  Non-Discrimina�on:  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  they  are  an  equal  opportunity 
 employer  and  no  person  shall  be  denied  services  or  discrimi nated  against  on  the  basis  of 
 race,  color,  religion,  sex,  sexual  orienta�on,  na�onal  origin,  marital  status  or  age,  and 
 there  shall  be  no  discrimina�on  in  the  selec�on,  compensa�on  or  the  employ ment 
 prac�ces with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

 V.  Assignment  of  Agreement:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  or  transfer  its  interest  in  this 
 Agreement  without  prior  wri�en  approval  of  the  County,  which  shall  be  a�ached  to  the 
 original  Agreement.  Any  such  assignment,  if  approved,  is  subject  to  such  condi�ons  and 
 provisions,  as  the  County  may  deem  necessary.  No  approval  by  the  County  of  any 
 assignment  or  transfer  of  interest  shall  be  deemed  to  create  any  obliga�on  of  the  county 
 in addi�on to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement considera�on. 

 8 



 W.  Funds  Authorized  and  Available:  The  County  cer�fies  that  at  the  �me  of  signing  this 
 Agree ment,  sufficient  funds  are  authorized  and  available,  or  are  an�cipated  to  be 
 available,  for  expenditure  to  finance  costs  of  this  Agreement  within  the  County's  current 
 appropri a�on or limita�on. 

 X.  Recovery  of  Overpayments:  If  billings  under  this  Agreement,  or  under  any  Agreement 
 between  the  Contractor  and  the  County,  result  in  payments  to  the  Contractor  for  which 
 the  Contractor  is  not  en�tled  under  the  terms  of  such  Agreement,  the  County,  a�er 
 giving  wri�en  no�fica�on  to  the  Contractor,  may  withhold  from  payments  due  to  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  such  amounts,  over  such  periods  of  �me,  as  are 
 necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

 Y.  Criminal  History  Records  Checks:  Contractor  agrees  to  authorize  a  review  of  state  and 
 federal  records  by  Polk  County  as  a  qualified  en�ty,  to  determine  the  nature  of  any 
 criminal  ac�vity  the  Contractor  may  have  been  involved  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 943-007-001  for  purposes  described  in  OAR  407-007-0400.  No  work  will  be  assigned  to 
 Contractor  un�l  a  Criminal  History  Check  is  completed  and  verified  by  the  qualified 
 en�ty.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  Polk  County  within  five  days  of  being  arrested,  charged,  or 
 convicted of any crime. 

 SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

 A.  Payment  of  Subcontractors,  Industrial  Accident  Fund  Contribu�ons,  Liens  and 
 Withholding Taxes: 

 1.  Contractor  shall  make  payment  promptly,  as  due,  to  all  persons  supplying  to  such 
 contractor  labor  or  material  for  the  prosecu�on  of  the  work  provided  for  in  this 
 contract. 

 2.  Contractor  shall  pay  all  contribu�ons  or  amounts  due  the  Industrial  Accident  Fund 
 from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 3.  Contractor  shall  not  permit  any  lien  or  claim  to  be  filed  or  prosecuted  against  the 
 state,  county,  school  district,  municipality,  Municipal  Corpora�on  or  subdivisions 
 thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

 4.  Contractor  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
 employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 B.  Payment  of  Claims  by  County  :  If  Contractor  fails,  neglects  or  refuses  to  make  prompt 
 payment  of  any  claim  for  labor  or  services  furnished  to  the  contractor  or  a  subcontractor 
 by  any  person  in  connec�on  with  the  public  contract  as  such  claim  becomes  due,  the 

 9 



 proper  officer  or  officers  represen�ng  Polk  County  may  pay  such  claim  to  the  person 
 furnishing  the  labor  or  services  and  charge  the  amount  of  payment  against  funds  due  or 
 to  become  due  the  Contractor  by  reason  of  this  contract.  Payment  of  a  claim  in  this 
 manner  shall  not  relieve  the  contractor  or  contractor’s  surety  from  obliga�on  with 
 respect to any unpaid claims. 

 C.  Hours  of  Labor:  All  laborers  providing  contract  services  shall  be  paid  at  least  �me  and  a 
 half  for  all  over�me  worked  in  excess  of  40  hours  in  any  one  week,  except  for  individuals 
 under  these  contracts  who  are  excluded  under  ORS  653.010  to  653.261  or  under  29  USC 
 sec�on 201 to 209 from receiving over�me. 

 D.  Payment  for  Medical  Care:  Contractor  shall  promptly,  as  due,  make  payment  to  any 
 person,  co-partnership,  associa�on  or  corpora�on,  furnishing  medical,  surgical  and 
 hospital  care  or  other  needed  care  and  a�en�on,  incident  to  sickness  or  injury,  to  the 
 employees  for  such  Contractor,  of  all  sums  which  the  Contractor  agrees  to  pay  for  such 
 services  and  all  moneys  and  sums  which  the  contractor  collected  or  deducted  from  the 
 wages  of  employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
 providing or paying such service. 

 E.  Providing  Workers’  Compensa�on  Insurance:  All  employers  working  under  this  contract 
 are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 F.  Health  Care  Benefits  for  Employees:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  health  care  benefits  to 
 all  employees  who  are  performing  services  previously  performed  by  public  employees  if 
 the  condi�ons  specified  in  ORS  653.767  require  such  payment.  Benefits  must  equal  or 
 exceed  those  benefits  specified  in  ORS  279.315(3).  This  clause  does  not  apply  to 
 contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

 G.  Americans  with  Disabili�es  Act  Compliance:  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor  will 
 comply  and  does  comply  with  all  relevant  provisions  of  the  Americans  with  Disabili�es 
 Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 10 



 SIGNATURE PAGE 

 BY SIGNATURE BELOW, both par�es agree to and accept all terms and condi�ons of this 
 Agreement between County and Contractor along with the following: 

 ●  Exhibit A: Business Associate Agreement 
 ●  Exhibit B: Statement of Work 

 CONTRACTOR 

 Signature  Date 
 Title: 

 COUNTY 

 Chair  Date 
 Board of Commissioners 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 Morgan Smith  Date 
 County Counsel 

 11 



 EXHIBIT A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 Between 
 POLK COUNTY  and LORI LINTON NELSON 

 1.  DEFINITIONS: 

 Except  as  otherwise  defined  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA  Agreement),  any 
 and  all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  defini�on  as  those  in  the  HIPAA 
 Privacy  Rule.  1  Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon, 
 shall  be  referred  to  as  “COUNTY”  and  Lori  Linton  Nelson,  shall  be  referred  to  as 
 “CONTRACTOR”. 

 2.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

 A.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on  other  than 
 as permi�ed or required by this BA Agreement or as permi�ed or required by law. 

 B.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health Informa�on other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 C.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  mi�gate,  to  the  extent  prac�cable,  any  harmful  effect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  by 
 CONTRACTOR in viola�on of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  not  provided  for  by  this  BA  Agreement  of  which  it  becomes 
 aware. 

 E.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restric�ons  and 
 condi�ons  that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to 
 such informa�on. 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa�on in performance of Business Associate func�ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden�fiable Health Informa�on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa�on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 12 



 F.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access, 
 at  the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the 
 COUNTY  or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the 
 requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 G.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for 
 reasonable compliance. 

 H.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  prac�ces,  books,  and  records,  including 
 policies  and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  rela�ng  to  the  use  and 
 disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary 
 of  the  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  �me  and  manner  agreed 
 between  the  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for 
 purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining  the  COUNTY’S  compliance  with  the  Privacy 
 Rule. 

 I.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on 
 and  informa�on  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to 
 respond  to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected 
 Health Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 J.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  �me  and 
 manner  necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informa�on  collected  in  accordance 
 with  sec�on  2.A  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a 
 request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 3.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in 
 this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on to 
 perform certain health plan func�ons for or on behalf of the COUNTY as specified in the 
 Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure 
 would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary 
 policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

 13 



 A.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any limita�on(s) in the  No�ce of Privacy 
 Prac�ces  of the COUNTY in accordance with 45 CFR  § 164.520, to the extent that 
 such limita�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 B.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any changes in, or revoca�on of, 
 permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on, to the 
 extent that such changes may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected 
 Health Informa�on. 

 C.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any restric�on to the use or disclosure of 
 Protected Health Informa�on that the COUNTY has agreed to in accordance with 45 
 CFR § 164.522, to the extent that such restric�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or 
 disclosure of Protected Health Informa�on. 

 5.  PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: The COUNTY shall not request CONTRACTOR to 
 use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on in any manner that would not be 
 permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY except if such use or 
 disclosure is permi�ed under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION: 

 A.  Term  . This BA Agreement shall be effec�ve as of July  01, 2023, and shall terminate 
 when all of the Protected Health Informa�on provided by the COUNTY to 
 CONTRACTOR, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY, is 
 destroyed or returned to the COUNTY, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy 
 Protected Health Informa�on, protec�ons are extended to such informa�on, in 
 accordance with the termina�on provisions in this Sec�on. 

 B.  Termina�on for Cause  . Upon the COUNTY’S knowledge  of a material breach by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 i.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to cure the breach without the 
 interven�on of the COUNTY within the �meline specified in Sec�on III (P) of the 
 Polk County Agreement; or 

 ii.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to terminate this BA Agreement and 
 the Polk County Agreement within the �meline specified in Sec�on III of the Polk 
 County Agreement. At the direc�on of its Board of Directors, the COUNTY may 
 terminate this BA Agreement and the Polk County Agreement as permi�ed in 

 14 



 Sec�on III of the Polk County Agreement if CONTRACTOR has not cured the 
 breach upon conclusion of the technical assistance and correc�ve ac�on 
 described in paragraph (i.) of this sec�on; or 

 iii.  If neither termina�on nor cure is feasible, the COUNTY shall report the viola�on 
 to the Secretary. 

 C.  Effect of Termina�on  . 

 i.  Except as provided in paragraph (ii.) of this sec�on, upon termina�on of this BA 
 Agreement, for any reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all Protected 
 Health Informa�on received from the COUNTY, or created or received by 
 CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY. This provision shall apply to Protected 
 Health Informa�on that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 
 CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall retain no copies of the Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 ii.  In the event that CONTRACTOR determines that returning or destroying the 
 Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the 
 COUNTY wri�en no�fica�on of the condi�ons that make return or destruc�on 
 infeasible. Upon wri�en acknowledgement by the COUNTY that the return or 
 destruc�on of Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall 
 extend the protec�ons of this BA Agreement to such Protected Health 
 Informa�on and limit further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health 
 Informa�on to those purposed that make the return or destruc�on infeasible, for 
 so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health Informa�on. 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS: 

 A.  Regulatory References  . References in this BA Agreement  to the Privacy Rule or any 
 sec�on of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or sec�on as in effect or as 
 amended. 

 B.  Amendment  . The COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree to take  such ac�on as is 
 necessary to amend this BA Agreement from �me to �me as is necessary for the 
 COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 C.  Survival  . The respec�ve rights and obliga�ons of  CONTRACTOR under Sec�on 6.C of 
 this BA Agreement shall survive the termina�on of this BA Agreement. 

 15 



 D.  Interpreta�on  . Any ambiguity in this BA Agreement shall be resolved to permit the 
 COUNTY to comply with the Privacy Rule. In the event of any inconsistency between 
 the provisions of this BA Agreement and the mandatory provisions of the Privacy 
 Rule, the Privacy Rule shall control. Where laws in the State of Oregon or other 
 federal law is more stringent than the Privacy Rule, the more stringent Oregon or 
 federal law shall control. 

 8.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

 A.  Background Requirement  : The COUNTY, in accordance  with § 164.306 and § 164.308 
 (b), may permit the CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic 
 Protected Health Informa�on on the COUNTY’S behalf only if the COUNTY obtains 
 sa�sfactory assurances, in accordance with § 164.314(a) that the CONTRACTOR will 
 appropriately safeguard the informa�on. The COUNTY must document the 
 sa�sfactory assurances through a wri�en contract or other arrangement with the 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 B.  Part I. Security Assurances  : The CONTRACTOR will Implement  administra�ve, 
 physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
 confiden�ality, integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health 
 informa�on that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the 
 COUNTY as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
 1996 and the requirements of Health Insurance Reform, the Security Standards 
 (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 i.  Ensure that any agent, including a SUBCONTRACTOR, to whom it provides such 
 informa�on, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to 
 protect it. 

 ii.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 iii.  Authorize termina�on of the contract by the COUNTY, if the COUNTY determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 C.  Part II.  Other arrangements:  When the COUNTY and the  CONTRACTOR are both 
 governmental en��es, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 i.  It enters into a memorandum of understanding with the CONTRACTOR that 
 contains terms that accomplish the objec�ves of Part I.; or 

 16 



 ii.  Other  law  (including  regula�ons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objec�ves of Part I. 

 D.  If the CONTRACTOR is required by law to perform a func�on or ac�vity on behalf of 
 the COUNTY or to provide a service described in the defini�on of CONTRACTOR as 
 specified in § 160.103 of the regula�on to the COUNTY, the COUNTY may permit the 
 CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic Protected Health 
 Informa�on on its behalf to the extent necessary to comply with the legal mandate 
 without mee�ng the requirements of Part I., although the COUNTY will a�empt in 
 good faith to obtain sa�sfactory assurances as required by Part I. (A), and will 
 document the a�empt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if 
 not obtained. 

 17 



 EXHIBIT B: 
 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 POLK  COUNTY,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon  and,  LORI  LINTON  NELSON, 
 hereina�er called “Contractor,” hereby agree to the following: 

 1.  STATEMENT OF SERVICES 

 A.  Contractor  agrees  to  work  within  scope,  training  and  experience  as  a  Licensed 
 Psychiatric  Nurse  Prac��oner,  to  provide  services,  support  and  training  that  meets  the 
 needs  of  both  Contractor  and  County  as  evidenced  by  the  Service  Authoriza�on  and 
 Ac�vity form. 

 B.  Contractor  shall  perform  all  services  deemed  necessary  in  their  professional  opinion 
 based  upon  their  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se  as  evidenced  in  the  applica�on 
 materials  and  other  professional  endorsements,  notwithstanding  any  limita�ons  set 
 forth in this agreement. 

 C.  Contractor  shall  only  use  methods  or  techniques  in  which  the  Contractor  has 
 documented  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se.  Contractor  will  ensure  services  provided 
 are  within  rules  and  guidelines  of  Oregon  Health  Authority,  Health  Services  Division: 
 Behavioral Health Services, Chapter 309-019 and the Oregon State Board of Nursing. 

 2.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 A.  Contractors  must  provide  primary  source  verifica�on  of  creden�als.  No  work  will  be 
 assigned  to  Contractors  who  render  direct  service  to  clients  or  pa�ents  un�l  creden�als 
 have been validated for Medicaid claims. 

 B.  Annual  requirements  mandate  that  the  Contractor  will  submit  a  conflict  of  Interest 
 Statement.  Contractor  queries  of  the  OIG  and  EPLS  List  of  Excluded  Individuals/En��es 
 database  will  also  be  performed  annually.  Bases  for  exclusion  include  convic�ons  for 
 program-related  fraud  and  pa�ent  abuse,  licensing  board  ac�ons  and  default  on  Health 
 Educa�on  Assistance  Loans.  It  is  the  expecta�on  that  the  Contractor  will  maintain 
 creden�aling  required  to  perform  job  du�es  in  good  standing.  It  is  the  responsibility  of 
 the  Contractor  to  report  any  circumstances  that  would  jeopardize  this  standing  or  lead 
 to exclusionary status. Failure to do so may lead to contract termina�on  . 

 C.  Contractor  agrees  to  report  cases  of  suspected  Medicaid,  Medicare  fraud,  waste,  or 
 abuse  to  the  PCBH  Compliance  Officer  at  503-623-9289.  If  there  is  reason  to  believe 
 that  PCBH  cannot  respond  appropriately  to  a  suspected  case  of  fraud,  waste,  or  abuse, 
 or  if  the  case  involves  PCBH,  then  Contractor  agrees  to  make  a  report  to  Ethicspoint  at 

 18 



 888-265-4068. 

 D.  County  may  conduct  performance  reviews  annually  to  assess  Contractor’s  performance 
 as it relates to the services required under this contract. 

 E.  Absences: 

 i.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  at  least  five  (5)  business  days  in  advance  for  all 
 an�cipated extended absences (i.e. vaca�ons, professional mee�ngs, etc.). 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  of  unplanned  absences  (ie:  illness  or  other 
 unforeseen events) at least one hour prior to expected work �me. 

 F.  Contractor  agrees  to  provide  10  business  day  no�ce  of  changes  to  their  clinic  schedule 
 availability. 

 G.  All  client  records  are  considered  the  property  of  the  County  and  shall  not  be  retained  by 
 the  Contractor.  Contractor  shall  have  all  service  notes  and  documenta�on  completed 
 within  three  business  days  of  service  encounter.  Contractor  shall  maintain  client/pa�ent 
 records and documenta�on within CMS guidelines. 

 H.  Contractor  may  elect  to  use  the  electronic  health  record  system  supported  by  the 
 County.  Contractor  shall  provide  County  with  a  Cer�ficate  of  Electronic  Health  Record 
 Technology  (CEHRT)  when  Contractor  elects  to  use  a  system  that  is  not  supported  by  the 
 County or Oregon Health Authority. 

 I.  Documents  that  are  required  for  billing  shall  be  submi�ed  three  days  a�er  the  close  of 
 business  on  the  last  weekday  of  each  month.  Documenta�on  found  to  be  out  of 
 compliance  with  County  and/or  State  guidelines  shall  be  corrected  within  ten  (10) 
 business days. 

 J.  Billable  service  notes  shall  meet  documenta�on  standards  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 309-019-0135 through 309-019-0145. 

 K.  Contractor  is  required  to  receive  two  hours  of  clinical  supervision  quarterly  ,  which  shall 
 include  at  least  one  hour  of  individual  face-to-face  contact  either  in  person  or  via 
 two-way  audio  visual  conferencing  from  a  qualified  clinical  supervisor.  Contractor  will  be 
 required  to  provide  documenta�on  of  supervision  received,  if  obtained  by  a  Clinical 
 Supervisor Outside of County. Failure to do so may lead to contract termina�on. 

 19 



 3.  AUTHORIZED SERVICES 

 A.  County  will  only  pay  for  service  and  ac�vi�es  that  have  been  pre  authorized  and  agreed 
 upon in wri�ng by both par�es on a Service and Ac�vity Authoriza�on Form. 

 B.  County  will  authorize  services  based  on  Level  of  Care  as  outlined  in  the  Individual 
 Service  Plan.  All  services  submi�ed  for  payment  must  be  supported  by  the  Individual 
 Service Plan and verified by the County to be compliant with applicable regula�ons. 

 4.  RATES AND METHOD OF PAY 

 A.  County  shall  reimburse  the  Contractor  at  the  rate  of  $155.00  per  hour  for  onsite  Clinic 
 Service  Hour  availability  and  a  rate  of  $140.00  per  hour  for  remote  Clinic  Service  Hour 
 availability,  as  outlined  in  the  Service  Ac�vity  Authoriza�on  form  with  Clinic  Service 
 Hours paid to the nearest quarter hour upon receipt of an invoice. 

 B.  County  will  have  no  legal  obliga�on  to  pay  for  any  unauthorized  services,  including 
 unauthorized expenditures. 

 20 



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Behavioral Health  Consent Calendar Date:  July 05, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Reva Vrana 

 Address:  2006 Stefon Court SE 

 City, State, Zip:  Salem, OR 97302 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 01, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  Varies 

 Background: 

 Reva Vrana has agreed to provide Behavioral Health services to referred Polk County Behavioral 
 Health individuals. 

 Discussion: 

 This contract is a continuation of services Reva Vrana has been providing Polk County individuals in 
 the past fiscal years. Reva Vrana meets the criteria for a service provider and has been cleared to 
 work with us through a criminal history records review. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Behavioral Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
 contract. The fiscal year 2023-2024 Behavioral Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this 
 agreement. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Reva Vrana. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  06/22/23 

 CONTRACTOR  REVA VRANA 
 2006 STEFON COURT SE 
 SALEM, OR 97302 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 CONTACT PERSON:  REVA VRANA 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide Nurse Prac��oner services as outlined in Exhibit 
 B. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM JULY 01, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2024 

 BUDGET LINE #:  240-8540-540-M83

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  VARIES 

 TERMS:  Service Rates per Exhibit B 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 23-128



 AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

 POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 a poli�cal subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereina�er referred to as "County" and 

 REVA VRANA 
 2006 STEFON COURT SE 

 SALEM, OR 97302 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 hereina�er referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  is  authorized  to  obtain,  by  contract,  the  services  necessary  to  conduct  its 
 opera�on; and 

 WHEREAS,  Contractor  has  available,  or  can  obtain,  the  necessary  licenses  or  cer�ficates 
 required for the performance of said services; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  par�es  above-men�oned,  for  and 
 in considera�on of the mutual promises hereina�er stated as follows: 

 SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A.  The  County  is  desirous  of  securing  the  services  of  the  Contractor  to  perform  services 
 more  specifically  outlined  in  Exhibit  B:  Statement  of  Work,  based  on  Contractor’s 
 specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

 B.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  authorized  services  to  Polk  County  referrals  at  Contractor’s 
 facili�es,  Polk  County  Buildings  on  space  available  basis,  and/or  consumer’s  school 
 facility,  work  loca�on,  or  home  depending  upon  the  needs  of  the  individual.  Depending 
 on  the  nature  of  services  provided,  the  loca�on  of  services  may  be  curtailed  by  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement of Work. 

 C.  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the  document  en�tled  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement  of  Work,  which  is  a�ached  and  by  reference  herein,  made  an  integral  part  of 
 this Agreement. 

 1 



 SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

 A.  As  considera�on  for  the  services  provided  by  the  Contractor  during  the  period  beginning 
 July  1,  2023,  and  ending  June  30,  2024,  payment  shall  be  retroac�ve  for  approved 
 services  provided  to  Polk  County  referrals  on  or  a�er  the  period  beginning  date.  Any 
 renewals  and/or  changes  to  this  agreement  must  be  submi�ed  in  wri�ng,  in  the  form  of 
 an amendment to this Contract and signed by both Par�es. 

 B.  Agreement  is  effec�ve  upon  the  signature  of  all  par�es.  It  is  understood  by  both  par�es 
 that  no  commitments  have  been  or  are  made  by  either  party  beyond  the  termina�on  of 
 the Agreement. 

 C.  The  County  will  pay  to  the  Contractor,  by  check(s)  or  ACH  direct  payment  upon  receipt  of 
 an  authorized  billing  document  at  the  rates  outlined  in  Exhibit  B  and  as  approved  by  Polk 
 County.  Billings  shall  be  submi�ed  to  HS  Fiscal  either  electronically  to 
 hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us  or  by  mail  to  Polk  County  Health  Services  Business  Services 
 Department,  182  SW  Academy  Street  Suite  204,  Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  County  shall 
 endeavor  remit  payment  within  2-3  weeks  of  receipt  of  appropriate  billing,  suppor�ng 
 documenta�on and signed invoice. 

 D.  It  is  agreed  that  Contractor  shall  accept  payment  from  Polk  County  as  full  and  total 
 payment  for  services  and  that  Contractor  shall  not  bill  any  Polk  County  clients  (or  their 
 insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

 E.  Contractor  is  engaged  hereby  as  an  independent  contrac tor,  and  the  services  to  be 
 rendered  are  those  of  an  independent  contractor,  subject  to  ORS  Chapter  656,  and  will 
 be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

 i.  Contractor  will  be  solely  responsible  for  payment  of  any  Federal  or  State  taxes 
 required as a result of this Agreement. 

 ii.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  to  en�tle  Contractor  to  any  benefits  generally 
 granted  to  County  employees.  Without  limita�on,  but  by  way  of  illustra�on,  the 
 benefits  which  are  not  intended  to  be  extended  by  this  Agreement  to  the  Contractor 
 are  vaca�on,  holiday  and  sick  leave,  other  leaves  with  pay,  tenure,  medical  and 
 dental  coverage,  life  and  disability  insurance,  over�me,  Social  Security,  workers' 
 compensa�on, unemployment compensa�on or re�rement benefits . 

 iii.  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  for  purposes  of  the  Oregon  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  Law  (ORS  Chapter  656)  and  is  solely  liable  for  any  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  coverage  under  this  Agreement.  If  the  Contractor  has  the  assistance 

 2 



 of  other  persons  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  qualify 
 and  remain  qualified  for  the  term  of  this  Agreement  as  a  direct  responsibility 
 employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib u�ng employer under ORS 656.411. 

 F.  Exhibit  A  –  Business  Associate  Agreement  a�ached  hereto  is  by  this  reference 
 incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

 SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 A.  Extent  of  Agreement:  This  Agreement  contains  all  the  terms  and  condi�ons  agreed  upon 
 by  the  par�es.  No  other  understandings,  oral  or  otherwise,  regarding  the  subject  ma�er 
 of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the par�es hereto. 

 B.  Cap�ons:  The  cap�ons  or  headings  in  this  Agreement  are  for  convenience  only  and  in  no 
 way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 C.  Payment  as  Sole  Monetary  Obliga�on  of  the  County:  The  Contractor  is  engaged  as  an 
 independent  contractor.  Payment  as  provided  herein  shall  be  the  sole  monetary 
 obliga �on  of  the  County.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  responsi bility  for  payment  of 
 all  opera�ng  costs,  Federal,  State,  County  or  city  taxes/assessments  and  any  other 
 charges  imposed  by  law  upon  employers  shall  be  the  sole  responsibility  of  the 
 Contractor. 

 D.  Licensing  and  Program  Standards:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with  all  applicable 
 State,  County,  and  municipal  standards  for  licensing,  and  any  other  standards  or  criteria 
 described in this Agreement and its a�achments. 

 E.  Contractor-client  Rela�onship:  The  Contractor  will  establish  a  system  through  which  a 
 client  and/or  the  client’s  parents  or  guardian  may  represent  grievances  about  the 
 opera�on  of  the  Contractor’s  service  program.  At  the  �me  arrangements  are  made  for 
 the  Contractor’s  service,  the  Contractor  will  advise  the  child  and  parents  or  guardian  of 
 the provision.  The Contractor shall no�fy the County of all unresolved grievances. 

 F.  Safeguarding of Client Informa�on: 

 i.  The  use  or  disclosure  by  any  party  of  any  informa�on  concern ing  a  recipient  of 
 services  purchased  under  this  Agreement,  for  any  purpose  not  directly  connected 
 with  the  administra �on  of  the  County's  or  the  Contractor's  responsibili�es  with 
 respect  to  such  purchased  services,  is  prohibited,  except  on  wri�en  consent  of  the 
 County,  or  if  the  County  is  not  the  recipient,  on  wri�en  consent  of  the  recipient  or 
 a�orney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 3 



 ii.  For  the  purposes  of  safeguarding  protected  client  informa�on,  Contractor  agrees  to 
 abide  by  all  County  rules  and  regula�ons  regarding  Communica�on  technology  as 
 documented  in  the  County’s  Communica�ons  Technology  Policy.  Contractors 
 providing  services  from  a  County  facility  will  be  provided  appropriate  County 
 equipment  to  perform  its  du�es  under  this  agreement.  To  the  extent  that  Contractor 
 elects  to  use  their  own  technology  (computer,  cellular  phone,  etc…)  Contractor 
 warrants  that  such  equipment  shall  be  compliant  with  County  rules  and  regula�ons, 
 and its obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 G.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  and  Rehabilita�on  Act  of  1973:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply 
 with  the  requirements  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  and  Sec�on  504  of  the 
 Rehabilita �on  Act  of  1973,  and  their  implemen�ng  Federal  regula�ons,  including 
 Execu�ve Order 11246 as amended. 

 H.  Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

 i.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to 
 assure  full  compliance  with  Federal  regula�ons  and  the  County’s  guidelines  on 
 allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

 ii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  maintain  fiscal  records  consistent  with  generally  accepted 
 accoun�ng  prac�ces  and  controls,  which  will  properly  reflect  all  direct  and  indirect 
 costs  and  funds  expended  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor 
 shall  make  these  records  available  at  reasonable  �mes  upon  request  to  State  and 
 Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

 iii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  collect  financial  sta�s�cs  on  a  regular  basis  and  to  make 
 financial reports at �mes in the form prescribed by the County. 

 I.  Program  Records,  Controls,  Reports,  and  Monitoring  Procedures:  The  Contractor  agrees 
 to  maintain  program  records  including  sta�s�cal  records,  and  to  provide  program 
 records  to  the  County  at  �mes  and  in  the  form  prescribed  by  the  County.  The  Contractor 
 agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to  assure  full  compliance 
 with  the  program  and  facili�es  review  (including  mee�ngs  with  consumers,  reviews  of 
 service  records,  review  of  policy  and  procedures,  review  of  staffing  ra�os  and  job 
 descrip�ons,  and  mee�ngs  with  any  staff  directly  of  indirectly  involved  in  the  provision 
 of  services)  may  be  conducted  at  any  reasonable  �me  by  State  and  Federal  personnel 
 and other persons authorized by the County. 

 J.  Reten�on  of  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  retain  all  books,  records,  and  other 
 documents  relevant  to  this  Agreement  for  three  (3)  years  a�er  final  payment  is  made 

 4 



 under  the  Agreement  or  all  pending  ma�ers  are  closed,  whichever  is  later.  If  li�ga�on  or 
 other  ac�on  involving  the  Agreement  is  started  before  the  end  of  the  three  (3)  year 
 period,  the  records  shall  be  retained  un�l  all  issues  arising  out  of  the  ac�on  are  resolved 
 or un�l the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

 K.  Insurance: 

 i.  Contractor  agrees  that  it  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  agent  of  the 
 County.  The  Contractor  and  the  County  shall  not  be  responsible  for  any  legal  liability, 
 loss,  malprac�ce,  damages,  costs  and  expenses  arising  in  favor  of  any  person  on 
 account  of  personal  injuries,  death  or  property  loss  or  damage  occurring,  growing 
 out  of,  incident  to  or  resul�ng  directly  or  indirectly  from  the  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 other party under this Agreement. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  obtain,  and  at  all  �mes  keep  in  effect,  comprehensive  liability 
 insurance  and  property  damage  insurance  covering  ac�vi�es,  opera�ons,  and 
 omissions  of  the  Contractor,  all  subcontractors,  and  all  named  addi�onal  insureds. 
 Contractor  may  sa�sfy  this  requirement  for  general  liability  insurance  in  any  manner 
 allowed  by  ORS  30.282.  Such  liability  insurance,  whatever  the  form,  shall  be  in  an 
 amount  not  less  than  one  million  dollars  ($1,000,000)  with  provision  for  increased 
 coverage  as  such  limits  are  increased  by  legisla�ve  ac�on.  In  the  event  of  unilateral 
 cancella�on  or  restric�on  by  the  insurance  company  of  the  Contractor's  insurance 
 policy  referred  to  in  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor  shall  immediately  no�fy  the 
 County verbally and in wri�ng. 

 iii.  As  evidence  of  the  insurance  coverage  required  by  this  Agreement,  and  prior  to  the 
 execu�on  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  a  Cer�ficate  of  Insurance  to 
 Polk  County,  to  Polk  County  Health  Services,  182  SW  Academy  Street,  Suite  204, 
 Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  Cer�ficate  form,  to  be  completed  by  the  Contractor's 
 insurer,  naming  Polk  County  as  addi�onal  insured,  will  be  maintained  in  the  County's 
 file of this Agreement. 

 iv.  There  shall  not  be  any  cancella�on,  material  changes  or  failure  to  renew  such 
 insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior no�ce to the County. 

 L.  Subcontrac�ng:  Unless  subcontrac�ng  is  authorized  elsewhere  in  the  Agree ment,  the 
 Contractor  shall  not  enter  into  any  subcontracts  for  any  of  the  work  contemplated  under 
 this  Agreement  without  obtaining  prior  wri�en  approval  from  the  County,  which 
 approval  shall  be  a�ached  to  the  original  Agreement.  Approval  by  the  County  of  a 
 subcontract  shall  not  result  in  any  obliga�ons  of  the  County  in  addi�on  to  the  agreed 
 rates  of  payment  and  total  considera�on.  Any  subcontracts  which  the  County  may 

 5 



 authorize  shall  contain  all  requirements  of  this  Agreement,  and  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 responsible  for  the  performance  of  the  subcontractor.  Contractor  may  subcon tract 
 medical  inves�gator's  du�es  so  long  as  the  sub contractor  possesses  medical 
 qualifica�ons equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

 M.  Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on:  Any  altera�ons,  varia�ons,  modifica�ons  to  or  waivers 
 of  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  valid  only  when  they  have  been  reduced  to 
 wri�ng,  duly  signed,  and  approved  by  the  Contractor  and  the  County  and  a�ached  to 
 the original of this Agreement. 

 N.  Excuses  for  Nonperformance:  Neither  party  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  held  responsible 
 for  delay  or  failure  in  performance  of  the  ac�vi�es  required  herein  when  such  delay  or 
 failure  is  due  to  causes  beyond  the  control  and  without  the  fault  or  negligence  of  the 
 party.  Such  causes  may  include,  but  are  not  restricted  to,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  strikes, 
 acts  of  God  or  the  public  enemy,  unusually  severe  weather,  legal  acts  of  public 
 authori�es,  or  delays  or  defaults  caused  by  public  carriers,  which  cannot  reasonably  be 
 forecast  or  provided  against.  Either  party  may  terminate  the  Agreement  a�er 
 reasonably  determining  that  such  delay  or  failure  will  prevent  con�nued  performance  of 
 the  Agreement,  and  a�er  giving  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  other  party  of  the  cause,  its  effect 
 on  Agreement  performance  and  effec �ve  date  of  termina�on.  If  the  Agreement  is  so 
 terminated,  the  obliga�on  of  the  County  shall  be  limited  to  payment  for  services 
 provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of termina�on. 

 O.  Remedies:  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  or  perform  any  of  the  other 
 requirements  under  the  Contract,  and  such  failure  is  not  excused  under  the  paragraph 
 �tled  "Excuses  for  Nonperformance",  the  County,  a�er  giving  the  Contractor  wri�en 
 no�ce  of  such  failure,  may  withhold  part  or  all  of  the  Contractor's  payment  for  the 
 services  un�l  such  failure  is  corrected.  If  the  Contractor  does  not  correct  such  failure 
 within  a  reasonable  �me  allowed  by  the  County,  the  County  may  terminate  the 
 Agreement  in  accordance  with  the  clause  �tled  "Termina�on."  However,  this  paragraph, 
 and  any  ac�ons  taken  or  not  taken  under  it,  shall  not  affect  the  County's  rights  under  the 
 "Termina�on" clause. 

 P.  Termina�on:  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  par�es  or 
 unilaterally  by  both  par�es  at  any  �me  upon  thirty  (30)  days’  no�ce  to  the  other  party 
 in  wri�ng  and  delivered  personally  or  by  Cer�fied  Mail.  The  County  may  also  unilaterally 
 terminate  this  Agreement  effec�ve  upon  delivery  of  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  Contrac tor,  or 
 at  such  later  date  as  may  be  established  by  the  County,  under  any  of  the  following 
 condi�ons: 

 6 



 i.  If  funds,  specifically  authorized  by  Legisla�ve  acts,  do  not  become  available  in 
 amounts  sufficient  to  allow  for  purchase  of  the  stated  quan�ty  of  services.  When 
 possible  and  when  agreed  upon  by  the  par�es,  the  Agreement  may  be  modified  in 
 accordance  with  the  paragraph  en�tled  “Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on”  to 
 accommodate a reduc�on in funds. 

 ii.  If  Federal  or  State  laws,  regula�ons  or  guidelines  are  modified  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 Agreement  or  no  longer  qualify  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments  authorized  by 
 this Agreement. 

 iii.  If  any  license  or  cer�ficate  required  by  law  or  regula�on  to  be  held  by  the  Contractor 
 to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  Agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied,  revoked, 
 not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Contractor  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cer�ficate. 

 iv.  Termina�on  under  this  clause  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obliga�ons  or 
 liabili�es  of  either  party  already  reasonably  incurred  prior  to  such  termina�on, 
 except  that  the  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  its  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es 
 a�er  the  termina�on  date,  which  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es  result  from  the 
 Contractor's  failure  to  provide  for  termina�on  of,  or  exercises  the  right  to  terminate, 
 its  commitments.  No  right  of  ac�on  or  damages  shall  accrue  to  the  benefit  of  the 
 Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

 v.  The  County,  by  wri�en  no�ce  of  default  (including  breach  of  contract)  to  the 
 Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

 a.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  Agreement  within 
 the �me speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

 b.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  perform  any  of  the  other  requirements  of  this 
 Agreement; or 

 c.  If  the  Contractor  so  fails  to  perform  the  work  required  in  the  Agreement  that 
 performance  of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and 
 a�er  receipt  of  wri�en  no�ce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  correct  such  failure  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period 
 as the County may authorize. 

 vi.  If  the  Agreement  is  terminated  under  this  clause,  the  County's  obliga�ons  shall  be 
 limited  to  payment  for  services  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Agreement  prior  to 

 7 



 the  date  of  termina�on,  less  any  damages  suffered  by  the  County.  The  rights  and 
 remedies  of  the  County  in  this  clause  related  to  defaults  (including  breach  of 
 contract)  by  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  exclusive  and  are  in  addi�on  to  any  other 
 rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

 Q.  Hold  Harmless:  Except  for  claims  arising  in  whole  from  the  negligence  of  County,  its 
 employees  or  its  agents,  Contractor  agrees  to  indemnify  and  hold  County  harmless  from 
 and  against  all  ac�ons,  suits,  claims  and  demands  arising  out  of  Contractor’s 
 performance  under  this  Contract  and  agrees  to  defend  County  in  such  ac�ons,  suits, 
 claims and demands. 

 R.  Waiver  of  Default:  Waiver  of  any  default  shall  not  be  deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any 
 subsequent  default.  Waiver  of  breach  of  any  provision  of  the  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any  other  or  subsequent  breach  and  shall  not  be  construed  to 
 be  a  modifica�on  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement  unless  stated  to  be  such  in  wri�ng, 
 signed  by  an  authorized  representa�ve  of  the  County,  and  a�ached  to  the  original 
 Agreement in accordance with the paragraph en�tled "Re-nego�a�on or Modifica�on". 

 S.  Severability:  The  par�es  agree  that  if  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  declared 
 by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdic�on  to  be  illegal  or  in  conflict  with  any  law,  the  validity  of 
 the  remaining  terms  and  provisions  shall  not  be  affected,  and  the  rights  and  obliga�ons 
 of  the  par�es  shall  be  construed  and  enforced  as  if  the  Agreement  did  not  contain  the 
 par�cular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 T.  Fees  Prohibited:  The  Contractor  will  not  impose  or  demand  any  fees  from  any  person  or 
 agency  for  services  provided  and  paid  for  under  this  Agreement,  unless  the  fees  have 
 been approved in advance by the County in wri�ng. 

 U.  Non-Discrimina�on:  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  they  are  an  equal  opportunity 
 employer  and  no  person  shall  be  denied  services  or  discrimi nated  against  on  the  basis  of 
 race,  color,  religion,  sex,  sexual  orienta�on,  na�onal  origin,  marital  status  or  age,  and 
 there  shall  be  no  discrimina�on  in  the  selec�on,  compensa�on  or  the  employ ment 
 prac�ces with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

 V.  Assignment  of  Agreement:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  or  transfer  its  interest  in  this 
 Agreement  without  prior  wri�en  approval  of  the  County,  which  shall  be  a�ached  to  the 
 original  Agreement.  Any  such  assignment,  if  approved,  is  subject  to  such  condi�ons  and 
 provisions,  as  the  County  may  deem  necessary.  No  approval  by  the  County  of  any 
 assignment  or  transfer  of  interest  shall  be  deemed  to  create  any  obliga�on  of  the  county 
 in addi�on to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement considera�on. 

 8 



 W.  Funds  Authorized  and  Available:  The  County  cer�fies  that  at  the  �me  of  signing  this 
 Agree ment,  sufficient  funds  are  authorized  and  available,  or  are  an�cipated  to  be 
 available,  for  expenditure  to  finance  costs  of  this  Agreement  within  the  County's  current 
 appropri a�on or limita�on. 

 X.  Recovery  of  Overpayments:  If  billings  under  this  Agreement,  or  under  any  Agreement 
 between  the  Contractor  and  the  County,  result  in  payments  to  the  Contractor  for  which 
 the  Contractor  is  not  en�tled  under  the  terms  of  such  Agreement,  the  County,  a�er 
 giving  wri�en  no�fica�on  to  the  Contractor,  may  withhold  from  payments  due  to  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  such  amounts,  over  such  periods  of  �me,  as  are 
 necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

 Y.  Criminal  History  Records  Checks:  Contractor  agrees  to  authorize  a  review  of  state  and 
 federal  records  by  Polk  County  as  a  qualified  en�ty,  to  determine  the  nature  of  any 
 criminal  ac�vity  the  Contractor  may  have  been  involved  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 943-007-001  for  purposes  described  in  OAR  407-007-0400.  No  work  will  be  assigned  to 
 Contractor  un�l  a  Criminal  History  Check  is  completed  and  verified  by  the  qualified 
 en�ty.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  Polk  County  within  five  days  of  being  arrested,  charged,  or 
 convicted of any crime. 

 SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

 A.  Payment  of  Subcontractors,  Industrial  Accident  Fund  Contribu�ons,  Liens  and 
 Withholding Taxes: 

 1.  Contractor  shall  make  payment  promptly,  as  due,  to  all  persons  supplying  to  such 
 contractor  labor  or  material  for  the  prosecu�on  of  the  work  provided  for  in  this 
 contract. 

 2.  Contractor  shall  pay  all  contribu�ons  or  amounts  due  the  Industrial  Accident  Fund 
 from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 3.  Contractor  shall  not  permit  any  lien  or  claim  to  be  filed  or  prosecuted  against  the 
 state,  county,  school  district,  municipality,  Municipal  Corpora�on  or  subdivisions 
 thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

 4.  Contractor  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
 employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 B.  Payment  of  Claims  by  County  :  If  Contractor  fails,  neglects  or  refuses  to  make  prompt 
 payment  of  any  claim  for  labor  or  services  furnished  to  the  contractor  or  a  subcontractor 
 by  any  person  in  connec�on  with  the  public  contract  as  such  claim  becomes  due,  the 

 9 



 proper  officer  or  officers  represen�ng  Polk  County  may  pay  such  claim  to  the  person 
 furnishing  the  labor  or  services  and  charge  the  amount  of  payment  against  funds  due  or 
 to  become  due  the  Contractor  by  reason  of  this  contract.  Payment  of  a  claim  in  this 
 manner  shall  not  relieve  the  contractor  or  contractor’s  surety  from  obliga�on  with 
 respect to any unpaid claims. 

 C.  Hours  of  Labor:  All  laborers  providing  contract  services  shall  be  paid  at  least  �me  and  a 
 half  for  all  over�me  worked  in  excess  of  40  hours  in  any  one  week,  except  for  individuals 
 under  these  contracts  who  are  excluded  under  ORS  653.010  to  653.261  or  under  29  USC 
 sec�on 201 to 209 from receiving over�me. 

 D.  Payment  for  Medical  Care:  Contractor  shall  promptly,  as  due,  make  payment  to  any 
 person,  co-partnership,  associa�on  or  corpora�on,  furnishing  medical,  surgical  and 
 hospital  care  or  other  needed  care  and  a�en�on,  incident  to  sickness  or  injury,  to  the 
 employees  for  such  Contractor,  of  all  sums  which  the  Contractor  agrees  to  pay  for  such 
 services  and  all  moneys  and  sums  which  the  contractor  collected  or  deducted  from  the 
 wages  of  employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
 providing or paying such service. 

 E.  Providing  Workers’  Compensa�on  Insurance:  All  employers  working  under  this  contract 
 are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 F.  Health  Care  Benefits  for  Employees:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  health  care  benefits  to 
 all  employees  who  are  performing  services  previously  performed  by  public  employees  if 
 the  condi�ons  specified  in  ORS  653.767  require  such  payment.  Benefits  must  equal  or 
 exceed  those  benefits  specified  in  ORS  279.315(3).  This  clause  does  not  apply  to 
 contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

 G.  Americans  with  Disabili�es  Act  Compliance:  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor  will 
 comply  and  does  comply  with  all  relevant  provisions  of  the  Americans  with  Disabili�es 
 Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 10 



 SIGNATURE PAGE 

 BY SIGNATURE BELOW, both par�es agree to and accept all terms and condi�ons of this 
 Agreement between County and Contractor along with the following: 

 ●  Exhibit A: Business Associate Agreement 
 ●  Exhibit B: Statement of Work 

 CONTRACTOR 

 Signature  Date 
 Title: 

 COUNTY 

 Chair  Date 
 Board of Commissioners 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 Morgan Smith  Date 
 County Counsel 

 11 

6/29/23

PMHNP



 EXHIBIT A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 Between 
 POLK COUNTY  and REVA VRANA 

 1.  DEFINITIONS: 

 Except  as  otherwise  defined  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA  Agreement),  any 
 and  all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  defini�on  as  those  in  the  HIPAA 
 Privacy  Rule.  1  Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon, 
 shall  be  referred  to  as  “COUNTY”  and  REVA  VRANA,  shall  be  referred  to  as 
 “CONTRACTOR”. 

 2.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

 A.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on  other  than 
 as permi�ed or required by this BA Agreement or as permi�ed or required by law. 

 B.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health Informa�on other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 C.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  mi�gate,  to  the  extent  prac�cable,  any  harmful  effect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  by 
 CONTRACTOR in viola�on of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  not  provided  for  by  this  BA  Agreement  of  which  it  becomes 
 aware. 

 E.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restric�ons  and 
 condi�ons  that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to 
 such informa�on. 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa�on in performance of Business Associate func�ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden�fiable Health Informa�on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa�on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 12 



 F.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access, 
 at  the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the 
 COUNTY  or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the 
 requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 G.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for 
 reasonable compliance. 

 H.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  prac�ces,  books,  and  records,  including 
 policies  and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  rela�ng  to  the  use  and 
 disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary 
 of  the  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  �me  and  manner  agreed 
 between  the  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for 
 purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining  the  COUNTY’S  compliance  with  the  Privacy 
 Rule. 

 I.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on 
 and  informa�on  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to 
 respond  to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected 
 Health Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 J.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  �me  and 
 manner  necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informa�on  collected  in  accordance 
 with  sec�on  2.A  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a 
 request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 3.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in 
 this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on to 
 perform certain health plan func�ons for or on behalf of the COUNTY as specified in the 
 Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure 
 would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary 
 policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 13 



 4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

 A.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any limita�on(s) in the  No�ce of Privacy 
 Prac�ces  of the COUNTY in accordance with 45 CFR  § 164.520, to the extent that 
 such limita�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 B.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any changes in, or revoca�on of, 
 permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on, to the 
 extent that such changes may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected 
 Health Informa�on. 

 C.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any restric�on to the use or disclosure of 
 Protected Health Informa�on that the COUNTY has agreed to in accordance with 45 
 CFR § 164.522, to the extent that such restric�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or 
 disclosure of Protected Health Informa�on. 

 5.  PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: The COUNTY shall not request CONTRACTOR to 
 use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on in any manner that would not be 
 permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY except if such use or 
 disclosure is permi�ed under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION: 

 A.  Term  . This BA Agreement shall be effec�ve as of July  01, 2023, and shall terminate 
 when all of the Protected Health Informa�on provided by the COUNTY to 
 CONTRACTOR, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY, is 
 destroyed or returned to the COUNTY, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy 
 Protected Health Informa�on, protec�ons are extended to such informa�on, in 
 accordance with the termina�on provisions in this Sec�on. 

 B.  Termina�on for Cause  . Upon the COUNTY’S knowledge  of a material breach by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 i.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to cure the breach without the 
 interven�on of the COUNTY within the �meline specified in Sec�on III (P) of the 
 Polk County Agreement; or 

 ii.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to terminate this BA Agreement and 
 the Polk County Agreement within the �meline specified in Sec�on III of the Polk 
 County Agreement. At the direc�on of its Board of Directors, the COUNTY may 

 14 



 terminate this BA Agreement and the Polk County Agreement as permi�ed in 
 Sec�on III of the Polk County Agreement if CONTRACTOR has not cured the 
 breach upon conclusion of the technical assistance and correc�ve ac�on 
 described in paragraph (i.) of this sec�on; or 

 iii.  If neither termina�on nor cure is feasible, the COUNTY shall report the viola�on 
 to the Secretary. 

 C.  Effect of Termina�on  . 

 i.  Except as provided in paragraph (ii.) of this sec�on, upon termina�on of this BA 
 Agreement, for any reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all Protected 
 Health Informa�on received from the COUNTY, or created or received by 
 CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY. This provision shall apply to Protected 
 Health Informa�on that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 
 CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall retain no copies of the Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 ii.  In the event that CONTRACTOR determines that returning or destroying the 
 Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the 
 COUNTY wri�en no�fica�on of the condi�ons that make return or destruc�on 
 infeasible. Upon wri�en acknowledgement by the COUNTY that the return or 
 destruc�on of Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall 
 extend the protec�ons of this BA Agreement to such Protected Health 
 Informa�on and limit further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health 
 Informa�on to those purposed that make the return or destruc�on infeasible, for 
 so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health Informa�on. 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS: 

 A.  Regulatory References  . References in this BA Agreement  to the Privacy Rule or any 
 sec�on of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or sec�on as in effect or as 
 amended. 

 B.  Amendment  . The COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree to take  such ac�on as is 
 necessary to amend this BA Agreement from �me to �me as is necessary for the 
 COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 C.  Survival  . The respec�ve rights and obliga�ons of  CONTRACTOR under Sec�on 6.C of 
 this BA Agreement shall survive the termina�on of this BA Agreement. 

 15 



 D.  Interpreta�on  . Any ambiguity in this BA Agreement shall be resolved to permit the 
 COUNTY to comply with the Privacy Rule. In the event of any inconsistency between 
 the provisions of this BA Agreement and the mandatory provisions of the Privacy 
 Rule, the Privacy Rule shall control. Where laws in the State of Oregon or other 
 federal law is more stringent than the Privacy Rule, the more stringent Oregon or 
 federal law shall control. 

 8.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

 A.  Background Requirement  : The COUNTY, in accordance  with § 164.306 and § 164.308 
 (b), may permit the CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic 
 Protected Health Informa�on on the COUNTY’S behalf only if the COUNTY obtains 
 sa�sfactory assurances, in accordance with § 164.314(a) that the CONTRACTOR will 
 appropriately safeguard the informa�on. The COUNTY must document the 
 sa�sfactory assurances through a wri�en contract or other arrangement with the 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 B.  Part I. Security Assurances  : The CONTRACTOR will Implement  administra�ve, 
 physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
 confiden�ality, integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health 
 informa�on that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the 
 COUNTY as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
 1996 and the requirements of Health Insurance Reform, the Security Standards 
 (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 i.  Ensure that any agent, including a SUBCONTRACTOR, to whom it provides such 
 informa�on, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to 
 protect it. 

 ii.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 iii.  Authorize termina�on of the contract by the COUNTY, if the COUNTY determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 C.  Part II.  Other arrangements:  When the COUNTY and the  CONTRACTOR are both 
 governmental en��es, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 i.  It enters into a memorandum of understanding with the CONTRACTOR that 
 contains terms that accomplish the objec�ves of Part I.; or 

 16 



 ii.  Other  law  (including  regula�ons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objec�ves of Part I. 

 D.  If the CONTRACTOR is required by law to perform a func�on or ac�vity on behalf of 
 the COUNTY or to provide a service described in the defini�on of CONTRACTOR as 
 specified in § 160.103 of the regula�on to the COUNTY, the COUNTY may permit the 
 CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic Protected Health 
 Informa�on on its behalf to the extent necessary to comply with the legal mandate 
 without mee�ng the requirements of Part I., although the COUNTY will a�empt in 
 good faith to obtain sa�sfactory assurances as required by Part I. (A), and will 
 document the a�empt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if 
 not obtained. 

 17 



 EXHIBIT B: 
 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 POLK  COUNTY,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon  and,  REVA  VRANA,  hereina�er 
 called “Contractor,” hereby agree to the following: 

 1.  STATEMENT OF SERVICES 

 A.  Contractor  agrees  to  work  within  scope,  training  and  experience  as  a  Licensed 
 Psychiatric  Nurse  Prac��oner,  to  provide  services,  support  and  training  that  meets  the 
 needs  of  both  Contractor  and  County  as  evidenced  by  the  Service  Authoriza�on  and 
 Ac�vity form. 

 B.  Contractor  shall  perform  all  services  deemed  necessary  in  their  professional  opinion 
 based  upon  their  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se  as  evidenced  in  the  applica�on 
 materials  and  other  professional  endorsements,  notwithstanding  any  limita�ons  set 
 forth in this agreement. 

 C.  Contractor  shall  only  use  methods  or  techniques  in  which  the  Contractor  has 
 documented  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se.  Contractor  will  ensure  services  provided 
 are  within  rules  and  guidelines  of  Oregon  Health  Authority,  Health  Services  Division: 
 Behavioral Health Services, Chapter 309-019 and the Oregon State Board of Nursing. 

 2.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 A.  Contractors  must  provide  primary  source  verifica�on  of  creden�als.  No  work  will  be 
 assigned  to  Contractors  who  render  direct  service  to  clients  or  pa�ents  un�l  creden�als 
 have been validated for Medicaid claims. 

 B.  Annual  requirements  mandate  that  the  Contractor  will  submit  a  conflict  of  Interest 
 Statement.  Contractor  queries  of  the  OIG  and  EPLS  List  of  Excluded  Individuals/En��es 
 database  will  also  be  performed  annually.  Bases  for  exclusion  include  convic�ons  for 
 program-related  fraud  and  pa�ent  abuse,  licensing  board  ac�ons  and  default  on  Health 
 Educa�on  Assistance  Loans.  It  is  the  expecta�on  that  Contractor  will  maintain 
 creden�aling  required  to  perform  job  du�es  in  good  standing.  It  is  the  responsibility  of 
 the  Contractor  to  report  any  circumstances  that  would  jeopardize  this  standing  or  lead 
 to exclusionary status. Failure to do so may lead to contract termina�on  . 

 C.  Contractor  agrees  to  report  cases  of  suspected  Medicaid,  Medicare  fraud,  waste,  or 
 abuse  to  the  PCBH  Compliance  Officer  at  503-623-9289.  If  there  is  reason  to  believe 
 that  PCBH  cannot  respond  appropriately  to  a  suspected  case  of  fraud,  waste,  or  abuse, 
 or  if  the  case  involves  PCBH,  then  Contractor  agrees  to  make  a  report  to  Ethicspoint  at 

 18 



 888-265-4068. 

 D.  County  may  conduct  performance  reviews  annually  to  assess  Contractor’s  performance 
 as it relates to the services required under this contract. 

 E.  Absences: 

 i.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  at  least  five  (5)  business  days  in  advance  for  all 
 an�cipated extended absences (i.e. vaca�ons, professional mee�ngs, etc.). 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  of  unplanned  absences  (ie:  illness  or  other 
 unforeseen events) at least one hour prior to expected work �me. 

 F.  Contractor  agrees  to  provide  10  business  day  no�ce  of  changes  to  their  clinic  schedule 
 availability. 

 G.  All  client  records  are  considered  the  property  of  the  County  and  shall  not  be  retained  by 
 the  Contractor.  Contractor  shall  have  all  service  notes  and  documenta�on  completed 
 within  three  business  days  of  service  encounter.  Contractor  shall  maintain  client/pa�ent 
 records and documenta�on within CMS guidelines. 

 H.  Contractor  may  elect  to  use  the  electronic  health  record  system  supported  by  the 
 County.  Contractor  shall  provide  County  with  a  Cer�ficate  of  Electronic  Health  Record 
 Technology  (CEHRT)  when  Contractor  elects  to  use  a  system  that  is  not  supported  by  the 
 County or Oregon Health Authority. 

 I.  Documents  that  are  required  for  billing  shall  be  submi�ed  three  days  a�er  the  close  of 
 business  on  the  last  weekday  of  each  month.  Documenta�on  found  to  be  out  of 
 compliance  with  County  and/or  State  guidelines  shall  be  corrected  within  ten  (10) 
 business days. 

 J.  Billable  service  notes  shall  meet  documenta�on  standards  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 309-019-0135 through 309-019-0145. 

 K.  Contractor  is  required  to  receive  two  hours  of  clinical  supervision  quarterly  ,  which  shall 
 include  at  least  one  hour  of  individual  face-to-face  contact  either  in  person  or  via 
 two-way  audio  visual  conferencing  from  a  qualified  clinical  supervisor.  Contractor  will  be 
 required  to  provide  documenta�on  of  supervision  received,  if  obtained  by  a  Clinical 
 Supervisor Outside of County. Failure to do so may lead to contract termina�on. 

 19 



 3.  AUTHORIZED SERVICES 

 A.  County  will  only  pay  for  service  and  ac�vi�es  that  have  been  pre  authorized  and  agreed 
 upon in wri�ng by both par�es on a Service and Ac�vity Authoriza�on Form. 

 B.  County  will  authorize  services  based  on  Level  of  Care  as  outlined  in  the  Individual 
 Service  Plan.  All  services  submi�ed  for  payment  must  be  supported  by  the  Individual 
 Service Plan and verified by County to be compliant with applicable regula�ons. 

 4.  RATES AND METHOD OF PAY 

 A.  County  shall  reimburse  the  Contractor  at  the  rate  of  $155.00  per  hour  for  onsite  Clinic 
 Service  Hour  availability  and  a  rate  of  $140.00  per  hour  for  remote  Clinic  Service  Hour 
 availability,  as  outlined  in  the  Service  Ac�vity  Authoriza�on  form  with  Clinic  Service 
 Hours paid to the nearest quarter hour upon receipt of an invoice. 

 B.  County  will  have  no  legal  obliga�on  to  pay  for  any  unauthorized  services,  including 
 unauthorized expenditures. 

 20 



Pox CouNrY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

POLK COUNTY
POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338
(s03) 623-92s7

AUSTIN M"GUIGAN
Director

TO Board of Commissioners

FROM: Austin McGuigan, Solid Waste Administrator; Christina Tisdell, Env. I{ealth

DATE: June30,2023

SUBJECT: Order # 23-09 - Solid Waste Rate Increase

Wednesday. July 5.2023 - Consenl

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Order No. 23-09 to ratifu the Hearings Officer's decision for a
solid waste rate increase for Recology Western Oregon.

ISSUE: Should arate increase for solid waste collection service be approved for Recology

Western Oregon?

BACKGROUND: Recology has proposed a rate increase to offset rising operating costs and

declining revenue. Recology is proposing a residential rate adjustment increase of 5Yo.

The Hearings Officer conducted the public hearing on Friday June23,2023. The Hearing

Officer's recommendation is attached with findings, conclusions and recommendations. Based

on the staff report and the testimony received at the hearing, the Hearing Officer has

recommended the rate increase. Unless a majority of the Board wants to open the record, your

decision, pursuant to Polk County Code Chapter 70, must be based on the record developed
through the hearing held on Friday June 23, 2023.

DISCUSSION / ALTERNATIVES:

i. Ratify rate increases as proposed by Recology.
2. Modify the Hearing Officer's decision.
3. Rescind the Hearing Officer's decision.
4. Remand the decision back to the Hearing Officer for reconsideration.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Recology will impact approximately 1273 customers by increasing their solid waste collection
service rates by 5 o%. Rates are proposed to be effective August I,2023.



Page 1 or 2 

 

 1 

 2 

 3 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR 4 

POLK COUNTY, OREGON 5 

 6 

 7 

In the matter of Solid Waste Collection ) 8 

Rate Increase by Recology Western Oregon ) 9 

 10 

 11 

ORDER NO. 23-09 12 

 13 

 14 

  WHEREAS, the above matter came before the Polk County Board of Commissioners as a 15 

decision from the Polk County Hearings Officer for approval of a solid waste collection rate increase 16 

for Recology Western Oregon Waste; and 17 

 18 

WHEREAS, Polk County Code Chapter 70 regulates the criteria and procedures for a rate 19 

increase request; and   20 

 21 

WHEREAS, the Polk County Hearings Officer conducted a public hearing on this matter on 22 

June 3, 2022; and  23 

 24 

WHEREAS, the Polk County Hearings Officer considered the information provided by the 25 

applicant and staff report and recommendation provided by the Solid Waste Administrator; and 26 

 27 

WHEREAS, the Polk County Hearings Officer found that the rate increase will be just, fair, 28 

reasonable, and sufficient to provide service to the public; now, therefore: 29 

 30 

THE POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ORDERS AS FOLLOWS: 31 

 32 

Sec.1 The application for a solid waste collection rate increase for Recology Western Oregon 33 

Waste is ratified. 34 

 35 

Sec.2 The findings labeled as EXHIBIT A and conclusions and rate schedule as determined by 36 

the Hearings Officer are hereby adopted. 37 

 38 

Sec.3 The effective date of August 1, 2023, as determined by the Hearings Officer is ratified. 39 

 40 

41 



Page 2 or 2 

 

Dated this 5th day of July, 2023, at Dallas, Oregon. 1 

 2 

 3 

 4 

 5 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 6 

 7 

 8 

 9 

____________________________________ 10 

Jeremy Gordon, Chair 11 

 12 

 13 

____________________________________ 14 

Craig Pope, Commissioner 15 

 16 

 17 

____________________________________ 18 

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 

 23 

 24 

 25 

Approved as to Form 26 

 27 

 28 

________________ 29 

Morgan Smith 30 

County Counsel 31 

 32 

 33 

 34 

 35 

 36 

 37 

 38 

 39 

 40 

 41 

 42 

 43 

 44 

 45 

 46 



EXHIBIT A

BEFORE THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
FOR POLK COUNTY, OREGON

In the Matter of the Application of:

Recology Western Oregon
ORDER RE: APPLTCATION FOR

ANNUAL RATE INCREASE
(PCCO CH.70)

I. SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS

Recology Western Oregon ("Recology"), a Polk County Solid Waste Collection Franchisee, has
requested a rate increase for solid waste collection services pursuant to Polk County Code of
Ordinances (PCCO) 70.0801. Recology serves approximately 1,273 customers in rural Polk
County. Residential customers account for approximately 54/% of operations by seruice, drop
box customers account for approximately 29.7yo, commercial customers account for
approximately 5.3Yo, while other services account for the remaining I0.6%. The last rate increase
by Recology was on August I,2022, when the combined rate increase of lI% was approved along
with an increase of 61.43o/o in the debris box disposal fees.

Recology applied for the current annual rate adjustment on April 1,2023. On May 16,2023,
Recology submitted additional documents that included Polk County's application form,
Recology's rate case narrative, 2023 Pro Forma, and projected lease expenses. Recology's
proposed calculated rate adjustment request is a cornbined rate adjustment of 5o/, for solid waste
collection (cans, carts, and yard boxes) for commercial and residential.

Polk County Code of Ordinances (PCCO) Chapter 70.0801 allows a Solid Waste Collection
Franchisee to apply for an annual rate increase. The Polk County Board of Commissioners
designated I{earings Officer may approve and establish rates filed by applicants for franchises if
it finds that such rates are not demonstratively unreasonable and are not substantially higher than
those charged generally in the County under similar service requirements and for the same or
similar quality of service, or it may establish a different rate schedule. The Hearings Officer may
also increase or decrease rates based on the cost ofdoing business.

II. PUBLIC HEARING
A duly advertised public hearing was held in the Polk County Courthouse on June 23,2023.
Recology was represented by its employees, Dan Blue and Ernie Marlin. The Hearings Officer
announced that she had no interest (financial or personal) in the matter nor any ex parte contact
with any involved party. Staff summarized its report. Recology employees agreed with the Staff
Repoft's recommendation and provided additional information about Recology's business. There
was no one in attendance who wished to speak for or against the application. There was no request
for a continuance, or for the Record to be left open for submission of further evidence. There
being no further business, the Ilearings Officer declared the Record closed and adjourned the
meeting. Leslie l{owell, Polk County l{earings Officer, presided. She has authority to make a
recommendation to the Board of Commissioners on this matter.

III. APPLICABLE LAW
In determining rates, the Administrator and the Hearings Officer shall make a finding that the rates
will be just, fair, reasonable, and sufficient to provide proper service to the public. The
Administrator and the Ilearing Officer may consider rates charged by other persons performing

Page 1 of 4 - Order re: Recology Westem Oregon (2023)



the same or similar service in the same or other areas. The Administrator and the Hearings Officer
shall give due consideration to:

(a) The investment in facilities and equipment.

(b) The services of management.

(c) Local wage scales.

(d) The concentration of customers in the area served.

(e) Methods of storage, collection, transportation and disposal, salvage, recycling, or
reuse.

(0 A reasonable return to the franchisee.

(g) The length of haul to disposal facilities.

(h) The cost of disposal.

(i) The use of transfer stations or transfer systems and the added costs.

fi) The cost of alternate methods of disposal.

(k) The future service demands of the service area or disposal site which must be' - 
anticipated in equipment, facilities, personnel, or land.

(l) Extra charges for special pickups or pickups on days where service is not normally
provided on a collection route.

(m)Extra charges where the type or character of waste or solid w.as-tg, in-cJuding but not' 'limited to fastes with pecriliarly offensive odors, requires special handling or service.

(n) Extra charges for providing janitorial services on the premises where service is
provided.

(o) In addition, with respect to disposal sites, the type of site, qhe!\gr the -site 
is open to' ' the public, 6nd hourq type of waste disposed of, and method of disposal.

(p) Cost of compliance with laws, ordinances or regulations and rules of public agencies
or bodies having jurisdiction.

(q) Other factors that may, in the opinion of the Administrator and the Board, necessarily
affect the rates to be charged.

IV. FINDINGS

Polk County has previously considered the rate determination factors listed above in establishing
the collection rates for this franchise area. Recology is proposing a 5%o rate increase adjustment
for residential, commercial, and drop box services. Recology has identified business services that
require rnore income to offset the cost of doing business as the reason for the reques.ted increase.

Recology is not proposing a change to any other type of services offered. Recology_has.1o!
identifieil future iervice demands that would justify a rate increase. Recology has not identified
any changes to laws, ordinances or regulations that have increased the cost of compliance-
Recology has identified inflationary increase in fuel, labor, and disposal cost as well as general

cost of-doing business as justification for the proposed rate increase. Recology is also requesting
a reasonable returrr to the franchisee.

Annual average inflation based on the Urban Consumer Price Index (CPI-U) for West Size Class
B/C increasedq.gyobetween 2022 and2023. Recology's net income before tax as percent of sales

for tlre rural Polk County portion of their eamings has increased from -0.72% in202l to 4.59o/o

during the 2022 fiscal y6ai. ZOZZ actual results indicate that,the largest expenses were combined
operalional costs. From 2021 to 2022, the total direct cost of operations only increasedby 

-1.-16%
but disposal cost increased by 9.46%. The 2023 Recology ProFotma projects that the total direct
cost of operations will increas e by l3o/o from 2022 to 2023. Disposal costs are projected to go up

Page 2 of 4 Order re: Recology Westem Oregon (2023)



23.2%.In addition, Recology's total administrative costs rncreased by 8.3% trom 2U2l to
Recology's 2023 ProForma projects that the total administrative costs will increase by 15.4%.
Recology projects that, with the proposed rate increase, the net income as a percent of sales before
tax would increase to 8.160/o from 4.59o/o earned in 2022. Without the rate increase, the net income
as a percent of sales before tax is projected tobe 4.73o/o.

In summary, the combined operational costs are projected to increase by 13%. The total
administrative costs are projected to increase by 15.4%. Staff finds, and the Hearings Officer
concurs that a projected 8.16% refurn as percent of sales is reasonable to the franchisee and
consistent with the projected retums for other Polk County Franchisees. The cost of disposal,
wages, and management services are all factors that the Hearings Officer considers when making
arate increase determination. The Flearings Officer finds that Recology has demonstrated that the
cost of doing business has increased.

The Hearings Officer and the Board may compare rates charged by others performing the same or
similar service in the same or other areas. Attached to the Staff Report are rate comparison charts
compiled by Polk County Staff to review other solid waste collection rates both inside and
surrounding Polk County. The surrounding counties included in this comparison are Benton,
Lincoln, Marion, Tillamook, Yamhill and Washington.

A review of the Recology's proposed rural rate strucfure finds that their proposed container rates
are higher than the average of the franchisees in Polk County but are lower than the surrounding
counties solid waste collection rates. In pafticular, the average rural rates within Polk County but
outside the Recology franchisearea are $18.93 for a32135-gallon cart and $33.96 for a 9O-gallon
cart. Recology is proposing $22.97 for a 32-gallon cart and $38.26 for the 9O-gallon cart.
Recology's proposed 32-gallon aarli rate and 9O-gallon cart rate are 21.32% and 12.670/o higher
than the avetage Polk County Franchise rates respectfully. The average rates in surrounding
counties arc $26.2I for a 32135-gallon cart and 546.52 for a 9O-gallon carl. Recology's proposed
rates for the32l35-gallon and 90/95-gallon carts are 12.360/o and 17.75o/r less than the surrounding
counties. The Hearings Officer finds the proposed rural residential rates are just, fair, and
reasonable compared to other Polk County franchises in the local area.

Recology's proposed rural rate for a2-yard drop box container is on average 62.20% higher than
other Polk County franchises and 1 I.I7% higher than surrounding counties. Staff finds, and the
Hearings Officer concurs, that the franchise area served by Recology is distant, rual, and more
disperse than other franchise areas in Polk County when considering drop box customers. In
addition, the closure of Riverbend Landfill in202l directly impacted Recology's cost of disposal.
They are unable to direct haul the drop box waste to the Landfill. There is additional handling of
this waste at tlieir transfer station, higher transportation costs associated with travel distances,
higher labor costs, and higher operational costs. A higher drop box rate compared to other Polk
County franchise areas is justified. The Hearings Officer finds that the proposed drop box rates are
similar to those charged in surrounding counties. The Hearings Officer finds the proposed rural
rates are just, fair and reasonable when compared to other Polk County franchises in the local area
and to rates in surrounding counties.

V. CONCLUSIONS

Based on the analysis above, Staff and the Hearings Officer find justification in approving a rate
adjustment at this time as the cost of doing business has increased. Recology is requesttnga5o/o
increase across all senrices which is comparable to the 4.9Yo Bureau of Labor CPI-U statistic for
inflation between 2022 and2023. Recology's proposed drop box rates are substantially higher
than what other Polk County franchisees charge; but only slightly higher than the average rates in
surrounding counties. Recology's proposed container rates are higher than the average solid waste
collection rates in Polk County; but lower than the surrounding counties average solid waste

Page 3 of 4 - Order re: Recology Westem Oregon (2023)



collection rates. Recology projects that, without the proposed rate increase, the net income as a
percent of sales before tii fbr ihe rural Polk County portion of their business would be 4.73o/o for
2023; up from 4.59% in2022. With the proposed rate adjustment increase, Recology projects an

8.16% return.

Recology applied for the current annual rate adjustment on April 1,2023. ICCO 70.0801(3)
providiJthif an untr,,al rate increase must be submitted 90 days prior tothe effective date of the
proposed rate change. Thus, the Hearings Officers finds an effective date of August l, 2023,
satisfi es this requirement.

VI. RECOMMENDATION

Based on the findings in this repoft, the Hearings Officer concludes that the proposed rate increase

is just, fair, reasona6le, and sufficient to provide proper serice to the public and a reasonable rate
of return for the franchisee.

The Hearings Officer recommends that the Board of Commissioners APPROVE the proposed rate
adjustment effective 08 I 0l /23.

This 30 day of June ,2023.

/-t/t* r</r^r"//

Leslie I-Iowell
Dallas, Oregon
Polk County Flearings Officer

Page 4 of 4 - Order re: Recology Westem Oregon (2023)



BEFORE THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
FOR POLK COUNTY, OREGON

In the Matter of the Application of:

Recology Western Oregon
ORDER RE: APPLICATION FOR

ANNUAL RATE INCREASE
(PCCO CH.70)

I. SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS

Recology Westem Oregon ("Recology"), a Polk County Solid Waste Collection Franchisee, has-

requested a rate increaie for solid *aste collection services pursuant to Polk County C9d3 9f
Ordinances (PCCO) 70.0801. Recology serves approximately 1,273 customers in rural Polk
County. Residential customers account for approximately 54.4% of operations by service, drop
box customers account for approximately 29.7oA, commercial customers account for
approximately 5.3o/o, while other services account for the remaining IA.6%. The last rate increase
by Recology was on August 1,2022, when the combined rate increase of llYo was approved along
with an increase of 61.43% in the debris box disposal fees.

Recology applied for the curent annual rate adjustment on April 1,2023. On May 16, 2023,
Recology dribmitted additional documents that included Polk County's application _form,
Recology's rate case nanative, 2023 Pro Forrna, and projected lease expenses. Recology's
proposed calculated rate adjustment request is a combined rate adjustment of 5o/o for solid waste
Collection (cans, carts, and yard boxes) for commercial and residential.

Polk County Code of Ordinances (PCCO) Chapter' 70.0801 allows a Solid Waste Collection
Franchisee io apply for an annual rate increase. The Polk County Board of Commissioners
designated I{earings Officer may approve and establish rates filed by applicants for franchises if
it finds that such rates are not demonstratively unreasonable and are not substantially higher than
those charged generally in the County under similar service requirements and for the same or
similar quitity of serviie, or it may establish a different rate schedule. The Hearings Officer may
also increase or decrease rates based on the cost ofdoing business.

II. PUBLIC HEARING

A duly advertised public hearing was held in the Polk County Courthouse on June 23,2q.n.
Recology was reprisented by its-employees, Dan Blue and Emie Martin. The Hearings Officer
announced that she had no interest (financial or personal) in the matter nor any ex parte contac_t

with any involved party. Staff summarized its report. Recology employees agreed with the Staff
Reporl's recommeirdation and provided additional information about Recology's business. There
was no one in attendance who wished to speak for or against the application. There was no request
for a continuance, or for the Record to be left open for submission of further evidence. There
being no further business, the Hearings Officer declared the Record closed and adjoumed. the
meetlng. Leslie IJowell, Polk County Ilearings Officer, presided. She has authority to make a

recommendation to the Board of Commissioners on this matter.

III. APPLICABLE LAW

In determining rates, the Administrator and the Ilearings Officer shall make a finding that the rates
will be just, fair, reasonable, and sufficient to provide proper service to the public. The
Adminisirator and the Hearing Officer may consider rates charged by other persons performing

Page 1 of 4 - Order re: Recology Western Oregon (2023)



the same or similar service in the same or otirer areas. The Administrator and the Ilearings Officer
shall give due consideration to:

(a) The investment in facilities and equipment.

(b) The services of management.

(c) Local wage scales.

(d) The concentration of customers in the area served.

(e) Methods of storage, collection, transportation and disposal, salvage, recycling, or
reuse.

(f) A reasonable return to the franchisee.

(g) The length of haul to disposal facilities.

(h) The cost of disposal.

(i) The use of transfer stations or transfer systems and the added costs.

fi) The cost of alternate methods of disposal.

(k) The future service demands of the service area or disposal site which must be' ' anticipated in equipment, facilities, personnel, or land.

(l) Extra charges for special pickups or pickups on days where service is not normally
provided on a collection route.

(m)Extra charges where the type or character of waste or solid was_te, including but not' 'limited to w-astes with pecriliarly offensive odors, requires special handling or service.

(n) Extra charges for providing janitorial services on the premises where service is
provided.

(o) ln addition, u'ith respect to disposal sites, the type of sitq, w-heth-er the site is open to' ' ihe public, dnd hours, type of waste disposed of, and method of disposal.

(p) Cost of compliance with laws, ordinances or regulations and rules of public agencies- or bodies having jurisdiction.

(q) Other factors that may, in the opinion of the Administrator and the Board, necessarily- 
affect the rates to be charged.

IV. FINDINGS

Polk County has previously considered the rate determination factors listed above in establishing
the collection rates for this fi'anchise area. Recology is proposing a 5o/o tate increase adjustment

for residential, commercial, and drop box services. Recology has identified_business seruices that

require *or. it 
"o-e 

to offset the cost of doing business as the reason for the requested increase.

Recology is not proposing a change to any othgr-type of services offered. Recology.has.not
identifiEb future i..ui"e dEmands tLat wou[d justify a rate increase. Recology has not identified
any changes to laws, ordinances or regulations, ihat have increased the cost of _compliance-
Recology"has identified inflationary incr-ease in fuel, labor,.and disposal cost as well as general

cost of"doing business as justification for the proposed rate increase. Recology is also requesting

a reasonable retum to the franchisee.

Annual average inflation based on the Urban Consumer Price Index (CPI-U) for West Size Class

B/C increat"{+.g%between 2022 and2023. Recology's net income before tax as percent of salgs

for tlre rural Polk County portion of their eamings has increased from -0.72% in 2021 to 4.59o/o

during the 2022 fiscal y6ui. ZOZZ actual results indicate that_the largest expenses were combined
op"ruiionul costs. From 2021 to 2022, the total direct cost of operations only increasedby -1.-16%
but disposal cost increased by 9.46%. The 2023 Recology- ProFonna projects that the total direct
cost of operations will increas eby I3Yo from 2022 to 2023. Disposal costs are projected to go up

Page 2 of 4 Order re: Recology Westenr Oregon (2023)



23.2%.In addition, Recology's total administrative costs increased by 8.3% from 2021 to 2022.

Recology's 2023 Pror^ormi-projects that the total administrative costs will increasgb.y 15.4%.

Recolo[y projects that, with the iroposed rate increase, the net income as a percent of sales before

ta* *oril"d lncrease to d.1 60/o from 459% earned rn2022. Without the rate increase, the net income

as a percent of sales before tax is projected tobe 4.73Yo.

In summary, the combined operational costs are projected to increase ty 13%. The total
administrative costs are projecied to increase by 15.4%. Staff finds, and the_He^arings. Officer
concurs that a projected f.i6% refurn as percent of sales is reasonable to the franchisee and

consistent wittr'the projected returns for oiher Polk County Franchisees. The cost of disposal,

wages, and manag".tr.nt services are all factors that the Hearings Qfficel considers when making
arite itr"t"ur. deiermination. The Ilearings Officer finds that Recology has demonstrated that the

cost of doing business has increased.

The Hearings Officer and the Board may compare rates charged by others performing the same or
similar ser'v]ce in the same or other areas. Attached to the Staff Report are rate comparison chafts

compiled by Polk County Staff to review other solid waste collection rates both inside and

surrounding Polk Counry. The surounding counties included in this comparison are Benton,
Lincoln, Marion, Tillamook, Yamhill and Washington.

A review of the Recology's proposed rural rate stmcture finds that their proposed container rates

ale higher than the averige of ttre franchisees in Polk County but are lower.than the surrounding
countfis solid waste colleltion rates. In particular, the average rural rates within Polk County_but

outside the Recology franchis e area are $18.93 for a32135-gallon cart and-$33-96 for a 9.0-gallon

caft. Recology is proposing $22.97 for a 3}-gallon cart and $38.26 for the 9Q-91!91.c1rt
Recology's propos6a 32-gallon cart rate un6 9g-gallon cart rate are 2I.32% and 12.670/o higher
than th"J uu"rug Pok C6unty Franchise rates respectfully. The average rates in surrounding
counties are $216.21 for a32135-gallon caft and 546.52 for a 90-gallon cart. Recology's proposed

rates for the 32135-gallon and 90/95-gallon carts are 12.36%o and 17 .7 50/o less than the surrounding
counties. The I-Iealings Officer finds the proposed rural residential rates are just, fair, and

reasonable compared to other Polk County franchises in the local area.

Recology's proposed rural rate for a 2-yard drop box containel is on average 92 29y: h-igher than
other P6ik County franchises and 1I.li% highbr than surrounding counti_es. Staff finds, and the

Hearings Officer 
-coucrrrs, 

that the franchise area served by Recology is distant, rural, and mo_re

dispersl than other franchise areas in Polk County when.considering drop box customers. In
addition, the closure of Riverbend Landfill in202l directly impacted Recology's cost of disposal.

They are unable to direct haul the drop box waste to the Landfill. There is additional handling of
this waste at their transfer station, higher transportation costs associated with travel distances,

higher labor costs, and higher operational costs. A higher drop box rate compared to other Polk
Cdunty franchise areas is justified. The Hearings Officer finds that t!9 Propo*ed,&op box rates are

similai to those charged in sunounding counties. The Ilearings Officer finds the. proposed.rural
rates are just, fair andreasonable when compared to other Polk County franchises in the local area

and to rates in surrounding counties.

V. CONCLUSIONS

Based on the analysis above, Staff and the Hearings Officer find justification in approving a ry:9
adjustment at this tirne as the cost of doing business has increased. Recology iq_rgqgesting95^Yo
in6rease across all services which is cornparable to the 4.9Yo Bureau of Labor CPI-U statistic for
inflation between 2022 and2023. Recoiogy's proposed drop box rates are substantially higher
than what other Polk County franchisees chargef but only slightly higher than the average. rates in
surounding counties. Recology's proposed container rates are tlgtt.. than the average solid waste

collection iates in Polk Counly; but lower than the surounding counties average solid waste

Page 3 of 4 Order re: Recology Westem Oregon (2023)



collection rates. Recology projects that, without the proposed rate increase, the net income as a

percent of sales before tii ior ihe rural Polk County portion of their business would be 4.73Yo for
2023; up from 4.59% in 2022. With the proposed iafe adjustment increase, Recology projects an

8.16% return.

Recology applied for the current annual rate adjustment on April I,2023. PCCO 70 0801(3)
provide"Jthif un annrral rate increase mustbe submitted 90 dayspriortothe effective date of the

proposed rate change. Thus, the Hearings Officers finds an effective date of August I, 2023,

satisfi es this requirement.

VI. RECOMMENDATION

Based on the findings in this report, the Hearings Officer concludes that the proposed rate increase

is just, fair, reasona6le, and sufficient to provide proper service to the public and a reasonable rate

of retum for the franchisee.

The Ifearings Officer recommends that the Board of Commissioners APPROVE the proposed rate

adjustment effective 08 I 0I 123 .

This 30 day of June,2023.

/-tt/r- r/"^-//
Leslie Howell
Dallas, Oregon
Polk County Ilearings Officer

Page 4 of 4 - Order re: Recology Westem Oregon (2023)



2023 SURROUNDING COUNTIES RURAL RATE COMPARISON

2023 POLK COUNTY RURAL FRANGHISE RATE COMPARISON

Cart/Container
size

Recology's
Proposed

Rates

Benton
County

Linn

County
Marion
County

Tillamook
County

Yamhill
County

Washington
County Average

32135 eal. 522.s7 524.70 523.74 Sgo.zs s2s.00 526.62 526.44 s26.2L

90/95 cal $ge.ze Sgg.oz Sso.rg 546.80 s6s.o0 544.4r 547.L3 s46.52

2vd s224.s6 izrg.tq Sr.93.03 5146.46 s1es.30 s28s.04 5172.42 s202.00

FRANCHISE 32135 eal. 90/95 eal. 2vd

Brandt's Sanitary s20.4s $es.go Srzo.os

Valley Disposal s17.30 527.ss Srza.gs

Republic Services s1s.os 534.62 s162.ss

Polk County Franchise Avg. 5rs.gE $ss.ga Srsa.+s

Recology's Proposed Rates 522.e7 s38.26 5224.s6



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Behavioral Health  Consent Calendar Date:  July 05, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Kerry Blum Consulting, LLC 

 Address:  1975 NW Paula Avenue 

 City, State, Zip:  Albany, OR 97321 

 Effective Dates - From:  August 01, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  Varies 

 Background: 

 Kerry Blum Consulting, LLC has agreed to provide Behavioral Health Clinical and Program 
 Consulting services to Polk County Health Services. 

 Discussion: 

 Kerry Blum Consulting, LLC meets the criteria for a service provider and has been cleared to work 
 with us through a criminal history records review. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Behavioral Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
 contract. The fiscal year 2023-2024 Behavioral Health Services budget was prepared in anticipation 
 of this agreement. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Kerry Blum Consulting, LLC. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  06/29/23 

 CONTRACTOR  KERRY BLUM CONSULTING, LLC 
 1975 NW PAULA AVENUE 
 ALBANY, OR 97321 
 ID#: 20-9313790 

 CONTACT PERSON:  KERRY BLUM 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide services as described in Exhibit B. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM AUGUST 01, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2024 

 BUDGET LINE #:  240-8540-530-M01

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  VARIES 

 TERMS:  Service Rates per Exhibit B 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

 Updated: 05/30/23 

Polk County Contract No. 23-129



 AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

 POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 a poli�cal subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereina�er referred to as "County" and 

 KERRY BLUM CONSULTING, LLC 
 1975 NW PAULA AVENUE 

 ALBANY, OR 97321 
 ID#: 20-9313790 

 hereina�er referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  is  authorized  to  obtain,  by  contract,  the  services  necessary  to  conduct  its 
 opera�on; and 

 WHEREAS,  Contractor  has  available,  or  can  obtain,  the  necessary  licenses  or  cer�ficates 
 required for the performance of said services; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  par�es  above-men�oned,  for  and 
 in considera�on of the mutual promises hereina�er stated as follows: 

 SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A.  The  County  is  desirous  of  securing  the  services  of  the  Contractor  to  perform  services 
 more  specifically  outlined  in  Exhibit  B:  Statement  of  Work,  based  on  Contractor’s 
 specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

 B.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  authorized  services  to  Polk  County  referrals  at  Contractor’s 
 facili�es,  Polk  County  Buildings  on  space  available  basis,  and/or  consumer’s  school 
 facility,  work  loca�on,  or  home  depending  upon  the  needs  of  the  individual.  Depending 
 on  the  nature  of  services  provided,  the  loca�on  of  services  may  be  curtailed  by  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement of Work. 

 C.  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the  document  en�tled  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement  of  Work,  which  is  a�ached  and  by  reference  herein,  made  an  integral  part  of 
 this Agreement. 

 1 



 SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

 A.  As  considera�on  for  the  services  provided  by  the  Contractor  during  the  period  beginning 
 August  1,  2023,  and  ending  June  30,  2024,  payment  shall  be  retroac�ve  for  approved 
 services  provided  to  Polk  County  referrals  on  or  a�er  the  period  beginning  date.  Any 
 renewals  and/or  changes  to  this  agreement  must  be  submi�ed  in  wri�ng,  in  the  form  of 
 an amendment to this Contract and signed by both Par�es. 

 B.  Agreement  is  effec�ve  upon  the  signature  of  all  par�es.  It  is  understood  by  both  par�es 
 that  no  commitments  have  been  or  are  made  by  either  party  beyond  the  termina�on  of 
 the Agreement. 

 C.  The  County  will  pay  to  the  Contractor,  by  check(s)  or  ACH  direct  payment  upon  receipt  of 
 an  authorized  billing  document  at  the  rates  outlined  in  Exhibit  B  and  as  approved  by  Polk 
 County.  Billings  shall  be  submi�ed  to  HS  Fiscal  either  electronically  to 
 hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us  or  by  mail  to  Polk  County  Health  Services  Business  Services 
 Department,  182  SW  Academy  Street  Suite  204,  Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  County  shall 
 endeavor  remit  payment  within  2-3  weeks  of  receipt  of  appropriate  billing,  suppor�ng 
 documenta�on and signed invoice. 

 D.  It  is  agreed  that  Contractor  shall  accept  payment  from  Polk  County  as  full  and  total 
 payment  for  services  and  that  Contractor  shall  not  bill  any  Polk  County  clients  (or  their 
 insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

 E.  Contractor  is  engaged  hereby  as  an  independent  contrac tor,  and  the  services  to  be 
 rendered  are  those  of  an  independent  contractor,  subject  to  ORS  Chapter  656,  and  will 
 be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

 i.  Contractor  will  be  solely  responsible  for  payment  of  any  Federal  or  State  taxes 
 required as a result of this Agreement. 

 ii.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  to  en�tle  Contractor  to  any  benefits  generally 
 granted  to  County  employees.  Without  limita�on,  but  by  way  of  illustra�on,  the 
 benefits  which  are  not  intended  to  be  extended  by  this  Agreement  to  the  Contractor 
 are  vaca�on,  holiday  and  sick  leave,  other  leaves  with  pay,  tenure,  medical  and 
 dental  coverage,  life  and  disability  insurance,  over�me,  Social  Security,  workers' 
 compensa�on, unemployment compensa�on or re�rement benefits . 

 iii.  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  for  purposes  of  the  Oregon  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  Law  (ORS  Chapter  656)  and  is  solely  liable  for  any  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  coverage  under  this  Agreement.  If  the  Contractor  has  the  assistance 

 2 



 of  other  persons  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  qualify 
 and  remain  qualified  for  the  term  of  this  Agreement  as  a  direct  responsibility 
 employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib u�ng employer under ORS 656.411. 

 F.  Exhibit  A  –  Business  Associate  Agreement  a�ached  hereto  is  by  this  reference 
 incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

 SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 A.  Extent  of  Agreement:  This  Agreement  contains  all  the  terms  and  condi�ons  agreed  upon 
 by  the  par�es.  No  other  understandings,  oral  or  otherwise,  regarding  the  subject  ma�er 
 of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the par�es hereto. 

 B.  Cap�ons:  The  cap�ons  or  headings  in  this  Agreement  are  for  convenience  only  and  in  no 
 way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 C.  Payment  as  Sole  Monetary  Obliga�on  of  the  County:  The  Contractor  is  engaged  as  an 
 independent  contractor.  Payment  as  provided  herein  shall  be  the  sole  monetary 
 obliga �on  of  the  County.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  responsi bility  for  payment  of 
 all  opera�ng  costs,  Federal,  State,  County  or  city  taxes/assessments  and  any  other 
 charges  imposed  by  law  upon  employers  shall  be  the  sole  responsibility  of  the 
 Contractor. 

 D.  Licensing  and  Program  Standards:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with  all  applicable 
 State,  County,  and  municipal  standards  for  licensing,  and  any  other  standards  or  criteria 
 described in this Agreement and its a�achments. 

 E.  Contractor-client  Rela�onship:  The  Contractor  will  establish  a  system  through  which  a 
 client  and/or  the  client’s  parents  or  guardian  may  represent  grievances  about  the 
 opera�on  of  the  Contractor’s  service  program.  At  the  �me  arrangements  are  made  for 
 the  Contractor’s  service,  the  Contractor  will  advise  the  child  and  parents  or  guardian  of 
 the provision.  The Contractor shall no�fy the County of all unresolved grievances. 

 F.  Safeguarding of Client Informa�on: 

 i.  The  use  or  disclosure  by  any  party  of  any  informa�on  concern ing  a  recipient  of 
 services  purchased  under  this  Agreement,  for  any  purpose  not  directly  connected 
 with  the  administra �on  of  the  County's  or  the  Contractor's  responsibili�es  with 
 respect  to  such  purchased  services,  is  prohibited,  except  on  wri�en  consent  of  the 
 County,  or  if  the  County  is  not  the  recipient,  on  wri�en  consent  of  the  recipient  or 
 a�orney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 3 



 ii.  For  the  purposes  of  safeguarding  protected  client  informa�on,  Contractor  agrees  to 
 abide  by  all  County  rules  and  regula�ons  regarding  Communica�on  technology  as 
 documented  in  the  County’s  Communica�ons  Technology  Policy.  Contractors 
 providing  services  from  a  County  facility  will  be  provided  appropriate  County 
 equipment  to  perform  its  du�es  under  this  agreement.  To  the  extent  that  Contractor 
 elects  to  use  their  own  technology  (computer,  cellular  phone,  etc…)  Contractor 
 warrants  that  such  equipment  shall  be  compliant  with  County  rules  and  regula�ons, 
 and its obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 G.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  and  Rehabilita�on  Act  of  1973:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply 
 with  the  requirements  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  and  Sec�on  504  of  the 
 Rehabilita �on  Act  of  1973,  and  their  implemen�ng  Federal  regula�ons,  including 
 Execu�ve Order 11246 as amended. 

 H.  Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

 i.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to 
 assure  full  compliance  with  Federal  regula�ons  and  the  County’s  guidelines  on 
 allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

 ii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  maintain  fiscal  records  consistent  with  generally  accepted 
 accoun�ng  prac�ces  and  controls,  which  will  properly  reflect  all  direct  and  indirect 
 costs  and  funds  expended  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor 
 shall  make  these  records  available  at  reasonable  �mes  upon  request  to  State  and 
 Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

 iii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  collect  financial  sta�s�cs  on  a  regular  basis  and  to  make 
 financial reports at �mes in the form prescribed by the County. 

 I.  Program  Records,  Controls,  Reports,  and  Monitoring  Procedures:  The  Contractor  agrees 
 to  maintain  program  records  including  sta�s�cal  records,  and  to  provide  program 
 records  to  the  County  at  �mes  and  in  the  form  prescribed  by  the  County.  The  Contractor 
 agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to  assure  full  compliance 
 with  the  program  and  facili�es  review  (including  mee�ngs  with  consumers,  reviews  of 
 service  records,  review  of  policy  and  procedures,  review  of  staffing  ra�os  and  job 
 descrip�ons,  and  mee�ngs  with  any  staff  directly  of  indirectly  involved  in  the  provision 
 of  services)  may  be  conducted  at  any  reasonable  �me  by  State  and  Federal  personnel 
 and other persons authorized by the County. 

 J.  Reten�on  of  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  retain  all  books,  records,  and  other 
 documents  relevant  to  this  Agreement  for  three  (3)  years  a�er  final  payment  is  made 

 4 



 under  the  Agreement  or  all  pending  ma�ers  are  closed,  whichever  is  later.  If  li�ga�on  or 
 other  ac�on  involving  the  Agreement  is  started  before  the  end  of  the  three  (3)  year 
 period,  the  records  shall  be  retained  un�l  all  issues  arising  out  of  the  ac�on  are  resolved 
 or un�l the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

 K.  Insurance: 

 i.  Contractor  agrees  that  it  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  agent  of  the 
 County.  The  Contractor  and  the  County  shall  not  be  responsible  for  any  legal  liability, 
 loss,  malprac�ce,  damages,  costs  and  expenses  arising  in  favor  of  any  person  on 
 account  of  personal  injuries,  death  or  property  loss  or  damage  occurring,  growing 
 out  of,  incident  to  or  resul�ng  directly  or  indirectly  from  the  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 other party under this Agreement. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  obtain,  and  at  all  �mes  keep  in  effect,  comprehensive  liability 
 insurance  and  property  damage  insurance  covering  ac�vi�es,  opera�ons,  and 
 omissions  of  the  Contractor,  all  subcontractors,  and  all  named  addi�onal  insureds. 
 Contractor  may  sa�sfy  this  requirement  for  general  liability  insurance  in  any  manner 
 allowed  by  ORS  30.282.  Such  liability  insurance,  whatever  the  form,  shall  be  in  an 
 amount  not  less  than  one  million  dollars  ($1,000,000)  with  provision  for  increased 
 coverage  as  such  limits  are  increased  by  legisla�ve  ac�on.  In  the  event  of  unilateral 
 cancella�on  or  restric�on  by  the  insurance  company  of  the  Contractor's  insurance 
 policy  referred  to  in  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor  shall  immediately  no�fy  the 
 County verbally and in wri�ng. 

 iii.  As  evidence  of  the  insurance  coverage  required  by  this  Agreement,  and  prior  to  the 
 execu�on  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  a  Cer�ficate  of  Insurance  to 
 Polk  County,  to  Polk  County  Health  Services,  182  SW  Academy  Street,  Suite  204, 
 Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  Cer�ficate  form,  to  be  completed  by  the  Contractor's 
 insurer,  naming  Polk  County  as  addi�onal  insured,  will  be  maintained  in  the  County's 
 file of this Agreement. 

 iv.  There  shall  not  be  any  cancella�on,  material  changes  or  failure  to  renew  such 
 insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior no�ce to the County. 

 L.  Subcontrac�ng:  Unless  subcontrac�ng  is  authorized  elsewhere  in  the  Agree ment,  the 
 Contractor  shall  not  enter  into  any  subcontracts  for  any  of  the  work  contemplated  under 
 this  Agreement  without  obtaining  prior  wri�en  approval  from  the  County,  which 
 approval  shall  be  a�ached  to  the  original  Agreement.  Approval  by  the  County  of  a 
 subcontract  shall  not  result  in  any  obliga�ons  of  the  County  in  addi�on  to  the  agreed 
 rates  of  payment  and  total  considera�on.  Any  subcontracts  which  the  County  may 

 5 



 authorize  shall  contain  all  requirements  of  this  Agreement,  and  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 responsible  for  the  performance  of  the  subcontractor.  Contractor  may  subcon tract 
 medical  inves�gator's  du�es  so  long  as  the  sub contractor  possesses  medical 
 qualifica�ons equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

 M.  Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on:  Any  altera�ons,  varia�ons,  modifica�ons  to  or  waivers 
 of  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  valid  only  when  they  have  been  reduced  to 
 wri�ng,  duly  signed,  and  approved  by  the  Contractor  and  the  County  and  a�ached  to 
 the original of this Agreement. 

 N.  Excuses  for  Nonperformance:  Neither  party  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  held  responsible 
 for  delay  or  failure  in  performance  of  the  ac�vi�es  required  herein  when  such  delay  or 
 failure  is  due  to  causes  beyond  the  control  and  without  the  fault  or  negligence  of  the 
 party.  Such  causes  may  include,  but  are  not  restricted  to,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  strikes, 
 acts  of  God  or  the  public  enemy,  unusually  severe  weather,  legal  acts  of  public 
 authori�es,  or  delays  or  defaults  caused  by  public  carriers,  which  cannot  reasonably  be 
 forecast  or  provided  against.  Either  party  may  terminate  the  Agreement  a�er 
 reasonably  determining  that  such  delay  or  failure  will  prevent  con�nued  performance  of 
 the  Agreement,  and  a�er  giving  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  other  party  of  the  cause,  its  effect 
 on  Agreement  performance  and  effec �ve  date  of  termina�on.  If  the  Agreement  is  so 
 terminated,  the  obliga�on  of  the  County  shall  be  limited  to  payment  for  services 
 provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of termina�on. 

 O.  Remedies:  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  or  perform  any  of  the  other 
 requirements  under  the  Contract,  and  such  failure  is  not  excused  under  the  paragraph 
 �tled  "Excuses  for  Nonperformance",  the  County,  a�er  giving  the  Contractor  wri�en 
 no�ce  of  such  failure,  may  withhold  part  or  all  of  the  Contractor's  payment  for  the 
 services  un�l  such  failure  is  corrected.  If  the  Contractor  does  not  correct  such  failure 
 within  a  reasonable  �me  allowed  by  the  County,  the  County  may  terminate  the 
 Agreement  in  accordance  with  the  clause  �tled  "Termina�on."  However,  this  paragraph, 
 and  any  ac�ons  taken  or  not  taken  under  it,  shall  not  affect  the  County's  rights  under  the 
 "Termina�on" clause. 

 P.  Termina�on:  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  par�es  or 
 unilaterally  by  both  par�es  at  any  �me  upon  thirty  (30)  days’  no�ce  to  the  other  party 
 in  wri�ng  and  delivered  personally  or  by  Cer�fied  Mail.  The  County  may  also  unilaterally 
 terminate  this  Agreement  effec�ve  upon  delivery  of  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  Contrac tor,  or 
 at  such  later  date  as  may  be  established  by  the  County,  under  any  of  the  following 
 condi�ons: 

 6 



 i.  If  funds,  specifically  authorized  by  Legisla�ve  acts,  do  not  become  available  in 
 amounts  sufficient  to  allow  for  purchase  of  the  stated  quan�ty  of  services.  When 
 possible  and  when  agreed  upon  by  the  par�es,  the  Agreement  may  be  modified  in 
 accordance  with  the  paragraph  en�tled  “Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on”  to 
 accommodate a reduc�on in funds. 

 ii.  If  Federal  or  State  laws,  regula�ons  or  guidelines  are  modified  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 Agreement  or  no  longer  qualify  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments  authorized  by 
 this Agreement. 

 iii.  If  any  license  or  cer�ficate  required  by  law  or  regula�on  to  be  held  by  the  Contractor 
 to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  Agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied,  revoked, 
 not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Contractor  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cer�ficate. 

 iv.  Termina�on  under  this  clause  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obliga�ons  or 
 liabili�es  of  either  party  already  reasonably  incurred  prior  to  such  termina�on, 
 except  that  the  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  its  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es 
 a�er  the  termina�on  date,  which  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es  result  from  the 
 Contractor's  failure  to  provide  for  termina�on  of,  or  exercises  the  right  to  terminate, 
 its  commitments.  No  right  of  ac�on  or  damages  shall  accrue  to  the  benefit  of  the 
 Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

 v.  The  County,  by  wri�en  no�ce  of  default  (including  breach  of  contract)  to  the 
 Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

 a.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  Agreement  within 
 the �me speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

 b.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  perform  any  of  the  other  requirements  of  this 
 Agreement; or 

 c.  If  the  Contractor  so  fails  to  perform  the  work  required  in  the  Agreement  that 
 performance  of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and 
 a�er  receipt  of  wri�en  no�ce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  correct  such  failure  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period 
 as the County may authorize. 

 vi.  If  the  Agreement  is  terminated  under  this  clause,  the  County's  obliga�ons  shall  be 
 limited  to  payment  for  services  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Agreement  prior  to 

 7 



 the  date  of  termina�on,  less  any  damages  suffered  by  the  County.  The  rights  and 
 remedies  of  the  County  in  this  clause  related  to  defaults  (including  breach  of 
 contract)  by  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  exclusive  and  are  in  addi�on  to  any  other 
 rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

 Q.  Hold  Harmless:  Except  for  claims  arising  in  whole  from  the  negligence  of  County,  its 
 employees  or  its  agents,  Contractor  agrees  to  indemnify  and  hold  County  harmless  from 
 and  against  all  ac�ons,  suits,  claims  and  demands  arising  out  of  Contractor’s 
 performance  under  this  Contract  and  agrees  to  defend  County  in  such  ac�ons,  suits, 
 claims and demands. 

 R.  Waiver  of  Default:  Waiver  of  any  default  shall  not  be  deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any 
 subsequent  default.  Waiver  of  breach  of  any  provision  of  the  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any  other  or  subsequent  breach  and  shall  not  be  construed  to 
 be  a  modifica�on  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement  unless  stated  to  be  such  in  wri�ng, 
 signed  by  an  authorized  representa�ve  of  the  County,  and  a�ached  to  the  original 
 Agreement in accordance with the paragraph en�tled "Re-nego�a�on or Modifica�on". 

 S.  Severability:  The  par�es  agree  that  if  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  declared 
 by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdic�on  to  be  illegal  or  in  conflict  with  any  law,  the  validity  of 
 the  remaining  terms  and  provisions  shall  not  be  affected,  and  the  rights  and  obliga�ons 
 of  the  par�es  shall  be  construed  and  enforced  as  if  the  Agreement  did  not  contain  the 
 par�cular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 T.  Fees  Prohibited:  The  Contractor  will  not  impose  or  demand  any  fees  from  any  person  or 
 agency  for  services  provided  and  paid  for  under  this  Agreement,  unless  the  fees  have 
 been approved in advance by the County in wri�ng. 

 U.  Non-Discrimina�on:  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  they  are  an  equal  opportunity 
 employer  and  no  person  shall  be  denied  services  or  discrimi nated  against  on  the  basis  of 
 race,  color,  religion,  sex,  sexual  orienta�on,  na�onal  origin,  marital  status  or  age,  and 
 there  shall  be  no  discrimina�on  in  the  selec�on,  compensa�on  or  the  employ ment 
 prac�ces with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

 V.  Assignment  of  Agreement:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  or  transfer  its  interest  in  this 
 Agreement  without  prior  wri�en  approval  of  the  County,  which  shall  be  a�ached  to  the 
 original  Agreement.  Any  such  assignment,  if  approved,  is  subject  to  such  condi�ons  and 
 provisions,  as  the  County  may  deem  necessary.  No  approval  by  the  County  of  any 
 assignment  or  transfer  of  interest  shall  be  deemed  to  create  any  obliga�on  of  the  county 
 in addi�on to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement considera�on. 

 8 



 W.  Funds  Authorized  and  Available:  The  County  cer�fies  that  at  the  �me  of  signing  this 
 Agree ment,  sufficient  funds  are  authorized  and  available,  or  are  an�cipated  to  be 
 available,  for  expenditure  to  finance  costs  of  this  Agreement  within  the  County's  current 
 appropri a�on or limita�on. 

 X.  Recovery  of  Overpayments:  If  billings  under  this  Agreement,  or  under  any  Agreement 
 between  the  Contractor  and  the  County,  result  in  payments  to  the  Contractor  for  which 
 the  Contractor  is  not  en�tled  under  the  terms  of  such  Agreement,  the  County,  a�er 
 giving  wri�en  no�fica�on  to  the  Contractor,  may  withhold  from  payments  due  to  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  such  amounts,  over  such  periods  of  �me,  as  are 
 necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

 Y.  Criminal  History  Records  Checks:  Contractor  agrees  to  authorize  a  review  of  state  and 
 federal  records  by  Polk  County  as  a  qualified  en�ty,  to  determine  the  nature  of  any 
 criminal  ac�vity  the  Contractor  may  have  been  involved  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 943-007-001  for  purposes  described  in  OAR  407-007-0400.  No  work  will  be  assigned  to 
 Contractor  un�l  a  Criminal  History  Check  is  completed  and  verified  by  the  qualified 
 en�ty.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  Polk  County  within  five  days  of  being  arrested,  charged,  or 
 convicted of any crime. 

 SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

 A.  Payment  of  Subcontractors,  Industrial  Accident  Fund  Contribu�ons,  Liens  and 
 Withholding Taxes: 

 1.  Contractor  shall  make  payment  promptly,  as  due,  to  all  persons  supplying  to  such 
 contractor  labor  or  material  for  the  prosecu�on  of  the  work  provided  for  in  this 
 contract. 

 2.  Contractor  shall  pay  all  contribu�ons  or  amounts  due  the  Industrial  Accident  Fund 
 from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 3.  Contractor  shall  not  permit  any  lien  or  claim  to  be  filed  or  prosecuted  against  the 
 state,  county,  school  district,  municipality,  Municipal  Corpora�on  or  subdivisions 
 thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

 4.  Contractor  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
 employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 B.  Payment  of  Claims  by  County  :  If  Contractor  fails,  neglects  or  refuses  to  make  prompt 
 payment  of  any  claim  for  labor  or  services  furnished  to  the  contractor  or  a  subcontractor 
 by  any  person  in  connec�on  with  the  public  contract  as  such  claim  becomes  due,  the 

 9 



 proper  officer  or  officers  represen�ng  Polk  County  may  pay  such  claim  to  the  person 
 furnishing  the  labor  or  services  and  charge  the  amount  of  payment  against  funds  due  or 
 to  become  due  the  Contractor  by  reason  of  this  contract.  Payment  of  a  claim  in  this 
 manner  shall  not  relieve  the  contractor  or  contractor’s  surety  from  obliga�on  with 
 respect to any unpaid claims. 

 C.  Hours  of  Labor:  All  laborers  providing  contract  services  shall  be  paid  at  least  �me  and  a 
 half  for  all  over�me  worked  in  excess  of  40  hours  in  any  one  week,  except  for  individuals 
 under  these  contracts  who  are  excluded  under  ORS  653.010  to  653.261  or  under  29  USC 
 sec�on 201 to 209 from receiving over�me. 

 D.  Payment  for  Medical  Care:  Contractor  shall  promptly,  as  due,  make  payment  to  any 
 person,  co-partnership,  associa�on  or  corpora�on,  furnishing  medical,  surgical  and 
 hospital  care  or  other  needed  care  and  a�en�on,  incident  to  sickness  or  injury,  to  the 
 employees  for  such  Contractor,  of  all  sums  which  the  Contractor  agrees  to  pay  for  such 
 services  and  all  moneys  and  sums  which  the  contractor  collected  or  deducted  from  the 
 wages  of  employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
 providing or paying such service. 

 E.  Providing  Workers’  Compensa�on  Insurance:  All  employers  working  under  this  contract 
 are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 F.  Health  Care  Benefits  for  Employees:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  health  care  benefits  to 
 all  employees  who  are  performing  services  previously  performed  by  public  employees  if 
 the  condi�ons  specified  in  ORS  653.767  require  such  payment.  Benefits  must  equal  or 
 exceed  those  benefits  specified  in  ORS  279.315(3).  This  clause  does  not  apply  to 
 contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

 G.  Americans  with  Disabili�es  Act  Compliance:  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor  will 
 comply  and  does  comply  with  all  relevant  provisions  of  the  Americans  with  Disabili�es 
 Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 10 



 SIGNATURE PAGE 

 BY SIGNATURE BELOW, both par�es agree to and accept all terms and condi�ons of this 
 Agreement between County and Contractor along with the following: 

 ●  Exhibit A: Business Associate Agreement 
 ●  Exhibit B: Statement of Work 

 CONTRACTOR 

 Signature  Date 
 Title: 

 COUNTY 

 Chair  Date 
 Board of Commissioners 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 Morgan Smith  Date 
 County Counsel 

 11 

6/30/23

Kerry Blum Consulting, LLC



 EXHIBIT A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 Between 
 POLK COUNTY  and KERRY BLUM CONSULTING, LLC 

 1.  DEFINITIONS: 

 Except  as  otherwise  defined  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA  Agreement),  any 
 and  all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  defini�on  as  those  in  the  HIPAA 
 Privacy  Rule.  1  Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon, 
 shall  be  referred  as  “COUNTY”  and  KERRY  BLUM  CONSULTING,  LLC  shall  be  referred  to  as 
 “CONTRACTOR”. 

 2.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

 A.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on  other  than 
 as permi�ed or required by this BA Agreement or as permi�ed or required by law. 

 B.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health Informa�on other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 C.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  mi�gate,  to  the  extent  prac�cable,  any  harmful  effect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  by 
 CONTRACTOR in viola�on of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  not  provided  for  by  this  BA  Agreement  of  which  it  becomes 
 aware. 

 E.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restric�ons  and 
 condi�ons  that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to 
 such informa�on. 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa�on in performance of Business Associate func�ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden�fiable Health Informa�on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa�on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 12 



 F.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access, 
 at  the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the 
 COUNTY  or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the 
 requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 G.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for 
 reasonable compliance. 

 H.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  prac�ces,  books,  and  records,  including 
 policies  and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  rela�ng  to  the  use  and 
 disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary 
 of  the  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  �me  and  manner  agreed 
 between  the  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for 
 purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining  the  COUNTY’S  compliance  with  the  Privacy 
 Rule. 

 I.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on 
 and  informa�on  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to 
 respond  to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected 
 Health Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 J.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  �me  and 
 manner  necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informa�on  collected  in  accordance 
 with  sec�on  2.A  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a 
 request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 3.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: 

 Except as otherwise limited in this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose 
 Protected Health Informa�on to perform certain health plan func�ons for or on behalf 
 of the COUNTY as specified in the Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement 
 provided that such use or disclosure would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the 
 COUNTY or the minimum necessary policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 13 



 4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

 A.  The  COUNTY  shall  no�fy  CONTRACTOR  of  any  limita�on(s)  in  the  No�ce  of  Privacy 
 Prac�ces  of  the  COUNTY  in  accordance  with  45  CFR  §  164.520,  to  the  extent  that 
 such  limita�on  may  affect  CONTRACTOR’S  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on. 

 B.  The  COUNTY  shall  no�fy  CONTRACTOR  of  any  changes  in,  or  revoca�on  of, 
 permission  by  Individual  to  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  to  the 
 extent  that  such  changes  may  affect  CONTRACTOR’S  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected 
 Health Informa�on. 

 C.  The  COUNTY  shall  no�fy  CONTRACTOR  of  any  restric�on  to  the  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected  Health  Informa�on  that  the  COUNTY  has  agreed  to  in  accordance  with  45 
 CFR  §  164.522,  to  the  extent  that  such  restric�on  may  affect  CONTRACTOR’S  use  or 
 disclosure of Protected Health Informa�on. 

 5.  PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: 

 The  COUNTY  shall  not  request  CONTRACTOR  to  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on  in  any  manner  that  would  not  be  permissible  under  the  Privacy  Rule  if  done 
 by  the  COUNTY  except  if  such  use  or  disclosure  is  permi�ed  under  the  Agreement 
 between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION: 

 A.  Term  .  This  BA  Agreement  shall  be  effec�ve  as  of  August  01,  2023,  and  shall 
 terminate  when  all  of  the  Protected  Health  Informa�on  provided  by  the  COUNTY  to 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  created  or  received  by  CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY,  is 
 destroyed  or  returned  to  the  COUNTY,  or,  if  it  is  infeasible  to  return  or  destroy 
 Protected  Health  Informa�on,  protec�ons  are  extended  to  such  informa�on,  in 
 accordance with the termina�on provisions in this Sec�on. 

 B.  Termina�on  for  Cause  .  Upon  the  COUNTY’S  knowledge  of  a  material  breach  by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 i.  Provide  an  opportunity  for  CONTRACTOR  to  cure  the  breach  without  the 
 interven�on  of  the  COUNTY  within  the  �meline  specified  in  Sec�on  III  (P)  of  the 
 Polk County Agreement; or 

 14 



 ii.  Provide  an  opportunity  for  CONTRACTOR  to  terminate  this  BA  Agreement  and 
 the  Polk  County  Agreement  within  the  �meline  specified  in  Sec�on  III  of  the  Polk 
 County  Agreement.  At  the  direc�on  of  its  Board  of  Directors,  the  COUNTY  may 
 terminate  this  BA  Agreement  and  the  Polk  County  Agreement  as  permi�ed  in 
 Sec�on  III  of  the  Polk  County  Agreement  if  CONTRACTOR  has  not  cured  the 
 breach  upon  conclusion  of  the  technical  assistance  and  correc�ve  ac�on 
 described in paragraph (i.) of this sec�on; or 

 iii.  If  neither  termina�on  nor  cure  is  feasible,  the  COUNTY  shall  report  the  viola�on 
 to the Secretary. 

 C.  Effect of Termina�on  . 

 i.  Except  as  provided  in  paragraph  (ii.)  of  this  sec�on,  upon  termina�on  of  this  BA 
 Agreement,  for  any  reason,  CONTRACTOR  shall  return  or  destroy  all  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  received  from  the  COUNTY,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY.  This  provision  shall  apply  to  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  that  is  in  the  possession  of  subcontractors  or  agents  of 
 CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR  shall  retain  no  copies  of  the  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on. 

 ii.  In  the  event  that  CONTRACTOR  determines  that  returning  or  destroying  the 
 Protected  Health  Informa�on  is  infeasible,  CONTRACTOR  shall  provide  to  the 
 COUNTY  wri�en  no�fica�on  of  the  condi�ons  that  make  return  or  destruc�on 
 infeasible.  Upon  wri�en  acknowledgement  by  the  COUNTY  that  the  return  or 
 destruc�on  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  is  infeasible,  CONTRACTOR  shall 
 extend  the  protec�ons  of  this  BA  Agreement  to  such  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on  and  limit  further  uses  and  disclosures  of  such  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on  to  those  purposed  that  make  the  return  or  destruc�on  infeasible,  for 
 so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health Informa�on. 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS: 

 A.  Regulatory  References  .  References  in  this  BA  Agreement  to  the  Privacy  Rule  or  any 
 sec�on  of  the  Privacy  Rule  means  the  Privacy  Rule  or  sec�on  as  in  effect  or  as 
 amended. 

 B.  Amendment  .  The  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  agree  to  take  such  ac�on  as  is 
 necessary  to  amend  this  BA  Agreement  from  �me  to  �me  as  is  necessary  for  the 
 COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 15 



 C.  Survival  .  The  respec�ve  rights  and  obliga�ons  of  CONTRACTOR  under  Sec�on  6.C  of 
 this BA Agreement shall survive the termina�on of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  Interpreta�on  .  Any  ambiguity  in  this  BA  Agreement  shall  be  resolved  to  permit  the 
 COUNTY  to  comply  with  the  Privacy  Rule.  In  the  event  of  any  inconsistency  between 
 the  provisions  of  this  BA  Agreement  and  the  mandatory  provisions  of  the  Privacy 
 Rule,  the  Privacy  Rule  shall  control.  Where  laws  in  the  State  of  Oregon  or  other 
 federal  law  is  more  stringent  than  the  Privacy  Rule,  the  more  stringent  Oregon  or 
 federal law shall control. 

 8.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

 A.  Background  Requirement  :  The  COUNTY,  in  accordance  with  §  164.306  and  §  164.308 
 (b),  may  permit  the  CONTRACTOR  to  create,  receive,  maintain,  or  transmit  Electronic 
 Protected  Health  Informa�on  on  the  COUNTY’S  behalf  only  if  the  COUNTY  obtains 
 sa�sfactory  assurances,  in  accordance  with  §  164.314(a)  that  the  CONTRACTOR  will 
 appropriately  safeguard  the  informa�on.  The  COUNTY  must  document  the 
 sa�sfactory  assurances  through  a  wri�en  contract  or  other  arrangement  with  the 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 B.  Part  I.  Security  Assurances  :  The  CONTRACTOR  will  Implement  administra�ve, 
 physical,  and  technical  safeguards  that  reasonably  and  appropriately  protect  the 
 confiden�ality,  integrity,  and  availability  of  the  electronic  protected  health 
 informa�on  that  it  creates,  receives,  maintains,  or  transmits  on  behalf  of  the 
 COUNTY  as  required  by  the  Health  Insurance  Portability  and  Accountability  Act  of 
 1996  and  the  requirements  of  Health  Insurance  Reform,  the  Security  Standards 
 (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 i.  Ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  SUBCONTRACTOR,  to  whom  it  provides  such 
 informa�on,  agrees  to  implement  reasonable  and  appropriate  safeguards  to 
 protect it. 

 ii.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 iii.  Authorize  termina�on  of  the  contract  by  the  COUNTY,  if  the  COUNTY  determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 C.  Part  II.  Other  arrangements:  When  the  COUNTY  and  the  CONTRACTOR  are  both 
 governmental en��es, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 16 



 i.  It  enters  into  a  memorandum  of  understanding  with  the  CONTRACTOR  that 
 contains terms that accomplish the objec�ves of Part I.; or 

 ii.  Other  law  (including  regula�ons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objec�ves of Part I. 

 D.  If  the  CONTRACTOR  is  required  by  law  to  perform  a  func�on  or  ac�vity  on  behalf  of 
 the  COUNTY  or  to  provide  a  service  described  in  the  defini�on  of  CONTRACTOR  as 
 specified  in  §  160.103  of  the  regula�on  to  the  COUNTY,  the  COUNTY  may  permit  the 
 CONTRACTOR  to  create,  receive,  maintain,  or  transmit  Electronic  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on  on  its  behalf  to  the  extent  necessary  to  comply  with  the  legal  mandate 
 without  mee�ng  the  requirements  of  Part  I.,  although  the  COUNTY  will  a�empt  in 
 good  faith  to  obtain  sa�sfactory  assurances  as  required  by  Part  I.  (A),  and  will 
 document  the  a�empt  and  the  reasons  that  these  assurances  cannot  be  obtained,  if 
 not obtained. 

 17 



 EXHIBIT B: 
 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 POLK  COUNTY,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon  and,  KERRY  BLUM  CONSULTING, 
 LLC, hereina�er called “Contractor,” hereby agree to the following: 

 1.  STATEMENT OF SERVICES 

 A.  Contractor  agrees  to  work  within  scope,  training  and  experience  as  a  Behavioral  Health 
 Clinical  and  Programming  Consultant,  to  provide  services,  support  and  training  that 
 meets  the  needs  of  both  Contractor  and  County  as  evidenced  by  the  Service 
 Authoriza�on and Ac�vity form. 

 B.  Contractor  shall  perform  all  services  deemed  necessary  in  their  professional  opinion 
 based  upon  their  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se  as  evidenced  in  the  applica�on 
 materials  and  other  professional  endorsements,  notwithstanding  any  limita�ons  set 
 forth in this agreement. 

 2.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 A.  Contractors  must  provide  primary  source  verifica�on  of  creden�als.  No  work  will  be 
 assigned  to  Contractors  who  render  direct  service  to  clients  or  pa�ents  un�l  creden�als 
 have been validated for Medicaid claims. 

 B.  Annual  requirements  mandate  that  the  Contractor  will  submit  a  conflict  of  Interest 
 Statement.  Contractor  queries  of  the  OIG  and  EPLS  List  of  Excluded  Individuals/En��es 
 database  will  also  be  performed  annually.  Bases  for  exclusion  include  convic�ons  for 
 program-related  fraud  and  pa�ent  abuse,  licensing  board  ac�ons  and  default  on  Health 
 Educa�on  Assistance  Loans.  It  is  the  expecta�on  that  the  Contractor  will  maintain 
 creden�aling  required  to  perform  job  du�es  in  good  standing.  It  is  the  responsibility  of 
 the  Contractor  to  report  any  circumstances  that  would  jeopardize  this  standing  or  lead 
 to exclusionary status. Failure to do so may lead to contract termina�on 

 C.  Contractor  agrees  to  report  cases  of  suspected  Medicaid,  Medicare  fraud,  waste,  or 
 abuse  to  the  PCBH  Compliance  Officer  at  503-623-9289.  If  there  is  reason  to  believe 
 that  PCBH  cannot  respond  appropriately  to  a  suspected  case  of  fraud,  waste,  or  abuse, 
 or  if  the  case  involves  PCBH,  then  Contractor  agrees  to  make  a  report  to  Ethicspoint  at 
 888-265-4068. 

 D.  County  may  conduct  performance  reviews  annually  to  assess  Contractor’s  performance 
 as it relates to the services required under this contract. 

 18 



 E.  Absences: 

 i.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  at  least  five  (5)  business  days  in  advance  for  all 
 an�cipated extended absences (i.e. vaca�ons, professional mee�ngs, etc.). 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  of  unplanned  absences  (ie:  illness  or  other 
 unforeseen events) at least one hour prior to expected work �me. 

 F.  Contractor  agrees  to  provide  10  business  day  no�ce  of  changes  to  their  clinic  schedule 
 availability. 

 3.  AUTHORIZED SERVICES 

 A.  County  will  only  pay  for  service  and  ac�vi�es  that  have  been  pre  authorized  and  agreed 
 upon in wri�ng by both par�es on a Service Ac�vity Authoriza�on Form. 

 4.  RATES AND METHOD OF PAY 

 A.  County  shall  reimburse  the  Contractor  at  the  rate  of  $100.00  per  hour  for  services  as 
 outlined  in  the  Service  Ac�vity  Authoriza�on  form  with  services  paid  on  a  per 
 occurrence basis to the nearest quarter hour upon receipt of an invoice. 

 B.  County  will  have  no  legal  obliga�on  to  pay  for  any  unauthorized  services,  including 
 unauthorized expenditures. 

 19 



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Behavioral Health  Consent Calendar Date:  July 05, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Kinsey Miller dba Elder Care of Oregon 

 Address:  PO Box 5565 

 City, State, Zip:  Salem, OR 97304 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 01, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  Varies 

 Background: 

 Kinsey Miller, doing business as Elder Care of Oregon, has agreed to provide Behavioral Health 
 services to referred Polk County Behavioral Health individuals. 

 Discussion: 

 This contract is a continuation of services Kinsey Miller has been providing Polk County individuals 
 in the past fiscal years. Kinsey Miller meets the criteria for a service provider and has been cleared 
 to work with us through a criminal history records review. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Behavioral Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
 contract. The fiscal year 2023-2024 Behavioral Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this 
 agreement. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Kinsey Miller dba Elder Care of 
 Oregon. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  06/23/23 

 CONTRACTOR  KINSEY MILLER, dba ELDER CARE OF OREGON 
 PO BOX 5565 
 SALEM, OR 97304 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 CONTACT PERSON:  KINSEY MILLER 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide Behavioral Health Clinical services as outlined in 
 Exhibit B. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM JULY 01, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2024 

 BUDGET LINE #:  240-8540-540-M20/M31

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  VARIES 

 TERMS:  Service Rates per Exhibit B 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 23-130

mailto:HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us


 AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

 POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 a poli�cal subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereina�er referred to as "County" and 

 KINSEY MILLER, dba ELDER CARE OF OREGON 
 PO BOX 5565 

 SALEM, OR 97304 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 hereina�er referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  is  authorized  to  obtain,  by  contract,  the  services  necessary  to  conduct  its 
 opera�on; and 

 WHEREAS,  Contractor  has  available,  or  can  obtain,  the  necessary  licenses  or  cer�ficates 
 required for the performance of said services; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  par�es  above-men�oned,  for  and 
 in considera�on of the mutual promises hereina�er stated as follows: 

 SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A.  The  County  is  desirous  of  securing  the  services  of  the  Contractor  to  perform  services 
 more  specifically  outlined  in  Exhibit  B:  Statement  of  Work,  based  on  Contractor’s 
 specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

 B.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  authorized  services  to  Polk  County  referrals  at  Contractor’s 
 facili�es,  Polk  County  Buildings  on  space  available  basis,  and/or  consumer’s  school 
 facility,  work  loca�on,  or  home  depending  upon  the  needs  of  the  individual.  Depending 
 on  the  nature  of  services  provided,  the  loca�on  of  services  may  be  curtailed  by  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement of Work. 

 C.  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the  document  en�tled  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement  of  Work,  which  is  a�ached  and  by  reference  herein,  made  an  integral  part  of 
 this Agreement. 

 1 



 SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

 A.  As  considera�on  for  the  services  provided  by  the  Contractor  during  the  period  beginning 
 July  1,  2023,  and  ending  June  30,  2024,  payment  shall  be  retroac�ve  for  approved 
 services  provided  to  Polk  County  referrals  on  or  a�er  the  period  beginning  date.  Any 
 renewals  and/or  changes  to  this  agreement  must  be  submi�ed  in  wri�ng,  in  the  form  of 
 an amendment to this Contract and signed by both Par�es. 

 B.  Agreement  is  effec�ve  upon  the  signature  of  all  par�es.  It  is  understood  by  both  par�es 
 that  no  commitments  have  been  or  are  made  by  either  party  beyond  the  termina�on  of 
 the Agreement. 

 C.  The  County  will  pay  to  the  Contractor,  by  check(s)  or  ACH  direct  payment  upon  receipt  of 
 an  authorized  billing  document  at  the  rates  outlined  in  Exhibit  B  and  as  approved  by  Polk 
 County.  Billings  shall  be  submi�ed  to  HS  Fiscal  either  electronically  to 
 hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us  or  by  mail  to  Polk  County  Health  Services  Business  Services 
 Department,  182  SW  Academy  Street  Suite  204,  Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  County  shall 
 endeavor  remit  payment  within  2-3  weeks  of  receipt  of  appropriate  billing,  suppor�ng 
 documenta�on and signed invoice. 

 D.  It  is  agreed  that  Contractor  shall  accept  payment  from  Polk  County  as  full  and  total 
 payment  for  services  and  that  Contractor  shall  not  bill  any  Polk  County  clients  (or  their 
 insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

 E.  Contractor  is  engaged  hereby  as  an  independent  contrac tor,  and  the  services  to  be 
 rendered  are  those  of  an  independent  contractor,  subject  to  ORS  Chapter  656,  and  will 
 be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

 i.  Contractor  will  be  solely  responsible  for  payment  of  any  Federal  or  State  taxes 
 required as a result of this Agreement. 

 ii.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  to  en�tle  Contractor  to  any  benefits  generally 
 granted  to  County  employees.  Without  limita�on,  but  by  way  of  illustra�on,  the 
 benefits  which  are  not  intended  to  be  extended  by  this  Agreement  to  the  Contractor 
 are  vaca�on,  holiday  and  sick  leave,  other  leaves  with  pay,  tenure,  medical  and 
 dental  coverage,  life  and  disability  insurance,  over�me,  Social  Security,  workers' 
 compensa�on, unemployment compensa�on or re�rement benefits . 

 iii.  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  for  purposes  of  the  Oregon  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  Law  (ORS  Chapter  656)  and  is  solely  liable  for  any  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  coverage  under  this  Agreement.  If  the  Contractor  has  the  assistance 

 2 

mailto:hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us


 of  other  persons  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  qualify 
 and  remain  qualified  for  the  term  of  this  Agreement  as  a  direct  responsibility 
 employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib u�ng employer under ORS 656.411. 

 F.  Exhibit  A  –  Business  Associate  Agreement  a�ached  hereto  is  by  this  reference 
 incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

 SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 A.  Extent  of  Agreement:  This  Agreement  contains  all  the  terms  and  condi�ons  agreed  upon 
 by  the  par�es.  No  other  understandings,  oral  or  otherwise,  regarding  the  subject  ma�er 
 of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the par�es hereto. 

 B.  Cap�ons:  The  cap�ons  or  headings  in  this  Agreement  are  for  convenience  only  and  in  no 
 way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 C.  Payment  as  Sole  Monetary  Obliga�on  of  the  County:  The  Contractor  is  engaged  as  an 
 independent  contractor.  Payment  as  provided  herein  shall  be  the  sole  monetary 
 obliga �on  of  the  County.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  responsi bility  for  payment  of 
 all  opera�ng  costs,  Federal,  State,  County  or  city  taxes/assessments  and  any  other 
 charges  imposed  by  law  upon  employers  shall  be  the  sole  responsibility  of  the 
 Contractor. 

 D.  Licensing  and  Program  Standards:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with  all  applicable 
 State,  County,  and  municipal  standards  for  licensing,  and  any  other  standards  or  criteria 
 described in this Agreement and its a�achments. 

 E.  Contractor-client  Rela�onship:  The  Contractor  will  establish  a  system  through  which  a 
 client  and/or  the  client’s  parents  or  guardian  may  represent  grievances  about  the 
 opera�on  of  the  Contractor’s  service  program.  At  the  �me  arrangements  are  made  for 
 the  Contractor’s  service,  the  Contractor  will  advise  the  child  and  parents  or  guardian  of 
 the provision.  The Contractor shall no�fy the County of all unresolved grievances. 

 F.  Safeguarding of Client Informa�on: 

 i.  The  use  or  disclosure  by  any  party  of  any  informa�on  concern ing  a  recipient  of 
 services  purchased  under  this  Agreement,  for  any  purpose  not  directly  connected 
 with  the  administra �on  of  the  County's  or  the  Contractor's  responsibili�es  with 
 respect  to  such  purchased  services,  is  prohibited,  except  on  wri�en  consent  of  the 
 County,  or  if  the  County  is  not  the  recipient,  on  wri�en  consent  of  the  recipient  or 
 a�orney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 3 



 ii.  For  the  purposes  of  safeguarding  protected  client  informa�on,  Contractor  agrees  to 
 abide  by  all  County  rules  and  regula�ons  regarding  Communica�on  technology  as 
 documented  in  the  County’s  Communica�ons  Technology  Policy.  Contractors 
 providing  services  from  a  County  facility  will  be  provided  appropriate  County 
 equipment  to  perform  its  du�es  under  this  agreement.  To  the  extent  that  Contractor 
 elects  to  use  their  own  technology  (computer,  cellular  phone,  etc…)  Contractor 
 warrants  that  such  equipment  shall  be  compliant  with  County  rules  and  regula�ons, 
 and its obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 G.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  and  Rehabilita�on  Act  of  1973:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply 
 with  the  requirements  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  and  Sec�on  504  of  the 
 Rehabilita �on  Act  of  1973,  and  their  implemen�ng  Federal  regula�ons,  including 
 Execu�ve Order 11246 as amended. 

 H.  Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

 i.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to 
 assure  full  compliance  with  Federal  regula�ons  and  the  County’s  guidelines  on 
 allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

 ii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  maintain  fiscal  records  consistent  with  generally  accepted 
 accoun�ng  prac�ces  and  controls,  which  will  properly  reflect  all  direct  and  indirect 
 costs  and  funds  expended  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor 
 shall  make  these  records  available  at  reasonable  �mes  upon  request  to  State  and 
 Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

 iii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  collect  financial  sta�s�cs  on  a  regular  basis  and  to  make 
 financial reports at �mes in the form prescribed by the County. 

 I.  Program  Records,  Controls,  Reports,  and  Monitoring  Procedures:  The  Contractor  agrees 
 to  maintain  program  records  including  sta�s�cal  records,  and  to  provide  program 
 records  to  the  County  at  �mes  and  in  the  form  prescribed  by  the  County.  The  Contractor 
 agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to  assure  full  compliance 
 with  the  program  and  facili�es  review  (including  mee�ngs  with  consumers,  reviews  of 
 service  records,  review  of  policy  and  procedures,  review  of  staffing  ra�os  and  job 
 descrip�ons,  and  mee�ngs  with  any  staff  directly  of  indirectly  involved  in  the  provision 
 of  services)  may  be  conducted  at  any  reasonable  �me  by  State  and  Federal  personnel 
 and other persons authorized by the County. 

 J.  Reten�on  of  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  retain  all  books,  records,  and  other 
 documents  relevant  to  this  Agreement  for  three  (3)  years  a�er  final  payment  is  made 

 4 



 under  the  Agreement  or  all  pending  ma�ers  are  closed,  whichever  is  later.  If  li�ga�on  or 
 other  ac�on  involving  the  Agreement  is  started  before  the  end  of  the  three  (3)  year 
 period,  the  records  shall  be  retained  un�l  all  issues  arising  out  of  the  ac�on  are  resolved 
 or un�l the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

 K.  Insurance: 

 i.  Contractor  agrees  that  it  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  agent  of  the 
 County.  The  Contractor  and  the  County  shall  not  be  responsible  for  any  legal  liability, 
 loss,  malprac�ce,  damages,  costs  and  expenses  arising  in  favor  of  any  person  on 
 account  of  personal  injuries,  death  or  property  loss  or  damage  occurring,  growing 
 out  of,  incident  to  or  resul�ng  directly  or  indirectly  from  the  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 other party under this Agreement. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  obtain,  and  at  all  �mes  keep  in  effect,  comprehensive  liability 
 insurance  and  property  damage  insurance  covering  ac�vi�es,  opera�ons,  and 
 omissions  of  the  Contractor,  all  subcontractors,  and  all  named  addi�onal  insureds. 
 Contractor  may  sa�sfy  this  requirement  for  general  liability  insurance  in  any  manner 
 allowed  by  ORS  30.282.  Such  liability  insurance,  whatever  the  form,  shall  be  in  an 
 amount  not  less  than  one  million  dollars  ($1,000,000)  with  provision  for  increased 
 coverage  as  such  limits  are  increased  by  legisla�ve  ac�on.  In  the  event  of  unilateral 
 cancella�on  or  restric�on  by  the  insurance  company  of  the  Contractor's  insurance 
 policy  referred  to  in  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor  shall  immediately  no�fy  the 
 County verbally and in wri�ng. 

 iii.  As  evidence  of  the  insurance  coverage  required  by  this  Agreement,  and  prior  to  the 
 execu�on  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  a  Cer�ficate  of  Insurance  to 
 Polk  County,  to  Polk  County  Health  Services,  182  SW  Academy  Street,  Suite  204, 
 Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  Cer�ficate  form,  to  be  completed  by  the  Contractor's 
 insurer,  naming  Polk  County  as  addi�onal  insured,  will  be  maintained  in  the  County's 
 file of this Agreement. 

 iv.  There  shall  not  be  any  cancella�on,  material  changes  or  failure  to  renew  such 
 insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior no�ce to the County. 

 L.  Subcontrac�ng:  Unless  subcontrac�ng  is  authorized  elsewhere  in  the  Agree ment,  the 
 Contractor  shall  not  enter  into  any  subcontracts  for  any  of  the  work  contemplated  under 
 this  Agreement  without  obtaining  prior  wri�en  approval  from  the  County,  which 
 approval  shall  be  a�ached  to  the  original  Agreement.  Approval  by  the  County  of  a 
 subcontract  shall  not  result  in  any  obliga�ons  of  the  County  in  addi�on  to  the  agreed 
 rates  of  payment  and  total  considera�on.  Any  subcontracts  which  the  County  may 

 5 



 authorize  shall  contain  all  requirements  of  this  Agreement,  and  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 responsible  for  the  performance  of  the  subcontractor.  Contractor  may  subcon tract 
 medical  inves�gator's  du�es  so  long  as  the  sub contractor  possesses  medical 
 qualifica�ons equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

 M.  Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on:  Any  altera�ons,  varia�ons,  modifica�ons  to  or  waivers 
 of  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  valid  only  when  they  have  been  reduced  to 
 wri�ng,  duly  signed,  and  approved  by  the  Contractor  and  the  County  and  a�ached  to 
 the original of this Agreement. 

 N.  Excuses  for  Nonperformance:  Neither  party  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  held  responsible 
 for  delay  or  failure  in  performance  of  the  ac�vi�es  required  herein  when  such  delay  or 
 failure  is  due  to  causes  beyond  the  control  and  without  the  fault  or  negligence  of  the 
 party.  Such  causes  may  include,  but  are  not  restricted  to,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  strikes, 
 acts  of  God  or  the  public  enemy,  unusually  severe  weather,  legal  acts  of  public 
 authori�es,  or  delays  or  defaults  caused  by  public  carriers,  which  cannot  reasonably  be 
 forecast  or  provided  against.  Either  party  may  terminate  the  Agreement  a�er 
 reasonably  determining  that  such  delay  or  failure  will  prevent  con�nued  performance  of 
 the  Agreement,  and  a�er  giving  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  other  party  of  the  cause,  its  effect 
 on  Agreement  performance  and  effec �ve  date  of  termina�on.  If  the  Agreement  is  so 
 terminated,  the  obliga�on  of  the  County  shall  be  limited  to  payment  for  services 
 provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of termina�on. 

 O.  Remedies:  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  or  perform  any  of  the  other 
 requirements  under  the  Contract,  and  such  failure  is  not  excused  under  the  paragraph 
 �tled  "Excuses  for  Nonperformance",  the  County,  a�er  giving  the  Contractor  wri�en 
 no�ce  of  such  failure,  may  withhold  part  or  all  of  the  Contractor's  payment  for  the 
 services  un�l  such  failure  is  corrected.  If  the  Contractor  does  not  correct  such  failure 
 within  a  reasonable  �me  allowed  by  the  County,  the  County  may  terminate  the 
 Agreement  in  accordance  with  the  clause  �tled  "Termina�on."  However,  this  paragraph, 
 and  any  ac�ons  taken  or  not  taken  under  it,  shall  not  affect  the  County's  rights  under  the 
 "Termina�on" clause. 

 P.  Termina�on:  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  par�es  or 
 unilaterally  by  both  par�es  at  any  �me  upon  thirty  (30)  days’  no�ce  to  the  other  party 
 in  wri�ng  and  delivered  personally  or  by  Cer�fied  Mail.  The  County  may  also  unilaterally 
 terminate  this  Agreement  effec�ve  upon  delivery  of  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  Contrac tor,  or 
 at  such  later  date  as  may  be  established  by  the  County,  under  any  of  the  following 
 condi�ons: 

 6 



 i.  If  funds,  specifically  authorized  by  Legisla�ve  acts,  do  not  become  available  in 
 amounts  sufficient  to  allow  for  purchase  of  the  stated  quan�ty  of  services.  When 
 possible  and  when  agreed  upon  by  the  par�es,  the  Agreement  may  be  modified  in 
 accordance  with  the  paragraph  en�tled  “Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on”  to 
 accommodate a reduc�on in funds. 

 ii.  If  Federal  or  State  laws,  regula�ons  or  guidelines  are  modified  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 Agreement  or  no  longer  qualify  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments  authorized  by 
 this Agreement. 

 iii.  If  any  license  or  cer�ficate  required  by  law  or  regula�on  to  be  held  by  the  Contractor 
 to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  Agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied,  revoked, 
 not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Contractor  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cer�ficate. 

 iv.  Termina�on  under  this  clause  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obliga�ons  or 
 liabili�es  of  either  party  already  reasonably  incurred  prior  to  such  termina�on, 
 except  that  the  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  its  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es 
 a�er  the  termina�on  date,  which  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es  result  from  the 
 Contractor's  failure  to  provide  for  termina�on  of,  or  exercises  the  right  to  terminate, 
 its  commitments.  No  right  of  ac�on  or  damages  shall  accrue  to  the  benefit  of  the 
 Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

 v.  The  County,  by  wri�en  no�ce  of  default  (including  breach  of  contract)  to  the 
 Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

 a.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  Agreement  within 
 the �me speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

 b.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  perform  any  of  the  other  requirements  of  this 
 Agreement; or 

 c.  If  the  Contractor  so  fails  to  perform  the  work  required  in  the  Agreement  that 
 performance  of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and 
 a�er  receipt  of  wri�en  no�ce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  correct  such  failure  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period 
 as the County may authorize. 

 vi.  If  the  Agreement  is  terminated  under  this  clause,  the  County's  obliga�ons  shall  be 
 limited  to  payment  for  services  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Agreement  prior  to 

 7 



 the  date  of  termina�on,  less  any  damages  suffered  by  the  County.  The  rights  and 
 remedies  of  the  County  in  this  clause  related  to  defaults  (including  breach  of 
 contract)  by  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  exclusive  and  are  in  addi�on  to  any  other 
 rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

 Q.  Hold  Harmless:  Except  for  claims  arising  in  whole  from  the  negligence  of  County,  its 
 employees  or  its  agents,  Contractor  agrees  to  indemnify  and  hold  County  harmless  from 
 and  against  all  ac�ons,  suits,  claims  and  demands  arising  out  of  Contractor’s 
 performance  under  this  Contract  and  agrees  to  defend  County  in  such  ac�ons,  suits, 
 claims and demands. 

 R.  Waiver  of  Default:  Waiver  of  any  default  shall  not  be  deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any 
 subsequent  default.  Waiver  of  breach  of  any  provision  of  the  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any  other  or  subsequent  breach  and  shall  not  be  construed  to 
 be  a  modifica�on  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement  unless  stated  to  be  such  in  wri�ng, 
 signed  by  an  authorized  representa�ve  of  the  County,  and  a�ached  to  the  original 
 Agreement in accordance with the paragraph en�tled "Re-nego�a�on or Modifica�on". 

 S.  Severability:  The  par�es  agree  that  if  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  declared 
 by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdic�on  to  be  illegal  or  in  conflict  with  any  law,  the  validity  of 
 the  remaining  terms  and  provisions  shall  not  be  affected,  and  the  rights  and  obliga�ons 
 of  the  par�es  shall  be  construed  and  enforced  as  if  the  Agreement  did  not  contain  the 
 par�cular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 T.  Fees  Prohibited:  The  Contractor  will  not  impose  or  demand  any  fees  from  any  person  or 
 agency  for  services  provided  and  paid  for  under  this  Agreement,  unless  the  fees  have 
 been approved in advance by the County in wri�ng. 

 U.  Non-Discrimina�on:  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  they  are  an  equal  opportunity 
 employer  and  no  person  shall  be  denied  services  or  discrimi nated  against  on  the  basis  of 
 race,  color,  religion,  sex,  sexual  orienta�on,  na�onal  origin,  marital  status  or  age,  and 
 there  shall  be  no  discrimina�on  in  the  selec�on,  compensa�on  or  the  employ ment 
 prac�ces with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

 V.  Assignment  of  Agreement:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  or  transfer  its  interest  in  this 
 Agreement  without  prior  wri�en  approval  of  the  County,  which  shall  be  a�ached  to  the 
 original  Agreement.  Any  such  assignment,  if  approved,  is  subject  to  such  condi�ons  and 
 provisions,  as  the  County  may  deem  necessary.  No  approval  by  the  County  of  any 
 assignment  or  transfer  of  interest  shall  be  deemed  to  create  any  obliga�on  of  the  county 
 in addi�on to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement considera�on. 

 8 



 W.  Funds  Authorized  and  Available:  The  County  cer�fies  that  at  the  �me  of  signing  this 
 Agree ment,  sufficient  funds  are  authorized  and  available,  or  are  an�cipated  to  be 
 available,  for  expenditure  to  finance  costs  of  this  Agreement  within  the  County's  current 
 appropri a�on or limita�on. 

 X.  Recovery  of  Overpayments:  If  billings  under  this  Agreement,  or  under  any  Agreement 
 between  the  Contractor  and  the  County,  result  in  payments  to  the  Contractor  for  which 
 the  Contractor  is  not  en�tled  under  the  terms  of  such  Agreement,  the  County,  a�er 
 giving  wri�en  no�fica�on  to  the  Contractor,  may  withhold  from  payments  due  to  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  such  amounts,  over  such  periods  of  �me,  as  are 
 necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

 Y.  Criminal  History  Records  Checks:  Contractor  agrees  to  authorize  a  review  of  state  and 
 federal  records  by  Polk  County  as  a  qualified  en�ty,  to  determine  the  nature  of  any 
 criminal  ac�vity  the  Contractor  may  have  been  involved  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 943-007-001  for  purposes  described  in  OAR  407-007-0400.  No  work  will  be  assigned  to 
 Contractor  un�l  a  Criminal  History  Check  is  completed  and  verified  by  the  qualified 
 en�ty.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  Polk  County  within  five  days  of  being  arrested,  charged,  or 
 convicted of any crime. 

 SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

 A.  Payment  of  Subcontractors,  Industrial  Accident  Fund  Contribu�ons,  Liens  and 
 Withholding Taxes: 

 1.  Contractor  shall  make  payment  promptly,  as  due,  to  all  persons  supplying  to  such 
 contractor  labor  or  material  for  the  prosecu�on  of  the  work  provided  for  in  this 
 contract. 

 2.  Contractor  shall  pay  all  contribu�ons  or  amounts  due  the  Industrial  Accident  Fund 
 from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 3.  Contractor  shall  not  permit  any  lien  or  claim  to  be  filed  or  prosecuted  against  the 
 state,  county,  school  district,  municipality,  Municipal  Corpora�on  or  subdivisions 
 thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

 4.  Contractor  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
 employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 B.  Payment  of  Claims  by  County  :  If  Contractor  fails,  neglects  or  refuses  to  make  prompt 
 payment  of  any  claim  for  labor  or  services  furnished  to  the  contractor  or  a  subcontractor 
 by  any  person  in  connec�on  with  the  public  contract  as  such  claim  becomes  due,  the 

 9 



 proper  officer  or  officers  represen�ng  Polk  County  may  pay  such  claim  to  the  person 
 furnishing  the  labor  or  services  and  charge  the  amount  of  payment  against  funds  due  or 
 to  become  due  the  Contractor  by  reason  of  this  contract.  Payment  of  a  claim  in  this 
 manner  shall  not  relieve  the  contractor  or  contractor’s  surety  from  obliga�on  with 
 respect to any unpaid claims. 

 C.  Hours  of  Labor:  All  laborers  providing  contract  services  shall  be  paid  at  least  �me  and  a 
 half  for  all  over�me  worked  in  excess  of  40  hours  in  any  one  week,  except  for  individuals 
 under  these  contracts  who  are  excluded  under  ORS  653.010  to  653.261  or  under  29  USC 
 sec�on 201 to 209 from receiving over�me. 

 D.  Payment  for  Medical  Care:  Contractor  shall  promptly,  as  due,  make  payment  to  any 
 person,  co-partnership,  associa�on  or  corpora�on,  furnishing  medical,  surgical  and 
 hospital  care  or  other  needed  care  and  a�en�on,  incident  to  sickness  or  injury,  to  the 
 employees  for  such  Contractor,  of  all  sums  which  the  Contractor  agrees  to  pay  for  such 
 services  and  all  moneys  and  sums  which  the  contractor  collected  or  deducted  from  the 
 wages  of  employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
 providing or paying such service. 

 E.  Providing  Workers’  Compensa�on  Insurance:  All  employers  working  under  this  contract 
 are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 F.  Health  Care  Benefits  for  Employees:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  health  care  benefits  to 
 all  employees  who  are  performing  services  previously  performed  by  public  employees  if 
 the  condi�ons  specified  in  ORS  653.767  require  such  payment.  Benefits  must  equal  or 
 exceed  those  benefits  specified  in  ORS  279.315(3).  This  clause  does  not  apply  to 
 contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

 G.  Americans  with  Disabili�es  Act  Compliance:  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor  will 
 comply  and  does  comply  with  all  relevant  provisions  of  the  Americans  with  Disabili�es 
 Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 10 





 EXHIBIT A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 Between 
 POLK COUNTY  and  KINSEY MILLER, dba ELDER CARE OF OREGON 

 1.  DEFINITIONS: 

 Except  as  otherwise  defined  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA  Agreement),  any 
 and  all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  defini�on  as  those  in  the  HIPAA 
 Privacy  Rule.  1  Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon, 
 shall  be  referred  to  as  “COUNTY”  and  KINSEY  MILLER,  dba  ELDER  CARE  OF  OREGON, 
 shall be referred to as “CONTRACTOR”. 

 2.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

 A.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on  other  than 
 as permi�ed or required by this BA Agreement or as permi�ed or required by law. 

 B.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health Informa�on other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 C.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  mi�gate,  to  the  extent  prac�cable,  any  harmful  effect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  by 
 CONTRACTOR in viola�on of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  not  provided  for  by  this  BA  Agreement  of  which  it  becomes 
 aware. 

 E.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restric�ons  and 
 condi�ons  that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to 
 such informa�on. 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa�on in performance of Business Associate func�ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden�fiable Health Informa�on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa�on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 12 



 F.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access, 
 at  the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the 
 COUNTY  or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the 
 requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 G.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for 
 reasonable compliance. 

 H.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  prac�ces,  books,  and  records,  including 
 policies  and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  rela�ng  to  the  use  and 
 disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary 
 of  the  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  �me  and  manner  agreed 
 between  the  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for 
 purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining  the  COUNTY’S  compliance  with  the  Privacy 
 Rule. 

 I.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on 
 and  informa�on  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to 
 respond  to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected 
 Health Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 J.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  �me  and 
 manner  necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informa�on  collected  in  accordance 
 with  sec�on  2.A  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a 
 request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 3.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in 
 this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on to 
 perform certain health plan func�ons for or on behalf of the COUNTY as specified in the 
 Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure 
 would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary 
 policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 13 



 4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

 A.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any limita�on(s) in the  No�ce of Privacy 
 Prac�ces  of the COUNTY in accordance with 45 CFR  § 164.520, to the extent that 
 such limita�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 B.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any changes in, or revoca�on of, 
 permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on, to the 
 extent that such changes may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected 
 Health Informa�on. 

 C.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any restric�on to the use or disclosure of 
 Protected Health Informa�on that the COUNTY has agreed to in accordance with 45 
 CFR § 164.522, to the extent that such restric�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or 
 disclosure of Protected Health Informa�on. 

 5.  PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: The COUNTY shall not request CONTRACTOR to 
 use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on in any manner that would not be 
 permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY except if such use or 
 disclosure is permi�ed under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION: 

 A.  Term  . This BA Agreement shall be effec�ve as of July  01, 2023, and shall terminate 
 when all of the Protected Health Informa�on provided by the COUNTY to 
 CONTRACTOR, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY, is 
 destroyed or returned to the COUNTY, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy 
 Protected Health Informa�on, protec�ons are extended to such informa�on, in 
 accordance with the termina�on provisions in this Sec�on. 

 B.  Termina�on for Cause  . Upon the COUNTY’S knowledge  of a material breach by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 i.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to cure the breach without the 
 interven�on of the COUNTY within the �meline specified in Sec�on III (P) of the 
 Polk County Agreement; or 

 ii.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to terminate this BA Agreement and 
 the Polk County Agreement within the �meline specified in Sec�on III of the Polk 
 County Agreement. At the direc�on of its Board of Directors, the COUNTY may 

 14 



 terminate this BA Agreement and the Polk County Agreement as permi�ed in 
 Sec�on III of the Polk County Agreement if CONTRACTOR has not cured the 
 breach upon conclusion of the technical assistance and correc�ve ac�on 
 described in paragraph (i.) of this sec�on; or 

 iii.  If neither termina�on nor cure is feasible, the COUNTY shall report the viola�on 
 to the Secretary. 

 C.  Effect of Termina�on  . 

 i.  Except as provided in paragraph (ii.) of this sec�on, upon termina�on of this BA 
 Agreement, for any reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all Protected 
 Health Informa�on received from the COUNTY, or created or received by 
 CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY. This provision shall apply to Protected 
 Health Informa�on that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 
 CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall retain no copies of the Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 ii.  In the event that CONTRACTOR determines that returning or destroying the 
 Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the 
 COUNTY wri�en no�fica�on of the condi�ons that make return or destruc�on 
 infeasible. Upon wri�en acknowledgement by the COUNTY that the return or 
 destruc�on of Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall 
 extend the protec�ons of this BA Agreement to such Protected Health 
 Informa�on and limit further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health 
 Informa�on to those purposed that make the return or destruc�on infeasible, for 
 so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health Informa�on. 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS: 

 A.  Regulatory References  . References in this BA Agreement  to the Privacy Rule or any 
 sec�on of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or sec�on as in effect or as 
 amended. 

 B.  Amendment  . The COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree to take  such ac�on as is 
 necessary to amend this BA Agreement from �me to �me as is necessary for the 
 COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 C.  Survival  . The respec�ve rights and obliga�ons of  CONTRACTOR under Sec�on 6.C of 
 this BA Agreement shall survive the termina�on of this BA Agreement. 

 15 



 D.  Interpreta�on  . Any ambiguity in this BA Agreement shall be resolved to permit the 
 COUNTY to comply with the Privacy Rule. In the event of any inconsistency between 
 the provisions of this BA Agreement and the mandatory provisions of the Privacy 
 Rule, the Privacy Rule shall control. Where laws in the State of Oregon or other 
 federal law is more stringent than the Privacy Rule, the more stringent Oregon or 
 federal law shall control. 

 8.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

 A.  Background Requirement  : The COUNTY, in accordance  with § 164.306 and § 164.308 
 (b), may permit the CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic 
 Protected Health Informa�on on the COUNTY’S behalf only if the COUNTY obtains 
 sa�sfactory assurances, in accordance with § 164.314(a) that the CONTRACTOR will 
 appropriately safeguard the informa�on. The COUNTY must document the 
 sa�sfactory assurances through a wri�en contract or other arrangement with the 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 B.  Part I. Security Assurances  : The CONTRACTOR will Implement  administra�ve, 
 physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
 confiden�ality, integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health 
 informa�on that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the 
 COUNTY as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
 1996 and the requirements of Health Insurance Reform, the Security Standards 
 (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 i.  Ensure that any agent, including a SUBCONTRACTOR, to whom it provides such 
 informa�on, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to 
 protect it. 

 ii.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 iii.  Authorize termina�on of the contract by the COUNTY, if the COUNTY determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 C.  Part II.  Other arrangements:  When the COUNTY and the  CONTRACTOR are both 
 governmental en��es, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 i.  It enters into a memorandum of understanding with the CONTRACTOR that 
 contains terms that accomplish the objec�ves of Part I.; or 

 16 



 ii.  Other  law  (including  regula�ons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objec�ves of Part I. 

 D.  If the CONTRACTOR is required by law to perform a func�on or ac�vity on behalf of 
 the COUNTY or to provide a service described in the defini�on of CONTRACTOR as 
 specified in § 160.103 of the regula�on to the COUNTY, the COUNTY may permit the 
 CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic Protected Health 
 Informa�on on its behalf to the extent necessary to comply with the legal mandate 
 without mee�ng the requirements of Part I., although the COUNTY will a�empt in 
 good faith to obtain sa�sfactory assurances as required by Part I. (A), and will 
 document the a�empt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if 
 not obtained. 

 17 



 EXHIBIT B: 
 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 POLK  COUNTY,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon  and,  KINSEY  MILLER,  dba  ELDER 
 CARE OF OREGON, hereina�er called “Contractor,” hereby agree to the following: 

 1.  STATEMENT OF SERVICES 

 A.  Contractor  agrees  to  work  within  scope,  training  and  experience  as  a  Licensed 
 Professional  Counselor,  to  provide  services,  support  and  training  that  meets  the  needs  of 
 both Contractor and County as evidenced by the Service Authoriza�on and Ac�vity form. 

 B.  Contractor  will  provide  Behavioral  Health  Clinical  services.  Contractor  shall  perform  all 
 services  deemed  necessary  in  their  professional  opinion  based  upon  their  training, 
 educa�on  and  exper�se  as  evidenced  in  the  applica�on  materials  and  other  professional 
 endorsements, notwithstanding any limita�ons set forth in this agreement. 

 C.  Contractor  shall  only  use  methods  or  techniques  in  which  the  Contractor  has 
 documented  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se.  Contractor  will  ensure  services  provided 
 are  within  rules  and  guidelines  of  Oregon  Health  Authority,  Health  Services  Division: 
 Behavioral Health Services, Chapter 309-019. 

 2.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 A.  Contractors  must  provide  primary  source  verifica�on  of  creden�als.  No  work  will  be 
 assigned  to  Contractors  who  render  direct  service  to  clients  or  pa�ents  un�l  creden�als 
 have been validated for Medicaid claims. 

 B.  Annual  requirements  mandate  that  the  Contractor  will  submit  a  conflict  of  Interest 
 Statement.  Contractor  queries  of  the  OIG  and  EPLS  List  of  Excluded  Individuals/En��es 
 database  will  also  be  performed  annually.  Bases  for  exclusion  include  convic�ons  for 
 program-related  fraud  and  pa�ent  abuse,  licensing  board  ac�ons  and  default  on  Health 
 Educa�on  Assistance  Loans.  It  is  the  expecta�on  that  Contractor  will  maintain 
 creden�aling  required  to  perform  job  du�es  in  good  standing.  It  is  the  responsibility  of 
 the  Contractor  to  report  any  circumstances  that  would  jeopardize  this  standing  or  lead 
 to exclusionary status. Failure to do so may lead to contract termina�on  . 

 C.  Contractor  agrees  to  report  cases  of  suspected  Medicaid,  Medicare  fraud,  waste,  or 
 abuse  to  the  PCBH  Compliance  Officer  at  503-623-9289.  If  there  is  reason  to  believe 
 that  PCBH  cannot  respond  appropriately  to  a  suspected  case  of  fraud,  waste,  or  abuse, 
 or  if  the  case  involves  PCBH,  then  Contractor  agrees  to  make  a  report  to  Ethicspoint  at 
 888-265-4068. 

 18 



 D.  County  may  conduct  performance  reviews  annually  to  assess  Contractor’s  performance 
 as it relates to the services required under this contract. 

 E.  Absences: 

 i.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  at  least  five  (5)  business  days  in  advance  for  all 
 an�cipated extended absences (i.e. vaca�ons, professional mee�ngs, etc.). 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  of  unplanned  absences  (ie:  illness  or  other 
 unforeseen events) at least one hour prior to expected work �me. 

 F.  Contractor  agrees  to  provide  10  business  day  no�ce  of  changes  to  their  clinic  schedule 
 availability. 

 G.  All  client  records  are  considered  the  property  of  the  County  and  shall  not  be  retained  by 
 the  Contractor.  Contractor  shall  have  all  service  notes  and  documenta�on  completed 
 within  three  business  days  of  service  encounter.  Contractor  shall  maintain  client/pa�ent 
 records and documenta�on within CMS guidelines. 

 H.  Contractor  may  elect  to  use  the  electronic  health  record  system  supported  by  the 
 County.  Contractor  shall  provide  County  with  a  Cer�ficate  of  Electronic  Health  Record 
 Technology  (CEHRT)  when  Contractor  elects  to  use  a  system  that  is  not  supported  by  the 
 County or Oregon Health Authority. 

 I.  Documents  that  are  required  for  billing  shall  be  submi�ed  three  days  a�er  the  close  of 
 business  on  the  last  weekday  of  each  month.  Documenta�on  found  to  be  out  of 
 compliance  with  County  and/or  State  guidelines  shall  be  corrected  within  ten  (10) 
 business days. 

 J.  Billable  service  notes  shall  meet  documenta�on  standards  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 309-019-0135 through 309-019-0145. 

 A.  Contractor  is  required  to  receive  two  hours  of  clinical  supervision  quarterly  ,  which  shall 
 include  at  least  one  hour  of  individual  face-to-face  contact  either  in  person  or  via 
 two-way  audio  visual  conferencing  from  a  qualified  clinical  supervisor.  Contractor  will  be 
 required  to  provide  documenta�on  of  supervision  received,  if  obtained  by  a  Clinical 
 Supervisor Outside of County. Failure to do so may lead to contract termina�on. 

 3.  AUTHORIZED SERVICES 

 A.  County  will  only  pay  for  service  and  ac�vi�es  that  have  been  pre  authorized  and  agreed 
 upon in wri�ng by both par�es on a Service and Ac�vity Authoriza�on Form. 

 19 



 B.  County  will  authorize  services  based  on  Level  of  Care  as  outlined  in  the  Individual 
 Service  Plan.  All  services  submi�ed  for  payment  must  be  supported  by  the  Individual 
 Service Plan and verified by County to be compliant with applicable regula�ons. 

 4.  RATES AND METHOD OF PAY 

 A.  County  shall  reimburse  the  Contractor  at  the  rate  of  $110.00  per  hour  for  services  as 
 outlined  in  the  Service  Ac�vity  Authoriza�on  form  with  services  paid  on  a  per 
 occurrence basis to the nearest quarter hour upon receipt of an invoice. 

 B.  County  shall  reimburse  the  Contractor  at  the  rate  of  $450.00  per  Pre-Admission 
 Screening and Resident Review (PASRR) upon receipt of an invoice. 

 C.  County  will  have  no  legal  obliga�on  to  pay  for  any  unauthorized  services,  including 
 unauthorized expenditures. 

 20 



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Public Health  Consent Calendar Date:  July 05, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Cynthia Rettler 

 Address:  923 SW Ellis Street 

 City, State, Zip:  Dallas, OR 97338 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 01, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  Varies 

 Background: 

 Cynthia “Cindy” Rettler, has agreed to provide Public Health services to referred Polk County Public 
 Health individuals. 

 Discussion: 

 This contract is a continuation of services Cindy Rettler has been providing Polk County individuals 
 in the past fiscal years. Cindy Rettler meets the criteria for a service provider and has been cleared 
 to work with us through a criminal history records review. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Public Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
 contract. The fiscal year 2023-2024 Public Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this 
 agreement. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Cynthia Rettler. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  06/26/23 

 CONTRACTOR  CYNTHIA R. RETTLER 
 923 S.W. ELLIS STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 CONTACT PERSON:  CINDY RETTLER 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide Registered Nurse services as described in Exhibit 
 B. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM JULY 01, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2024 

 BUDGET LINE #:  235-8540-VARIES 

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  VARIES 

 TERMS:  Service Rates per Exhibit B 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 23-131



 AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

 POLK COUNTY 
 PUBLIC HEALTH 

 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 a poliƟcal subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereinaŌer referred to as "County" and 

 CYNTHIA R.RETTLER 
 923 S.W. ELLIS STREET 

 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 hereinaŌer referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  is  authorized  to  obtain,  by  contract,  the  services  necessary  to  conduct  its 
 operaƟon; and 

 WHEREAS,  Contractor  has  available,  or  can  obtain,  the  necessary  licenses  or  cerƟficates 
 required for the performance of said services; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  parƟes  above-menƟoned,  for  and 
 in consideraƟon of the mutual promises hereinaŌer stated as follows: 

 SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A.  The  County  is  desirous  of  securing  the  services  of  the  Contractor  to  perform  services 
 more  specifically  outlined  in  Exhibit  B:  Statement  of  Work,  based  on  Contractor’s 
 specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

 B.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  authorized  services  to  Polk  County  referrals  at  Contractor’s 
 faciliƟes,  Polk  County  Buildings  on  space  available  basis,  and/or  consumer’s  school 
 facility,  work  locaƟon,  or  home  depending  upon  the  needs  of  the  individual.  Depending 
 on  the  nature  of  services  provided,  the  locaƟon  of  services  may  be  curtailed  by  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement of Work. 

 C.  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the  document  enƟtled  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement  of  Work,  which  is  aƩached  and  by  reference  herein,  made  an  integral  part  of 
 this Agreement. 

 1 



 SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

 A.  As  consideraƟon  for  the  services  provided  by  the  Contractor  during  the  period  beginning 
 July  01,  2023,  and  ending  June  30,  2024,  payment  shall  be  retroacƟve  for  approved 
 services  provided  to  Polk  County  referrals  on  or  aŌer  the  period  beginning  date.  Any 
 renewals  and/or  changes  to  this  agreement  must  be  submiƩed  in  wriƟng,  in  the  form  of 
 an amendment to this Contract and signed by both ParƟes. 

 B.  Agreement  is  effecƟve  upon  the  signature  of  all  parƟes.  It  is  understood  by  both  parƟes 
 that  no  commitments  have  been  or  are  made  by  either  party  beyond  the  terminaƟon  of 
 the Agreement. 

 C.  The  County  will  pay  to  the  Contractor,  by  check(s)  or  ACH  direct  payment  upon  receipt  of 
 an  authorized  billing  document  at  the  rates  outlined  in  Exhibit  B  and  as  approved  by  Polk 
 County.  Billings  shall  be  submiƩed  to  HS  Fiscal  either  electronically  to 
 hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us  or  by  mail  to  Polk  County  Health  Services  Business  Services 
 Department,  182  SW  Academy  Street  Suite  204,  Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  County  shall 
 endeavor  remit  payment  within  2-3  weeks  of  receipt  of  appropriate  billing,  supporƟng 
 documentaƟon and signed invoice. 

 D.  It  is  agreed  that  Contractor  shall  accept  payment  from  Polk  County  as  full  and  total 
 payment  for  services  and  that  Contractor  shall  not  bill  any  Polk  County  clients  (or  their 
 insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

 E.  Contractor  is  engaged  hereby  as  an  independent  contrac tor,  and  the  services  to  be 
 rendered  are  those  of  an  independent  contractor,  subject  to  ORS  Chapter  656,  and  will 
 be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

 i.  Contractor  will  be  solely  responsible  for  payment  of  any  Federal  or  State  taxes 
 required as a result of this Agreement. 

 ii.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  to  enƟtle  Contractor  to  any  benefits  generally 
 granted  to  County  employees.  Without  limitaƟon,  but  by  way  of  illustraƟon,  the 
 benefits  which  are  not  intended  to  be  extended  by  this  Agreement  to  the  Contractor 
 are  vacaƟon,  holiday  and  sick  leave,  other  leaves  with  pay,  tenure,  medical  and 
 dental  coverage,  life  and  disability  insurance,  overƟme,  Social  Security,  workers' 
 compensaƟon, unemployment compensaƟon or reƟrement benefits . 

 iii.  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  for  purposes  of  the  Oregon  Workers' 
 CompensaƟon  Law  (ORS  Chapter  656)  and  is  solely  liable  for  any  Workers' 
 CompensaƟon  coverage  under  this  Agreement.  If  the  Contractor  has  the  assistance 

 2 



 of  other  persons  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  qualify 
 and  remain  qualified  for  the  term  of  this  Agreement  as  a  direct  responsibility 
 employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib uƟng employer under ORS 656.411. 

 F.  Exhibit  A  –  Business  Associate  Agreement  aƩached  hereto  is  by  this  reference 
 incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

 SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 A.  Extent  of  Agreement:  This  Agreement  contains  all  the  terms  and  condiƟons  agreed  upon 
 by  the  parƟes.  No  other  understandings,  oral  or  otherwise,  regarding  the  subject  maƩer 
 of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parƟes hereto. 

 B.  CapƟons:  The  capƟons  or  headings  in  this  Agreement  are  for  convenience  only  and  in  no 
 way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 C.  Payment  as  Sole  Monetary  ObligaƟon  of  the  County:  The  Contractor  is  engaged  as  an 
 independent  contractor.  Payment  as  provided  herein  shall  be  the  sole  monetary 
 obliga Ɵon  of  the  County.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  responsi bility  for  payment  of 
 all  operaƟng  costs,  Federal,  State,  County  or  city  taxes/assessments  and  any  other 
 charges  imposed  by  law  upon  employers  shall  be  the  sole  responsibility  of  the 
 Contractor. 

 D.  Licensing  and  Program  Standards:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with  all  applicable 
 State,  County,  and  municipal  standards  for  licensing,  and  any  other  standards  or  criteria 
 described in this Agreement and its aƩachments. 

 E.  Contractor-client  RelaƟonship:  The  Contractor  will  establish  a  system  through  which  a 
 client  and/or  the  client’s  parents  or  guardian  may  represent  grievances  about  the 
 operaƟon  of  the  Contractor’s  service  program.  At  the  Ɵme  arrangements  are  made  for 
 the  Contractor’s  service,  the  Contractor  will  advise  the  child  and  parents  or  guardian  of 
 the provision.  The Contractor shall noƟfy the County of all unresolved grievances. 

 F.  Safeguarding of Client InformaƟon: 

 i.  The  use  or  disclosure  by  any  party  of  any  informaƟon  concern ing  a  recipient  of 
 services  purchased  under  this  Agreement,  for  any  purpose  not  directly  connected 
 with  the  administra Ɵon  of  the  County's  or  the  Contractor's  responsibiliƟes  with 
 respect  to  such  purchased  services,  is  prohibited,  except  on  wriƩen  consent  of  the 
 County,  or  if  the  County  is  not  the  recipient,  on  wriƩen  consent  of  the  recipient  or 
 aƩorney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obligaƟons under Exhibit A. 

 3 



 ii.  For  the  purposes  of  safeguarding  protected  client  informaƟon,  Contractor  agrees  to 
 abide  by  all  County  rules  and  regulaƟons  regarding  CommunicaƟon  technology  as 
 documented  in  the  County’s  CommunicaƟons  Technology  Policy.  Contractors 
 providing  services  from  a  County  facility  will  be  provided  appropriate  County 
 equipment  to  perform  its  duƟes  under  this  agreement.  To  the  extent  that  Contractor 
 elects  to  use  their  own  technology  (computer,  cellular  phone,  etc…)  Contractor 
 warrants  that  such  equipment  shall  be  compliant  with  County  rules  and  regulaƟons, 
 and its obligaƟons under Exhibit A. 

 G.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  and  RehabilitaƟon  Act  of  1973:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply 
 with  the  requirements  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  and  SecƟon  504  of  the 
 Rehabilita Ɵon  Act  of  1973,  and  their  implemenƟng  Federal  regulaƟons,  including 
 ExecuƟve Order 11246 as amended. 

 H.  Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

 i.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to 
 assure  full  compliance  with  Federal  regulaƟons  and  the  County’s  guidelines  on 
 allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

 ii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  maintain  fiscal  records  consistent  with  generally  accepted 
 accounƟng  pracƟces  and  controls,  which  will  properly  reflect  all  direct  and  indirect 
 costs  and  funds  expended  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor 
 shall  make  these  records  available  at  reasonable  Ɵmes  upon  request  to  State  and 
 Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

 iii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  collect  financial  staƟsƟcs  on  a  regular  basis  and  to  make 
 financial reports at Ɵmes in the form prescribed by the County. 

 I.  Program  Records,  Controls,  Reports,  and  Monitoring  Procedures:  The  Contractor  agrees 
 to  maintain  program  records  including  staƟsƟcal  records,  and  to  provide  program 
 records  to  the  County  at  Ɵmes  and  in  the  form  prescribed  by  the  County.  The  Contractor 
 agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to  assure  full  compliance 
 with  the  program  and  faciliƟes  review  (including  meeƟngs  with  consumers,  reviews  of 
 service  records,  review  of  policy  and  procedures,  review  of  staffing  raƟos  and  job 
 descripƟons,  and  meeƟngs  with  any  staff  directly  of  indirectly  involved  in  the  provision 
 of  services)  may  be  conducted  at  any  reasonable  Ɵme  by  State  and  Federal  personnel 
 and other persons authorized by the County. 

 J.  RetenƟon  of  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  retain  all  books,  records,  and  other 
 documents  relevant  to  this  Agreement  for  three  (3)  years  aŌer  final  payment  is  made 

 4 



 under  the  Agreement  or  all  pending  maƩers  are  closed,  whichever  is  later.  If  liƟgaƟon  or 
 other  acƟon  involving  the  Agreement  is  started  before  the  end  of  the  three  (3)  year 
 period,  the  records  shall  be  retained  unƟl  all  issues  arising  out  of  the  acƟon  are  resolved 
 or unƟl the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

 K.  Insurance: 

 i.  Contractor  agrees  that  it  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  agent  of  the 
 County.  The  Contractor  and  the  County  shall  not  be  responsible  for  any  legal  liability, 
 loss,  malpracƟce,  damages,  costs  and  expenses  arising  in  favor  of  any  person  on 
 account  of  personal  injuries,  death  or  property  loss  or  damage  occurring,  growing 
 out  of,  incident  to  or  resulƟng  directly  or  indirectly  from  the  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 other party under this Agreement. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  obtain,  and  at  all  Ɵmes  keep  in  effect,  comprehensive  liability 
 insurance  and  property  damage  insurance  covering  acƟviƟes,  operaƟons,  and 
 omissions  of  the  Contractor,  all  subcontractors,  and  all  named  addiƟonal  insureds. 
 Contractor  may  saƟsfy  this  requirement  for  general  liability  insurance  in  any  manner 
 allowed  by  ORS  30.282.  Such  liability  insurance,  whatever  the  form,  shall  be  in  an 
 amount  not  less  than  one  million  dollars  ($1,000,000)  with  provision  for  increased 
 coverage  as  such  limits  are  increased  by  legislaƟve  acƟon.  In  the  event  of  unilateral 
 cancellaƟon  or  restricƟon  by  the  insurance  company  of  the  Contractor's  insurance 
 policy  referred  to  in  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor  shall  immediately  noƟfy  the 
 County verbally and in wriƟng. 

 iii.  As  evidence  of  the  insurance  coverage  required  by  this  Agreement,  and  prior  to  the 
 execuƟon  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  a  CerƟficate  of  Insurance  to 
 Polk  County,  to  Polk  County  Health  Services,  182  SW  Academy  Street,  Suite  204, 
 Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  CerƟficate  form,  to  be  completed  by  the  Contractor's 
 insurer,  naming  Polk  County  as  addiƟonal  insured,  will  be  maintained  in  the  County's 
 file of this Agreement. 

 iv.  There  shall  not  be  any  cancellaƟon,  material  changes  or  failure  to  renew  such 
 insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior noƟce to the County. 

 L.  SubcontracƟng:  Unless  subcontracƟng  is  authorized  elsewhere  in  the  Agree ment,  the 
 Contractor  shall  not  enter  into  any  subcontracts  for  any  of  the  work  contemplated  under 
 this  Agreement  without  obtaining  prior  wriƩen  approval  from  the  County,  which 
 approval  shall  be  aƩached  to  the  original  Agreement.  Approval  by  the  County  of  a 
 subcontract  shall  not  result  in  any  obligaƟons  of  the  County  in  addiƟon  to  the  agreed 
 rates  of  payment  and  total  consideraƟon.  Any  subcontracts  which  the  County  may 

 5 



 authorize  shall  contain  all  requirements  of  this  Agreement,  and  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 responsible  for  the  performance  of  the  subcontractor.  Contractor  may  subcon tract 
 medical  invesƟgator's  duƟes  so  long  as  the  sub contractor  possesses  medical 
 qualificaƟons equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

 M.  Re-negoƟaƟon  or  ModificaƟon:  Any  alteraƟons,  variaƟons,  modificaƟons  to  or  waivers 
 of  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  valid  only  when  they  have  been  reduced  to 
 wriƟng,  duly  signed,  and  approved  by  the  Contractor  and  the  County  and  aƩached  to 
 the original of this Agreement. 

 N.  Excuses  for  Nonperformance:  Neither  party  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  held  responsible 
 for  delay  or  failure  in  performance  of  the  acƟviƟes  required  herein  when  such  delay  or 
 failure  is  due  to  causes  beyond  the  control  and  without  the  fault  or  negligence  of  the 
 party.  Such  causes  may  include,  but  are  not  restricted  to,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  strikes, 
 acts  of  God  or  the  public  enemy,  unusually  severe  weather,  legal  acts  of  public 
 authoriƟes,  or  delays  or  defaults  caused  by  public  carriers,  which  cannot  reasonably  be 
 forecast  or  provided  against.  Either  party  may  terminate  the  Agreement  aŌer 
 reasonably  determining  that  such  delay  or  failure  will  prevent  conƟnued  performance  of 
 the  Agreement,  and  aŌer  giving  wriƩen  noƟce  to  the  other  party  of  the  cause,  its  effect 
 on  Agreement  performance  and  effec Ɵve  date  of  terminaƟon.  If  the  Agreement  is  so 
 terminated,  the  obligaƟon  of  the  County  shall  be  limited  to  payment  for  services 
 provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of terminaƟon. 

 O.  Remedies:  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  or  perform  any  of  the  other 
 requirements  under  the  Contract,  and  such  failure  is  not  excused  under  the  paragraph 
 Ɵtled  "Excuses  for  Nonperformance",  the  County,  aŌer  giving  the  Contractor  wriƩen 
 noƟce  of  such  failure,  may  withhold  part  or  all  of  the  Contractor's  payment  for  the 
 services  unƟl  such  failure  is  corrected.  If  the  Contractor  does  not  correct  such  failure 
 within  a  reasonable  Ɵme  allowed  by  the  County,  the  County  may  terminate  the 
 Agreement  in  accordance  with  the  clause  Ɵtled  "TerminaƟon."  However,  this  paragraph, 
 and  any  acƟons  taken  or  not  taken  under  it,  shall  not  affect  the  County's  rights  under  the 
 "TerminaƟon" clause. 

 P.  TerminaƟon:  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  parƟes  or 
 unilaterally  by  both  parƟes  at  any  Ɵme  upon  thirty  (30)  days’  noƟce  to  the  other  party 
 in  wriƟng  and  delivered  personally  or  by  CerƟfied  Mail.  The  County  may  also  unilaterally 
 terminate  this  Agreement  effecƟve  upon  delivery  of  wriƩen  noƟce  to  the  Contrac tor,  or 
 at  such  later  date  as  may  be  established  by  the  County,  under  any  of  the  following 
 condiƟons: 

 6 



 i.  If  funds,  specifically  authorized  by  LegislaƟve  acts,  do  not  become  available  in 
 amounts  sufficient  to  allow  for  purchase  of  the  stated  quanƟty  of  services.  When 
 possible  and  when  agreed  upon  by  the  parƟes,  the  Agreement  may  be  modified  in 
 accordance  with  the  paragraph  enƟtled  “Re-negoƟaƟon  or  ModificaƟon”  to 
 accommodate a reducƟon in funds. 

 ii.  If  Federal  or  State  laws,  regulaƟons  or  guidelines  are  modified  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 Agreement  or  no  longer  qualify  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments  authorized  by 
 this Agreement. 

 iii.  If  any  license  or  cerƟficate  required  by  law  or  regulaƟon  to  be  held  by  the  Contractor 
 to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  Agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied,  revoked, 
 not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Contractor  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cerƟficate. 

 iv.  TerminaƟon  under  this  clause  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obligaƟons  or 
 liabiliƟes  of  either  party  already  reasonably  incurred  prior  to  such  terminaƟon, 
 except  that  the  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  its  obligaƟons  or  liabiliƟes 
 aŌer  the  terminaƟon  date,  which  obligaƟons  or  liabiliƟes  result  from  the 
 Contractor's  failure  to  provide  for  terminaƟon  of,  or  exercises  the  right  to  terminate, 
 its  commitments.  No  right  of  acƟon  or  damages  shall  accrue  to  the  benefit  of  the 
 Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

 v.  The  County,  by  wriƩen  noƟce  of  default  (including  breach  of  contract)  to  the 
 Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

 a.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  Agreement  within 
 the Ɵme speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

 b.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  perform  any  of  the  other  requirements  of  this 
 Agreement; or 

 c.  If  the  Contractor  so  fails  to  perform  the  work  required  in  the  Agreement  that 
 performance  of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and 
 aŌer  receipt  of  wriƩen  noƟce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  correct  such  failure  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period 
 as the County may authorize. 

 vi.  If  the  Agreement  is  terminated  under  this  clause,  the  County's  obligaƟons  shall  be 
 limited  to  payment  for  services  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Agreement  prior  to 

 7 



 the  date  of  terminaƟon,  less  any  damages  suffered  by  the  County.  The  rights  and 
 remedies  of  the  County  in  this  clause  related  to  defaults  (including  breach  of 
 contract)  by  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  exclusive  and  are  in  addiƟon  to  any  other 
 rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

 Q.  Hold  Harmless:  Except  for  claims  arising  in  whole  from  the  negligence  of  County,  its 
 employees  or  its  agents,  Contractor  agrees  to  indemnify  and  hold  County  harmless  from 
 and  against  all  acƟons,  suits,  claims  and  demands  arising  out  of  Contractor’s 
 performance  under  this  Contract  and  agrees  to  defend  County  in  such  acƟons,  suits, 
 claims and demands. 

 R.  Waiver  of  Default:  Waiver  of  any  default  shall  not  be  deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any 
 subsequent  default.  Waiver  of  breach  of  any  provision  of  the  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any  other  or  subsequent  breach  and  shall  not  be  construed  to 
 be  a  modificaƟon  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement  unless  stated  to  be  such  in  wriƟng, 
 signed  by  an  authorized  representaƟve  of  the  County,  and  aƩached  to  the  original 
 Agreement in accordance with the paragraph enƟtled "Re-negoƟaƟon or ModificaƟon". 

 S.  Severability:  The  parƟes  agree  that  if  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  declared 
 by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdicƟon  to  be  illegal  or  in  conflict  with  any  law,  the  validity  of 
 the  remaining  terms  and  provisions  shall  not  be  affected,  and  the  rights  and  obligaƟons 
 of  the  parƟes  shall  be  construed  and  enforced  as  if  the  Agreement  did  not  contain  the 
 parƟcular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 T.  Fees  Prohibited:  The  Contractor  will  not  impose  or  demand  any  fees  from  any  person  or 
 agency  for  services  provided  and  paid  for  under  this  Agreement,  unless  the  fees  have 
 been approved in advance by the County in wriƟng. 

 U.  Non-DiscriminaƟon:  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  they  are  an  equal  opportunity 
 employer  and  no  person  shall  be  denied  services  or  discrimi nated  against  on  the  basis  of 
 race,  color,  religion,  sex,  sexual  orientaƟon,  naƟonal  origin,  marital  status  or  age,  and 
 there  shall  be  no  discriminaƟon  in  the  selecƟon,  compensaƟon  or  the  employ ment 
 pracƟces with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

 V.  Assignment  of  Agreement:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  or  transfer  its  interest  in  this 
 Agreement  without  prior  wriƩen  approval  of  the  County,  which  shall  be  aƩached  to  the 
 original  Agreement.  Any  such  assignment,  if  approved,  is  subject  to  such  condiƟons  and 
 provisions,  as  the  County  may  deem  necessary.  No  approval  by  the  County  of  any 
 assignment  or  transfer  of  interest  shall  be  deemed  to  create  any  obligaƟon  of  the  county 
 in addiƟon to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement consideraƟon. 

 8 



 W.  Funds  Authorized  and  Available:  The  County  cerƟfies  that  at  the  Ɵme  of  signing  this 
 Agree ment,  sufficient  funds  are  authorized  and  available,  or  are  anƟcipated  to  be 
 available,  for  expenditure  to  finance  costs  of  this  Agreement  within  the  County's  current 
 appropri aƟon or limitaƟon. 

 X.  Recovery  of  Overpayments:  If  billings  under  this  Agreement,  or  under  any  Agreement 
 between  the  Contractor  and  the  County,  result  in  payments  to  the  Contractor  for  which 
 the  Contractor  is  not  enƟtled  under  the  terms  of  such  Agreement,  the  County,  aŌer 
 giving  wriƩen  noƟficaƟon  to  the  Contractor,  may  withhold  from  payments  due  to  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  such  amounts,  over  such  periods  of  Ɵme,  as  are 
 necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

 Y.  Criminal  History  Records  Checks:  Contractor  agrees  to  authorize  a  review  of  state  and 
 federal  records  by  Polk  County  as  a  qualified  enƟty,  to  determine  the  nature  of  any 
 criminal  acƟvity  the  Contractor  may  have  been  involved  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 943-007-001  for  purposes  described  in  OAR  407-007-0400.  No  work  will  be  assigned  to 
 Contractor  unƟl  a  Criminal  History  Check  is  completed  and  verified  by  the  qualified 
 enƟty.  Contractor  shall  noƟfy  Polk  County  within  five  days  of  being  arrested,  charged,  or 
 convicted of any crime. 

 SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

 A.  Payment  of  Subcontractors,  Industrial  Accident  Fund  ContribuƟons,  Liens  and 
 Withholding Taxes: 

 1.  Contractor  shall  make  payment  promptly,  as  due,  to  all  persons  supplying  to  such 
 contractor  labor  or  material  for  the  prosecuƟon  of  the  work  provided  for  in  this 
 contract. 

 2.  Contractor  shall  pay  all  contribuƟons  or  amounts  due  the  Industrial  Accident  Fund 
 from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 3.  Contractor  shall  not  permit  any  lien  or  claim  to  be  filed  or  prosecuted  against  the 
 state,  county,  school  district,  municipality,  Municipal  CorporaƟon  or  subdivisions 
 thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

 4.  Contractor  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
 employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 B.  Payment  of  Claims  by  County  :  If  Contractor  fails,  neglects  or  refuses  to  make  prompt 
 payment  of  any  claim  for  labor  or  services  furnished  to  the  contractor  or  a  subcontractor 
 by  any  person  in  connecƟon  with  the  public  contract  as  such  claim  becomes  due,  the 

 9 



 proper  officer  or  officers  represenƟng  Polk  County  may  pay  such  claim  to  the  person 
 furnishing  the  labor  or  services  and  charge  the  amount  of  payment  against  funds  due  or 
 to  become  due  the  Contractor  by  reason  of  this  contract.  Payment  of  a  claim  in  this 
 manner  shall  not  relieve  the  contractor  or  contractor’s  surety  from  obligaƟon  with 
 respect to any unpaid claims. 

 C.  Hours  of  Labor:  All  laborers  providing  contract  services  shall  be  paid  at  least  Ɵme  and  a 
 half  for  all  overƟme  worked  in  excess  of  40  hours  in  any  one  week,  except  for  individuals 
 under  these  contracts  who  are  excluded  under  ORS  653.010  to  653.261  or  under  29  USC 
 secƟon 201 to 209 from receiving overƟme. 

 D.  Payment  for  Medical  Care:  Contractor  shall  promptly,  as  due,  make  payment  to  any 
 person,  co-partnership,  associaƟon  or  corporaƟon,  furnishing  medical,  surgical  and 
 hospital  care  or  other  needed  care  and  aƩenƟon,  incident  to  sickness  or  injury,  to  the 
 employees  for  such  Contractor,  of  all  sums  which  the  Contractor  agrees  to  pay  for  such 
 services  and  all  moneys  and  sums  which  the  contractor  collected  or  deducted  from  the 
 wages  of  employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
 providing or paying such service. 

 E.  Providing  Workers’  CompensaƟon  Insurance:  All  employers  working  under  this  contract 
 are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 F.  Health  Care  Benefits  for  Employees:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  health  care  benefits  to 
 all  employees  who  are  performing  services  previously  performed  by  public  employees  if 
 the  condiƟons  specified  in  ORS  653.767  require  such  payment.  Benefits  must  equal  or 
 exceed  those  benefits  specified  in  ORS  279.315(3).  This  clause  does  not  apply  to 
 contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

 G.  Americans  with  DisabiliƟes  Act  Compliance:  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor  will 
 comply  and  does  comply  with  all  relevant  provisions  of  the  Americans  with  DisabiliƟes 
 Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 10 



 SIGNATURE PAGE 

 BY SIGNATURE BELOW, both parƟes agree to and accept all terms and condiƟons of this 
 Agreement between County and Contractor along with the following: 

 ●  Exhibit A: Business Associate Agreement 
 ●  Exhibit B: Statement of Work 

 CONTRACTOR 

 Signature  Date 
 Title: 

 COUNTY 

 Chair  Date 
 Board of Commissioners 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 Morgan Smith  Date 
 County Counsel 

 11 

Signature
Registered Nurse

06/30/2023



 EXHIBIT A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 Between 
 POLK COUNTY  and  CYNTHIA R. RETTLER 

 1.  DEFINITIONS: 

 Except  as  otherwise  defined  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA  Agreement),  any 
 and  all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  definiƟon  as  those  in  the  HIPAA 
 Privacy  Rule.  1  Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poliƟcal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon, 
 shall  be  referred  to  as  “COUNTY”  and  Cynthia  R.  ReƩler,  shall  be  referred  to  as 
 “CONTRACTOR”. 

 2.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

 A.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa on  other  than 
 as permiƩed or required by this BA Agreement or as permiƩed or required by law. 

 B.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health InformaƟon other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 C.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  miƟgate,  to  the  extent  pracƟcable,  any  harmful  effect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  InformaƟon  by 
 CONTRACTOR in violaƟon of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health  InformaƟon  not  provided  for  by  this  BA  Agreement  of  which  it  becomes 
 aware. 

 E.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  InformaƟon  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restricƟons  and 
 condiƟons  that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to 
 such informaƟon. 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa on in performance of Business Associate func ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden fiable Health Informa on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 12 



 F.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access, 
 at  the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  Ɵme  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  InformaƟon  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the 
 COUNTY  or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the 
 requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 G.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  InformaƟon  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  Ɵme  and  manner  necessary  for 
 reasonable compliance. 

 H.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  pracƟces,  books,  and  records,  including 
 policies  and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  InformaƟon,  relaƟng  to  the  use  and 
 disclosure  of  Protected  Health  InformaƟon  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary 
 of  the  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  Ɵme  and  manner  agreed 
 between  the  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for 
 purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining  the  COUNTY’S  compliance  with  the  Privacy 
 Rule. 

 I.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  InformaƟon 
 and  informaƟon  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to 
 respond  to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accounƟng  of  disclosures  of  Protected 
 Health InformaƟon in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 J.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  Ɵme  and 
 manner  necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informaƟon  collected  in  accordance 
 with  secƟon  2.A  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a 
 request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accounƟng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 InformaƟon in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 3.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in 
 this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health InformaƟon to 
 perform certain health plan funcƟons for or on behalf of the COUNTY as specified in the 
 Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure 
 would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary 
 policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 13 



 4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

 A.  The COUNTY shall noƟfy CONTRACTOR of any limitaƟon(s) in the  No ce of Privacy 
 Prac ces  of the COUNTY in accordance with 45 CFR  § 164.520, to the extent that 
 such limitaƟon may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health 
 InformaƟon. 

 B.  The COUNTY shall noƟfy CONTRACTOR of any changes in, or revocaƟon of, 
 permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health InformaƟon, to the 
 extent that such changes may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected 
 Health InformaƟon. 

 C.  The COUNTY shall noƟfy CONTRACTOR of any restricƟon to the use or disclosure of 
 Protected Health InformaƟon that the COUNTY has agreed to in accordance with 45 
 CFR § 164.522, to the extent that such restricƟon may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or 
 disclosure of Protected Health InformaƟon. 

 5.  PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: The COUNTY shall not request CONTRACTOR to 
 use or disclose Protected Health InformaƟon in any manner that would not be 
 permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY except if such use or 
 disclosure is permiƩed under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION: 

 A.  Term  . This BA Agreement shall be effecƟve as of July  01, 2023, and shall terminate 
 when all of the Protected Health InformaƟon provided by the COUNTY to 
 CONTRACTOR, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY, is 
 destroyed or returned to the COUNTY, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy 
 Protected Health InformaƟon, protecƟons are extended to such informaƟon, in 
 accordance with the terminaƟon provisions in this SecƟon. 

 B.  TerminaƟon for Cause  . Upon the COUNTY’S knowledge  of a material breach by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 i.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to cure the breach without the 
 intervenƟon of the COUNTY within the Ɵmeline specified in SecƟon III (P) of the 
 Polk County Agreement; or 

 ii.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to terminate this BA Agreement and 
 the Polk County Agreement within the Ɵmeline specified in SecƟon III of the Polk 
 County Agreement. At the direcƟon of its Board of Directors, the COUNTY may 

 14 



 terminate this BA Agreement and the Polk County Agreement as permiƩed in 
 SecƟon III of the Polk County Agreement if CONTRACTOR has not cured the 
 breach upon conclusion of the technical assistance and correcƟve acƟon 
 described in paragraph (i.) of this secƟon; or 

 iii.  If neither terminaƟon nor cure is feasible, the COUNTY shall report the violaƟon 
 to the Secretary. 

 C.  Effect of TerminaƟon  . 

 i.  Except as provided in paragraph (ii.) of this secƟon, upon terminaƟon of this BA 
 Agreement, for any reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all Protected 
 Health InformaƟon received from the COUNTY, or created or received by 
 CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY. This provision shall apply to Protected 
 Health InformaƟon that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 
 CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall retain no copies of the Protected Health 
 InformaƟon. 

 ii.  In the event that CONTRACTOR determines that returning or destroying the 
 Protected Health InformaƟon is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the 
 COUNTY wriƩen noƟficaƟon of the condiƟons that make return or destrucƟon 
 infeasible. Upon wriƩen acknowledgement by the COUNTY that the return or 
 destrucƟon of Protected Health InformaƟon is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall 
 extend the protecƟons of this BA Agreement to such Protected Health 
 InformaƟon and limit further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health 
 InformaƟon to those purposed that make the return or destrucƟon infeasible, for 
 so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health InformaƟon. 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS: 

 A.  Regulatory References  . References in this BA Agreement  to the Privacy Rule or any 
 secƟon of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or secƟon as in effect or as 
 amended. 

 B.  Amendment  . The COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree to take  such acƟon as is 
 necessary to amend this BA Agreement from Ɵme to Ɵme as is necessary for the 
 COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 C.  Survival  . The respecƟve rights and obligaƟons of  CONTRACTOR under SecƟon 6.C of 
 this BA Agreement shall survive the terminaƟon of this BA Agreement. 

 15 



 D.  InterpretaƟon  . Any ambiguity in this BA Agreement shall be resolved to permit the 
 COUNTY to comply with the Privacy Rule. In the event of any inconsistency between 
 the provisions of this BA Agreement and the mandatory provisions of the Privacy 
 Rule, the Privacy Rule shall control. Where laws in the State of Oregon or other 
 federal law is more stringent than the Privacy Rule, the more stringent Oregon or 
 federal law shall control. 

 8.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

 A.  Background Requirement  : The COUNTY, in accordance  with § 164.306 and § 164.308 
 (b), may permit the CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic 
 Protected Health InformaƟon on the COUNTY’S behalf only if the COUNTY obtains 
 saƟsfactory assurances, in accordance with § 164.314(a) that the CONTRACTOR will 
 appropriately safeguard the informaƟon. The COUNTY must document the 
 saƟsfactory assurances through a wriƩen contract or other arrangement with the 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 B.  Part I. Security Assurances  : The CONTRACTOR will Implement  administraƟve, 
 physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
 confidenƟality, integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health 
 informaƟon that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the 
 COUNTY as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
 1996 and the requirements of Health Insurance Reform, the Security Standards 
 (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 i.  Ensure that any agent, including a SUBCONTRACTOR, to whom it provides such 
 informaƟon, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to 
 protect it. 

 ii.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 iii.  Authorize terminaƟon of the contract by the COUNTY, if the COUNTY determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 C.  Part II.  Other arrangements:  When the COUNTY and the  CONTRACTOR are both 
 governmental enƟƟes, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 i.  It enters into a memorandum of understanding with the CONTRACTOR that 
 contains terms that accomplish the objecƟves of Part I.; or 

 16 



 ii.  Other  law  (including  regulaƟons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objecƟves of Part I. 

 D.  If the CONTRACTOR is required by law to perform a funcƟon or acƟvity on behalf of 
 the COUNTY or to provide a service described in the definiƟon of CONTRACTOR as 
 specified in § 160.103 of the regulaƟon to the COUNTY, the COUNTY may permit the 
 CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic Protected Health 
 InformaƟon on its behalf to the extent necessary to comply with the legal mandate 
 without meeƟng the requirements of Part I., although the COUNTY will aƩempt in 
 good faith to obtain saƟsfactory assurances as required by Part I. (A), and will 
 document the aƩempt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if 
 not obtained. 

 17 



 EXHIBIT B: 
 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 POLK  COUNTY,  a  poliƟcal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon  and,  CYNTHIA  R.  RETTLER, 
 hereinaŌer called “Contractor,” hereby agree to the following: 

 1.  STATEMENT OF SERVICES 

 A.  Contractor  agrees  to  work  within  scope,  training  and  experience  as  a  Registered  Nurse, 
 to  provide  services,  support  and  training  that  meets  the  needs  of  both  Contractor  and 
 County as evidenced by the Service AuthorizaƟon and AcƟvity form. 

 B.  Contractor  shall  perform  all  services  deemed  necessary  in  their  professional  opinion 
 based  upon  their  training,  educaƟon  and  experƟse  as  evidenced  in  the  applicaƟon 
 materials  and  other  professional  endorsements,  notwithstanding  any  limitaƟons  set 
 forth in this agreement. 

 C.  Contractor  shall  only  use  methods  or  techniques  in  which  the  Contractor  has 
 documented  training,  educaƟon  and  experƟse.  Contractor  will  ensure  services  provided 
 are  within  rules  and  guidelines  of  Oregon  Health  Authority,  Public  Health  Division, 
 Chapter 333. 

 2.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 A.  Contractors  must  provide  primary  source  verificaƟon  of  credenƟals.  No  work  will  be 
 assigned  to  Contractors  who  render  direct  service  to  clients  or  paƟents  unƟl  credenƟals 
 have been validated for Medicaid claims. 

 B.  Annual  requirements  mandate  that  the  Contractor  will  submit  a  conflict  of  Interest 
 Statement.  Contractor  queries  of  the  OIG  and  EPLS  List  of  Excluded  Individuals/EnƟƟes 
 database  will  also  be  performed  annually.  Bases  for  exclusion  include  convicƟons  for 
 program-related  fraud  and  paƟent  abuse,  licensing  board  acƟons  and  default  on  Health 
 EducaƟon  Assistance  Loans.  It  is  the  expectaƟon  that  the  Contractor  will  maintain 
 credenƟaling  required  to  perform  job  duƟes  in  good  standing.  It  is  the  responsibility  of 
 the  Contractor  to  report  any  circumstances  that  would  jeopardize  this  standing  or  lead 
 to exclusionary status. Failure to do so may lead to contract terminaƟon  . 

 C.  Contractor  agrees  to  report  cases  of  suspected  Medicaid,  Medicare  fraud,  waste,  or 
 abuse  to  the  PCBH  Compliance  Officer  at  503-623-9289.  If  there  is  reason  to  believe 
 that  PCBH  cannot  respond  appropriately  to  a  suspected  case  of  fraud,  waste,  or  abuse, 
 or  if  the  case  involves  PCBH,  then  Contractor  agrees  to  make  a  report  to  Ethicspoint  at 
 888-265-4068. 

 18 



 D.  County  may  conduct  performance  reviews  annually  to  assess  Contractor’s  performance 
 as it relates to the services required under this contract. 

 E.  Absences: 

 i.  Contractor  shall  noƟfy  the  County  at  least  five  (5)  business  days  in  advance  for  all 
 anƟcipated extended absences (i.e. vacaƟons, professional meeƟngs, etc.). 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  noƟfy  the  County  of  unplanned  absences  (ie:  illness  or  other 
 unforeseen events) at least one hour prior to expected work Ɵme. 

 F.  Contractor  agrees  to  provide  10  business  day  noƟce  of  changes  to  their  clinic  schedule 
 availability. 

 G.  All  client  records  are  considered  the  property  of  the  County  and  shall  not  be  retained  by 
 the  Contractor.  Contractor  shall  have  all  service  notes  and  documentaƟon  completed 
 within  three  business  days  of  service  encounter.  Contractor  shall  maintain  client/paƟent 
 records and documentaƟon within CMS guidelines. 

 H.  Contractor  may  elect  to  use  the  electronic  health  record  system  supported  by  the 
 County.  Contractor  shall  provide  County  with  a  CerƟficate  of  Electronic  Health  Record 
 Technology  (CEHRT)  when  Contractor  elects  to  use  a  system  that  is  not  supported  by  the 
 County or Oregon Health Authority. 

 I.  Documents  that  are  required  for  billing  shall  be  submiƩed  three  days  aŌer  the  close  of 
 business  on  the  last  weekday  of  each  month.  DocumentaƟon  found  to  be  out  of 
 compliance  with  County  and/or  State  guidelines  shall  be  corrected  within  ten  (10) 
 business days. 

 3.  AUTHORIZED SERVICES 

 A.  County  will  only  pay  for  service  and  acƟviƟes  that  have  been  pre  authorized  and  agreed 
 upon in wriƟng by both parƟes on a Service AcƟvity AuthorizaƟon Form. 

 4.  RATES AND METHOD OF PAY 

 A.  County  shall  reimburse  the  Contractor  at  the  rate  of  $65.00  per  hour  for  services  as 
 outlined  in  the  Service  AcƟvity  AuthorizaƟon  form  with  services  paid  on  a  per 
 occurrence basis to the nearest quarter hour upon receipt of an invoice. 

 B.  County  will  have  no  legal  obligaƟon  to  pay  for  any  unauthorized  services,  including 
 unauthorized expenditures. 

 19 



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Behavioral Health  Consent Calendar Date:  July 05, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Rowley MVP, LLC dba MVP Counseling 

 Address:  2844 Wingtip Avenue NW 

 City, State, Zip:  Salem, OR 97304 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 01, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  Varies 

 Background: 

 Rowley MVP, LLC, doing business as MVP Counseling, has agreed to provide Behavioral Health 
 services to referred Polk County Behavioral Health individuals. 

 Discussion: 

 This contract is a continuation of services Devi Rowley has been providing Polk County individuals 
 in the past fiscal years. Devi Rowley meets the criteria for a service provider and has been cleared 
 to work with us through a criminal history records review. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Behavioral Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
 contract. The fiscal year 2023-2024 Behavioral Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this 
 agreement. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Rowley MVP, LLC, doing business as 
 MVP Counseling. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  06/23/23 

 CONTRACTOR  ROWLEY MVP, LLC dba MVP COUNSELING 
 2844 WINGTIP AVENUE NW 
 SALEM, OR 97304 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 CONTACT PERSON:  DEVI ROWLEY 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide Behavioral Health Clinical services as outlined in 
 Exhibit B. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM JULY 01, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2024 

 BUDGET LINE #:  240-8540-540-M20

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  VARIES 

 TERMS:  Service Rates per Exhibit B 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 23-132

mailto:HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us


 AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

 POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 a poli�cal subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereina�er referred to as "County" and 

 ROWLEY MVP, LLC, dba MVP COUNSELING 
 2844 WINGTIP AVENUE NW 

 SALEM, OR 97304 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 hereina�er referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  is  authorized  to  obtain,  by  contract,  the  services  necessary  to  conduct  its 
 opera�on; and 

 WHEREAS,  Contractor  has  available,  or  can  obtain,  the  necessary  licenses  or  cer�ficates 
 required for the performance of said services; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  par�es  above-men�oned,  for  and 
 in considera�on of the mutual promises hereina�er stated as follows: 

 SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A.  The  County  is  desirous  of  securing  the  services  of  the  Contractor  to  perform  services 
 more  specifically  outlined  in  Exhibit  B:  Statement  of  Work,  based  on  Contractor’s 
 specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

 B.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  authorized  services  to  Polk  County  referrals  at  Contractor’s 
 facili�es,  Polk  County  Buildings  on  space  available  basis,  and/or  consumer’s  school 
 facility,  work  loca�on,  or  home  depending  upon  the  needs  of  the  individual.  Depending 
 on  the  nature  of  services  provided,  the  loca�on  of  services  may  be  curtailed  by  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement of Work. 

 C.  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the  document  en�tled  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement  of  Work,  which  is  a�ached  and  by  reference  herein,  made  an  integral  part  of 
 this Agreement. 

 1 



 SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

 A.  As  considera�on  for  the  services  provided  by  the  Contractor  during  the  period  beginning 
 July  1,  2023,  and  ending  June  30,  2024,  payment  shall  be  retroac�ve  for  approved 
 services  provided  to  Polk  County  referrals  on  or  a�er  the  period  beginning  date.  Any 
 renewals  and/or  changes  to  this  agreement  must  be  submi�ed  in  wri�ng,  in  the  form  of 
 an amendment to this Contract and signed by both Par�es. 

 B.  Agreement  is  effec�ve  upon  the  signature  of  all  par�es.  It  is  understood  by  both  par�es 
 that  no  commitments  have  been  or  are  made  by  either  party  beyond  the  termina�on  of 
 the Agreement. 

 C.  The  County  will  pay  to  the  Contractor,  by  check(s)  or  ACH  direct  payment  upon  receipt  of 
 an  authorized  billing  document  at  the  rates  outlined  in  Exhibit  B  and  as  approved  by  Polk 
 County.  Billings  shall  be  submi�ed  to  HS  Fiscal  either  electronically  to 
 hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us  or  by  mail  to  Polk  County  Health  Services  Business  Services 
 Department,  182  SW  Academy  Street  Suite  204,  Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  County  shall 
 endeavor  remit  payment  within  2-3  weeks  of  receipt  of  appropriate  billing,  suppor�ng 
 documenta�on and signed invoice. 

 D.  It  is  agreed  that  Contractor  shall  accept  payment  from  Polk  County  as  full  and  total 
 payment  for  services  and  that  Contractor  shall  not  bill  any  Polk  County  clients  (or  their 
 insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

 E.  Contractor  is  engaged  hereby  as  an  independent  contrac tor,  and  the  services  to  be 
 rendered  are  those  of  an  independent  contractor,  subject  to  ORS  Chapter  656,  and  will 
 be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

 i.  Contractor  will  be  solely  responsible  for  payment  of  any  Federal  or  State  taxes 
 required as a result of this Agreement. 

 ii.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  to  en�tle  Contractor  to  any  benefits  generally 
 granted  to  County  employees.  Without  limita�on,  but  by  way  of  illustra�on,  the 
 benefits  which  are  not  intended  to  be  extended  by  this  Agreement  to  the  Contractor 
 are  vaca�on,  holiday  and  sick  leave,  other  leaves  with  pay,  tenure,  medical  and 
 dental  coverage,  life  and  disability  insurance,  over�me,  Social  Security,  workers' 
 compensa�on, unemployment compensa�on or re�rement benefits . 

 iii.  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  for  purposes  of  the  Oregon  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  Law  (ORS  Chapter  656)  and  is  solely  liable  for  any  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  coverage  under  this  Agreement.  If  the  Contractor  has  the  assistance 

 2 

mailto:hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us


 of  other  persons  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  qualify 
 and  remain  qualified  for  the  term  of  this  Agreement  as  a  direct  responsibility 
 employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib u�ng employer under ORS 656.411. 

 F.  Exhibit  A  –  Business  Associate  Agreement  a�ached  hereto  is  by  this  reference 
 incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

 SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 A.  Extent  of  Agreement:  This  Agreement  contains  all  the  terms  and  condi�ons  agreed  upon 
 by  the  par�es.  No  other  understandings,  oral  or  otherwise,  regarding  the  subject  ma�er 
 of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the par�es hereto. 

 B.  Cap�ons:  The  cap�ons  or  headings  in  this  Agreement  are  for  convenience  only  and  in  no 
 way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 C.  Payment  as  Sole  Monetary  Obliga�on  of  the  County:  The  Contractor  is  engaged  as  an 
 independent  contractor.  Payment  as  provided  herein  shall  be  the  sole  monetary 
 obliga �on  of  the  County.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  responsi bility  for  payment  of 
 all  opera�ng  costs,  Federal,  State,  County  or  city  taxes/assessments  and  any  other 
 charges  imposed  by  law  upon  employers  shall  be  the  sole  responsibility  of  the 
 Contractor. 

 D.  Licensing  and  Program  Standards:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with  all  applicable 
 State,  County,  and  municipal  standards  for  licensing,  and  any  other  standards  or  criteria 
 described in this Agreement and its a�achments. 

 E.  Contractor-client  Rela�onship:  The  Contractor  will  establish  a  system  through  which  a 
 client  and/or  the  client’s  parents  or  guardian  may  represent  grievances  about  the 
 opera�on  of  the  Contractor’s  service  program.  At  the  �me  arrangements  are  made  for 
 the  Contractor’s  service,  the  Contractor  will  advise  the  child  and  parents  or  guardian  of 
 the provision.  The Contractor shall no�fy the County of all unresolved grievances. 

 F.  Safeguarding of Client Informa�on: 

 i.  The  use  or  disclosure  by  any  party  of  any  informa�on  concern ing  a  recipient  of 
 services  purchased  under  this  Agreement,  for  any  purpose  not  directly  connected 
 with  the  administra �on  of  the  County's  or  the  Contractor's  responsibili�es  with 
 respect  to  such  purchased  services,  is  prohibited,  except  on  wri�en  consent  of  the 
 County,  or  if  the  County  is  not  the  recipient,  on  wri�en  consent  of  the  recipient  or 
 a�orney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 3 



 ii.  For  the  purposes  of  safeguarding  protected  client  informa�on,  Contractor  agrees  to 
 abide  by  all  County  rules  and  regula�ons  regarding  Communica�on  technology  as 
 documented  in  the  County’s  Communica�ons  Technology  Policy.  Contractors 
 providing  services  from  a  County  facility  will  be  provided  appropriate  County 
 equipment  to  perform  its  du�es  under  this  agreement.  To  the  extent  that  Contractor 
 elects  to  use  their  own  technology  (computer,  cellular  phone,  etc…)  Contractor 
 warrants  that  such  equipment  shall  be  compliant  with  County  rules  and  regula�ons, 
 and its obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 G.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  and  Rehabilita�on  Act  of  1973:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply 
 with  the  requirements  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  and  Sec�on  504  of  the 
 Rehabilita �on  Act  of  1973,  and  their  implemen�ng  Federal  regula�ons,  including 
 Execu�ve Order 11246 as amended. 

 H.  Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

 i.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to 
 assure  full  compliance  with  Federal  regula�ons  and  the  County’s  guidelines  on 
 allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

 ii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  maintain  fiscal  records  consistent  with  generally  accepted 
 accoun�ng  prac�ces  and  controls,  which  will  properly  reflect  all  direct  and  indirect 
 costs  and  funds  expended  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor 
 shall  make  these  records  available  at  reasonable  �mes  upon  request  to  State  and 
 Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

 iii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  collect  financial  sta�s�cs  on  a  regular  basis  and  to  make 
 financial reports at �mes in the form prescribed by the County. 

 I.  Program  Records,  Controls,  Reports,  and  Monitoring  Procedures:  The  Contractor  agrees 
 to  maintain  program  records  including  sta�s�cal  records,  and  to  provide  program 
 records  to  the  County  at  �mes  and  in  the  form  prescribed  by  the  County.  The  Contractor 
 agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to  assure  full  compliance 
 with  the  program  and  facili�es  review  (including  mee�ngs  with  consumers,  reviews  of 
 service  records,  review  of  policy  and  procedures,  review  of  staffing  ra�os  and  job 
 descrip�ons,  and  mee�ngs  with  any  staff  directly  of  indirectly  involved  in  the  provision 
 of  services)  may  be  conducted  at  any  reasonable  �me  by  State  and  Federal  personnel 
 and other persons authorized by the County. 

 J.  Reten�on  of  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  retain  all  books,  records,  and  other 
 documents  relevant  to  this  Agreement  for  three  (3)  years  a�er  final  payment  is  made 

 4 



 under  the  Agreement  or  all  pending  ma�ers  are  closed,  whichever  is  later.  If  li�ga�on  or 
 other  ac�on  involving  the  Agreement  is  started  before  the  end  of  the  three  (3)  year 
 period,  the  records  shall  be  retained  un�l  all  issues  arising  out  of  the  ac�on  are  resolved 
 or un�l the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

 K.  Insurance: 

 i.  Contractor  agrees  that  it  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  agent  of  the 
 County.  The  Contractor  and  the  County  shall  not  be  responsible  for  any  legal  liability, 
 loss,  malprac�ce,  damages,  costs  and  expenses  arising  in  favor  of  any  person  on 
 account  of  personal  injuries,  death  or  property  loss  or  damage  occurring,  growing 
 out  of,  incident  to  or  resul�ng  directly  or  indirectly  from  the  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 other party under this Agreement. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  obtain,  and  at  all  �mes  keep  in  effect,  comprehensive  liability 
 insurance  and  property  damage  insurance  covering  ac�vi�es,  opera�ons,  and 
 omissions  of  the  Contractor,  all  subcontractors,  and  all  named  addi�onal  insureds. 
 Contractor  may  sa�sfy  this  requirement  for  general  liability  insurance  in  any  manner 
 allowed  by  ORS  30.282.  Such  liability  insurance,  whatever  the  form,  shall  be  in  an 
 amount  not  less  than  one  million  dollars  ($1,000,000)  with  provision  for  increased 
 coverage  as  such  limits  are  increased  by  legisla�ve  ac�on.  In  the  event  of  unilateral 
 cancella�on  or  restric�on  by  the  insurance  company  of  the  Contractor's  insurance 
 policy  referred  to  in  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor  shall  immediately  no�fy  the 
 County verbally and in wri�ng. 

 iii.  As  evidence  of  the  insurance  coverage  required  by  this  Agreement,  and  prior  to  the 
 execu�on  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  a  Cer�ficate  of  Insurance  to 
 Polk  County,  to  Polk  County  Health  Services,  182  SW  Academy  Street,  Suite  204, 
 Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  Cer�ficate  form,  to  be  completed  by  the  Contractor's 
 insurer,  naming  Polk  County  as  addi�onal  insured,  will  be  maintained  in  the  County's 
 file of this Agreement. 

 iv.  There  shall  not  be  any  cancella�on,  material  changes  or  failure  to  renew  such 
 insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior no�ce to the County. 

 L.  Subcontrac�ng:  Unless  subcontrac�ng  is  authorized  elsewhere  in  the  Agree ment,  the 
 Contractor  shall  not  enter  into  any  subcontracts  for  any  of  the  work  contemplated  under 
 this  Agreement  without  obtaining  prior  wri�en  approval  from  the  County,  which 
 approval  shall  be  a�ached  to  the  original  Agreement.  Approval  by  the  County  of  a 
 subcontract  shall  not  result  in  any  obliga�ons  of  the  County  in  addi�on  to  the  agreed 
 rates  of  payment  and  total  considera�on.  Any  subcontracts  which  the  County  may 

 5 



 authorize  shall  contain  all  requirements  of  this  Agreement,  and  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 responsible  for  the  performance  of  the  subcontractor.  Contractor  may  subcon tract 
 medical  inves�gator's  du�es  so  long  as  the  sub contractor  possesses  medical 
 qualifica�ons equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

 M.  Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on:  Any  altera�ons,  varia�ons,  modifica�ons  to  or  waivers 
 of  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  valid  only  when  they  have  been  reduced  to 
 wri�ng,  duly  signed,  and  approved  by  the  Contractor  and  the  County  and  a�ached  to 
 the original of this Agreement. 

 N.  Excuses  for  Nonperformance:  Neither  party  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  held  responsible 
 for  delay  or  failure  in  performance  of  the  ac�vi�es  required  herein  when  such  delay  or 
 failure  is  due  to  causes  beyond  the  control  and  without  the  fault  or  negligence  of  the 
 party.  Such  causes  may  include,  but  are  not  restricted  to,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  strikes, 
 acts  of  God  or  the  public  enemy,  unusually  severe  weather,  legal  acts  of  public 
 authori�es,  or  delays  or  defaults  caused  by  public  carriers,  which  cannot  reasonably  be 
 forecast  or  provided  against.  Either  party  may  terminate  the  Agreement  a�er 
 reasonably  determining  that  such  delay  or  failure  will  prevent  con�nued  performance  of 
 the  Agreement,  and  a�er  giving  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  other  party  of  the  cause,  its  effect 
 on  Agreement  performance  and  effec �ve  date  of  termina�on.  If  the  Agreement  is  so 
 terminated,  the  obliga�on  of  the  County  shall  be  limited  to  payment  for  services 
 provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of termina�on. 

 O.  Remedies:  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  or  perform  any  of  the  other 
 requirements  under  the  Contract,  and  such  failure  is  not  excused  under  the  paragraph 
 �tled  "Excuses  for  Nonperformance",  the  County,  a�er  giving  the  Contractor  wri�en 
 no�ce  of  such  failure,  may  withhold  part  or  all  of  the  Contractor's  payment  for  the 
 services  un�l  such  failure  is  corrected.  If  the  Contractor  does  not  correct  such  failure 
 within  a  reasonable  �me  allowed  by  the  County,  the  County  may  terminate  the 
 Agreement  in  accordance  with  the  clause  �tled  "Termina�on."  However,  this  paragraph, 
 and  any  ac�ons  taken  or  not  taken  under  it,  shall  not  affect  the  County's  rights  under  the 
 "Termina�on" clause. 

 P.  Termina�on:  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  par�es  or 
 unilaterally  by  both  par�es  at  any  �me  upon  thirty  (30)  days’  no�ce  to  the  other  party 
 in  wri�ng  and  delivered  personally  or  by  Cer�fied  Mail.  The  County  may  also  unilaterally 
 terminate  this  Agreement  effec�ve  upon  delivery  of  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  Contrac tor,  or 
 at  such  later  date  as  may  be  established  by  the  County,  under  any  of  the  following 
 condi�ons: 

 6 



 i.  If  funds,  specifically  authorized  by  Legisla�ve  acts,  do  not  become  available  in 
 amounts  sufficient  to  allow  for  purchase  of  the  stated  quan�ty  of  services.  When 
 possible  and  when  agreed  upon  by  the  par�es,  the  Agreement  may  be  modified  in 
 accordance  with  the  paragraph  en�tled  “Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on”  to 
 accommodate a reduc�on in funds. 

 ii.  If  Federal  or  State  laws,  regula�ons  or  guidelines  are  modified  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 Agreement  or  no  longer  qualify  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments  authorized  by 
 this Agreement. 

 iii.  If  any  license  or  cer�ficate  required  by  law  or  regula�on  to  be  held  by  the  Contractor 
 to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  Agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied,  revoked, 
 not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Contractor  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cer�ficate. 

 iv.  Termina�on  under  this  clause  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obliga�ons  or 
 liabili�es  of  either  party  already  reasonably  incurred  prior  to  such  termina�on, 
 except  that  the  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  its  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es 
 a�er  the  termina�on  date,  which  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es  result  from  the 
 Contractor's  failure  to  provide  for  termina�on  of,  or  exercises  the  right  to  terminate, 
 its  commitments.  No  right  of  ac�on  or  damages  shall  accrue  to  the  benefit  of  the 
 Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

 v.  The  County,  by  wri�en  no�ce  of  default  (including  breach  of  contract)  to  the 
 Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

 a.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  Agreement  within 
 the �me speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

 b.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  perform  any  of  the  other  requirements  of  this 
 Agreement; or 

 c.  If  the  Contractor  so  fails  to  perform  the  work  required  in  the  Agreement  that 
 performance  of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and 
 a�er  receipt  of  wri�en  no�ce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  correct  such  failure  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period 
 as the County may authorize. 

 vi.  If  the  Agreement  is  terminated  under  this  clause,  the  County's  obliga�ons  shall  be 
 limited  to  payment  for  services  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Agreement  prior  to 

 7 



 the  date  of  termina�on,  less  any  damages  suffered  by  the  County.  The  rights  and 
 remedies  of  the  County  in  this  clause  related  to  defaults  (including  breach  of 
 contract)  by  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  exclusive  and  are  in  addi�on  to  any  other 
 rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

 Q.  Hold  Harmless:  Except  for  claims  arising  in  whole  from  the  negligence  of  County,  its 
 employees  or  its  agents,  Contractor  agrees  to  indemnify  and  hold  County  harmless  from 
 and  against  all  ac�ons,  suits,  claims  and  demands  arising  out  of  Contractor’s 
 performance  under  this  Contract  and  agrees  to  defend  County  in  such  ac�ons,  suits, 
 claims and demands. 

 R.  Waiver  of  Default:  Waiver  of  any  default  shall  not  be  deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any 
 subsequent  default.  Waiver  of  breach  of  any  provision  of  the  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any  other  or  subsequent  breach  and  shall  not  be  construed  to 
 be  a  modifica�on  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement  unless  stated  to  be  such  in  wri�ng, 
 signed  by  an  authorized  representa�ve  of  the  County,  and  a�ached  to  the  original 
 Agreement in accordance with the paragraph en�tled "Re-nego�a�on or Modifica�on". 

 S.  Severability:  The  par�es  agree  that  if  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  declared 
 by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdic�on  to  be  illegal  or  in  conflict  with  any  law,  the  validity  of 
 the  remaining  terms  and  provisions  shall  not  be  affected,  and  the  rights  and  obliga�ons 
 of  the  par�es  shall  be  construed  and  enforced  as  if  the  Agreement  did  not  contain  the 
 par�cular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 T.  Fees  Prohibited:  The  Contractor  will  not  impose  or  demand  any  fees  from  any  person  or 
 agency  for  services  provided  and  paid  for  under  this  Agreement,  unless  the  fees  have 
 been approved in advance by the County in wri�ng. 

 U.  Non-Discrimina�on:  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  they  are  an  equal  opportunity 
 employer  and  no  person  shall  be  denied  services  or  discrimi nated  against  on  the  basis  of 
 race,  color,  religion,  sex,  sexual  orienta�on,  na�onal  origin,  marital  status  or  age,  and 
 there  shall  be  no  discrimina�on  in  the  selec�on,  compensa�on  or  the  employ ment 
 prac�ces with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

 V.  Assignment  of  Agreement:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  or  transfer  its  interest  in  this 
 Agreement  without  prior  wri�en  approval  of  the  County,  which  shall  be  a�ached  to  the 
 original  Agreement.  Any  such  assignment,  if  approved,  is  subject  to  such  condi�ons  and 
 provisions,  as  the  County  may  deem  necessary.  No  approval  by  the  County  of  any 
 assignment  or  transfer  of  interest  shall  be  deemed  to  create  any  obliga�on  of  the  county 
 in addi�on to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement considera�on. 

 8 



 W.  Funds  Authorized  and  Available:  The  County  cer�fies  that  at  the  �me  of  signing  this 
 Agree ment,  sufficient  funds  are  authorized  and  available,  or  are  an�cipated  to  be 
 available,  for  expenditure  to  finance  costs  of  this  Agreement  within  the  County's  current 
 appropri a�on or limita�on. 

 X.  Recovery  of  Overpayments:  If  billings  under  this  Agreement,  or  under  any  Agreement 
 between  the  Contractor  and  the  County,  result  in  payments  to  the  Contractor  for  which 
 the  Contractor  is  not  en�tled  under  the  terms  of  such  Agreement,  the  County,  a�er 
 giving  wri�en  no�fica�on  to  the  Contractor,  may  withhold  from  payments  due  to  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  such  amounts,  over  such  periods  of  �me,  as  are 
 necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

 Y.  Criminal  History  Records  Checks:  Contractor  agrees  to  authorize  a  review  of  state  and 
 federal  records  by  Polk  County  as  a  qualified  en�ty,  to  determine  the  nature  of  any 
 criminal  ac�vity  the  Contractor  may  have  been  involved  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 943-007-001  for  purposes  described  in  OAR  407-007-0400.  No  work  will  be  assigned  to 
 Contractor  un�l  a  Criminal  History  Check  is  completed  and  verified  by  the  qualified 
 en�ty.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  Polk  County  within  five  days  of  being  arrested,  charged,  or 
 convicted of any crime. 

 SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

 A.  Payment  of  Subcontractors,  Industrial  Accident  Fund  Contribu�ons,  Liens  and 
 Withholding Taxes: 

 1.  Contractor  shall  make  payment  promptly,  as  due,  to  all  persons  supplying  to  such 
 contractor  labor  or  material  for  the  prosecu�on  of  the  work  provided  for  in  this 
 contract. 

 2.  Contractor  shall  pay  all  contribu�ons  or  amounts  due  the  Industrial  Accident  Fund 
 from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 3.  Contractor  shall  not  permit  any  lien  or  claim  to  be  filed  or  prosecuted  against  the 
 state,  county,  school  district,  municipality,  Municipal  Corpora�on  or  subdivisions 
 thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

 4.  Contractor  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
 employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 B.  Payment  of  Claims  by  County  :  If  Contractor  fails,  neglects  or  refuses  to  make  prompt 
 payment  of  any  claim  for  labor  or  services  furnished  to  the  contractor  or  a  subcontractor 
 by  any  person  in  connec�on  with  the  public  contract  as  such  claim  becomes  due,  the 

 9 



 proper  officer  or  officers  represen�ng  Polk  County  may  pay  such  claim  to  the  person 
 furnishing  the  labor  or  services  and  charge  the  amount  of  payment  against  funds  due  or 
 to  become  due  the  Contractor  by  reason  of  this  contract.  Payment  of  a  claim  in  this 
 manner  shall  not  relieve  the  contractor  or  contractor’s  surety  from  obliga�on  with 
 respect to any unpaid claims. 

 C.  Hours  of  Labor:  All  laborers  providing  contract  services  shall  be  paid  at  least  �me  and  a 
 half  for  all  over�me  worked  in  excess  of  40  hours  in  any  one  week,  except  for  individuals 
 under  these  contracts  who  are  excluded  under  ORS  653.010  to  653.261  or  under  29  USC 
 sec�on 201 to 209 from receiving over�me. 

 D.  Payment  for  Medical  Care:  Contractor  shall  promptly,  as  due,  make  payment  to  any 
 person,  co-partnership,  associa�on  or  corpora�on,  furnishing  medical,  surgical  and 
 hospital  care  or  other  needed  care  and  a�en�on,  incident  to  sickness  or  injury,  to  the 
 employees  for  such  Contractor,  of  all  sums  which  the  Contractor  agrees  to  pay  for  such 
 services  and  all  moneys  and  sums  which  the  contractor  collected  or  deducted  from  the 
 wages  of  employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
 providing or paying such service. 

 E.  Providing  Workers’  Compensa�on  Insurance:  All  employers  working  under  this  contract 
 are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 F.  Health  Care  Benefits  for  Employees:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  health  care  benefits  to 
 all  employees  who  are  performing  services  previously  performed  by  public  employees  if 
 the  condi�ons  specified  in  ORS  653.767  require  such  payment.  Benefits  must  equal  or 
 exceed  those  benefits  specified  in  ORS  279.315(3).  This  clause  does  not  apply  to 
 contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

 G.  Americans  with  Disabili�es  Act  Compliance:  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor  will 
 comply  and  does  comply  with  all  relevant  provisions  of  the  Americans  with  Disabili�es 
 Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 10 





 EXHIBIT A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 Between 
 POLK COUNTY  and  ROWLEY MVP, LLC, dba MVP COUNSELING 

 1.  DEFINITIONS: 

 Except  as  otherwise  defined  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA  Agreement),  any 
 and  all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  defini�on  as  those  in  the  HIPAA 
 Privacy  Rule.  1  Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon, 
 shall  be  referred  to  as  “COUNTY”  and  ROWLEY  MVP,  LLC,  dba  MVP  COUNSELING,  shall 
 be referred to as “CONTRACTOR”. 

 2.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

 A.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on  other  than 
 as permi�ed or required by this BA Agreement or as permi�ed or required by law. 

 B.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health Informa�on other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 C.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  mi�gate,  to  the  extent  prac�cable,  any  harmful  effect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  by 
 CONTRACTOR in viola�on of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  not  provided  for  by  this  BA  Agreement  of  which  it  becomes 
 aware. 

 E.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restric�ons  and 
 condi�ons  that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to 
 such informa�on. 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa�on in performance of Business Associate func�ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden�fiable Health Informa�on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa�on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 12 



 F.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access, 
 at  the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the 
 COUNTY  or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the 
 requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 G.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for 
 reasonable compliance. 

 H.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  prac�ces,  books,  and  records,  including 
 policies  and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  rela�ng  to  the  use  and 
 disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary 
 of  the  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  �me  and  manner  agreed 
 between  the  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for 
 purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining  the  COUNTY’S  compliance  with  the  Privacy 
 Rule. 

 I.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on 
 and  informa�on  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to 
 respond  to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected 
 Health Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 J.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  �me  and 
 manner  necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informa�on  collected  in  accordance 
 with  sec�on  2.A  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a 
 request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 3.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in 
 this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on to 
 perform certain health plan func�ons for or on behalf of the COUNTY as specified in the 
 Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure 
 would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary 
 policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

 13 



 A.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any limita�on(s) in the  No�ce of Privacy 
 Prac�ces  of the COUNTY in accordance with 45 CFR  § 164.520, to the extent that 
 such limita�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 B.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any changes in, or revoca�on of, 
 permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on, to the 
 extent that such changes may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected 
 Health Informa�on. 

 C.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any restric�on to the use or disclosure of 
 Protected Health Informa�on that the COUNTY has agreed to in accordance with 45 
 CFR § 164.522, to the extent that such restric�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or 
 disclosure of Protected Health Informa�on. 

 5.  PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: The COUNTY shall not request CONTRACTOR to 
 use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on in any manner that would not be 
 permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY except if such use or 
 disclosure is permi�ed under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION: 

 A.  Term  . This BA Agreement shall be effec�ve as of July  01, 2023, and shall terminate 
 when all of the Protected Health Informa�on provided by the COUNTY to 
 CONTRACTOR, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY, is 
 destroyed or returned to the COUNTY, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy 
 Protected Health Informa�on, protec�ons are extended to such informa�on, in 
 accordance with the termina�on provisions in this Sec�on. 

 B.  Termina�on for Cause  . Upon the COUNTY’S knowledge  of a material breach by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 i.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to cure the breach without the 
 interven�on of the COUNTY within the �meline specified in Sec�on III (P) of the 
 Polk County Agreement; or 

 ii.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to terminate this BA Agreement and 
 the Polk County Agreement within the �meline specified in Sec�on III of the Polk 
 County Agreement. At the direc�on of its Board of Directors, the COUNTY may 
 terminate this BA Agreement and the Polk County Agreement as permi�ed in 

 14 



 Sec�on III of the Polk County Agreement if CONTRACTOR has not cured the 
 breach upon conclusion of the technical assistance and correc�ve ac�on 
 described in paragraph (i.) of this sec�on; or 

 iii.  If neither termina�on nor cure is feasible, the COUNTY shall report the viola�on 
 to the Secretary. 

 C.  Effect of Termina�on  . 

 i.  Except as provided in paragraph (ii.) of this sec�on, upon termina�on of this BA 
 Agreement, for any reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all Protected 
 Health Informa�on received from the COUNTY, or created or received by 
 CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY. This provision shall apply to Protected 
 Health Informa�on that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 
 CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall retain no copies of the Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 ii.  In the event that CONTRACTOR determines that returning or destroying the 
 Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the 
 COUNTY wri�en no�fica�on of the condi�ons that make return or destruc�on 
 infeasible. Upon wri�en acknowledgement by the COUNTY that the return or 
 destruc�on of Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall 
 extend the protec�ons of this BA Agreement to such Protected Health 
 Informa�on and limit further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health 
 Informa�on to those purposed that make the return or destruc�on infeasible, for 
 so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health Informa�on. 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS: 

 A.  Regulatory References  . References in this BA Agreement  to the Privacy Rule or any 
 sec�on of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or sec�on as in effect or as 
 amended. 

 B.  Amendment  . The COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree to take  such ac�on as is 
 necessary to amend this BA Agreement from �me to �me as is necessary for the 
 COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 C.  Survival  . The respec�ve rights and obliga�ons of  CONTRACTOR under Sec�on 6.C of 
 this BA Agreement shall survive the termina�on of this BA Agreement. 

 15 



 D.  Interpreta�on  . Any ambiguity in this BA Agreement shall be resolved to permit the 
 COUNTY to comply with the Privacy Rule. In the event of any inconsistency between 
 the provisions of this BA Agreement and the mandatory provisions of the Privacy 
 Rule, the Privacy Rule shall control. Where laws in the State of Oregon or other 
 federal law is more stringent than the Privacy Rule, the more stringent Oregon or 
 federal law shall control. 

 8.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

 A.  Background Requirement  : The COUNTY, in accordance  with § 164.306 and § 164.308 
 (b), may permit the CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic 
 Protected Health Informa�on on the COUNTY’S behalf only if the COUNTY obtains 
 sa�sfactory assurances, in accordance with § 164.314(a) that the CONTRACTOR will 
 appropriately safeguard the informa�on. The COUNTY must document the 
 sa�sfactory assurances through a wri�en contract or other arrangement with the 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 B.  Part I. Security Assurances  : The CONTRACTOR will Implement  administra�ve, 
 physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
 confiden�ality, integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health 
 informa�on that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the 
 COUNTY as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
 1996 and the requirements of Health Insurance Reform, the Security Standards 
 (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 i.  Ensure that any agent, including a SUBCONTRACTOR, to whom it provides such 
 informa�on, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to 
 protect it. 

 ii.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 iii.  Authorize termina�on of the contract by the COUNTY, if the COUNTY determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 C.  Part II.  Other arrangements:  When the COUNTY and the  CONTRACTOR are both 
 governmental en��es, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 i.  It enters into a memorandum of understanding with the CONTRACTOR that 
 contains terms that accomplish the objec�ves of Part I.; or 

 16 



 ii.  Other  law  (including  regula�ons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objec�ves of Part I. 

 D.  If the CONTRACTOR is required by law to perform a func�on or ac�vity on behalf of 
 the COUNTY or to provide a service described in the defini�on of CONTRACTOR as 
 specified in § 160.103 of the regula�on to the COUNTY, the COUNTY may permit the 
 CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic Protected Health 
 Informa�on on its behalf to the extent necessary to comply with the legal mandate 
 without mee�ng the requirements of Part I., although the COUNTY will a�empt in 
 good faith to obtain sa�sfactory assurances as required by Part I. (A), and will 
 document the a�empt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if 
 not obtained. 

 17 



 EXHIBIT B: 
 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 POLK  COUNTY,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon  and,  ROWLEY  MVP,  LLC,  dba  MVP 
 COUNSELING, hereina�er called “Contractor,” hereby agree to the following: 

 1.  STATEMENT OF SERVICES 

 A.  Contractor  agrees  to  work  within  scope,  training  and  experience  as  a  Licensed 
 Professional  Counselor,  to  provide  services,  support  and  training  that  meets  the  needs  of 
 both Contractor and County as evidenced by the Service Authoriza�on and Ac�vity form. 

 B.  Contractor  will  provide  Behavioral  Health  Clinical  services.  Contractor  shall  perform  all 
 services  deemed  necessary  in  their  professional  opinion  based  upon  their  training, 
 educa�on  and  exper�se  as  evidenced  in  the  applica�on  materials  and  other  professional 
 endorsements, notwithstanding any limita�ons set forth in this agreement. 

 C.  Contractor  shall  only  use  methods  or  techniques  in  which  the  Contractor  has 
 documented  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se.  Contractor  will  ensure  services  provided 
 are  within  rules  and  guidelines  of  Oregon  Health  Authority,  Health  Services  Division: 
 Behavioral Health Services, Chapter 309-019. 

 2.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 A.  Contractors  must  provide  primary  source  verifica�on  of  creden�als.  No  work  will  be 
 assigned  to  Contractors  who  render  direct  service  to  clients  or  pa�ents  un�l  creden�als 
 have been validated for Medicaid claims. 

 B.  Annual  requirements  mandate  that  the  Contractor  will  submit  a  conflict  of  Interest 
 Statement.  Contractor  queries  of  the  OIG  and  EPLS  List  of  Excluded  Individuals/En��es 
 database  will  also  be  performed  annually.  Bases  for  exclusion  include  convic�ons  for 
 program-related  fraud  and  pa�ent  abuse,  licensing  board  ac�ons  and  default  on  Health 
 Educa�on  Assistance  Loans.  It  is  the  expecta�on  that  Contractor  will  maintain 
 creden�aling  required  to  perform  job  du�es  in  good  standing.  It  is  the  responsibility  of 
 the  Contractor  to  report  any  circumstances  that  would  jeopardize  this  standing  or  lead 
 to exclusionary status. Failure to do so may lead to contract termina�on  . 

 C.  Contractor  agrees  to  report  cases  of  suspected  Medicaid,  Medicare  fraud,  waste,  or 
 abuse  to  the  PCBH  Compliance  Officer  at  503-623-9289.  If  there  is  reason  to  believe 
 that  PCBH  cannot  respond  appropriately  to  a  suspected  case  of  fraud,  waste,  or  abuse, 
 or  if  the  case  involves  PCBH,  then  Contractor  agrees  to  make  a  report  to  Ethicspoint  at 
 888-265-4068. 

 18 



 D.  County  may  conduct  performance  reviews  annually  to  assess  Contractor’s  performance 
 as it relates to the services required under this contract. 

 E.  Absences: 

 i.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  at  least  five  (5)  business  days  in  advance  for  all 
 an�cipated extended absences (i.e. vaca�ons, professional mee�ngs, etc.). 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  of  unplanned  absences  (ie:  illness  or  other 
 unforeseen events) at least one hour prior to expected work �me. 

 F.  Contractor  agrees  to  provide  10  business  day  no�ce  of  changes  to  their  clinic  schedule 
 availability. 

 G.  All  client  records  are  considered  the  property  of  the  County  and  shall  not  be  retained  by 
 the  Contractor.  Contractor  shall  have  all  service  notes  and  documenta�on  completed 
 within  three  business  days  of  service  encounter.  Contractor  shall  maintain  client/pa�ent 
 records and documenta�on within CMS guidelines. 

 H.  Contractor  may  elect  to  use  the  electronic  health  record  system  supported  by  the 
 County.  Contractor  shall  provide  County  with  a  Cer�ficate  of  Electronic  Health  Record 
 Technology  (CEHRT)  when  Contractor  elects  to  use  a  system  that  is  not  supported  by  the 
 County or Oregon Health Authority. 

 I.  Documents  that  are  required  for  billing  shall  be  submi�ed  three  days  a�er  the  close  of 
 business  on  the  last  weekday  of  each  month.  Documenta�on  found  to  be  out  of 
 compliance  with  County  and/or  State  guidelines  shall  be  corrected  within  ten  (10) 
 business days. 

 J.  Billable  service  notes  shall  meet  documenta�on  standards  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 309-019-0135 through 309-019-0145. 

 A.  Contractor  is  required  to  receive  two  hours  of  clinical  supervision  quarterly  ,  which  shall 
 include  at  least  one  hour  of  individual  face-to-face  contact  either  in  person  or  via 
 two-way  audio  visual  conferencing  from  a  qualified  clinical  supervisor.  Contractor  will  be 
 required  to  provide  documenta�on  of  supervision  received,  if  obtained  by  a  Clinical 
 Supervisor Outside of County. Failure to do so may lead to contract termina�on. 

 3.  AUTHORIZED SERVICES 

 A.  County  will  only  pay  for  service  and  ac�vi�es  that  have  been  pre  authorized  and  agreed 
 upon in wri�ng by both par�es on a Service and Ac�vity Authoriza�on Form. 

 19 



 B.  County  will  authorize  services  based  on  Level  of  Care  as  outlined  in  the  Individual 
 Service  Plan.  All  services  submi�ed  for  payment  must  be  supported  by  the  Individual 
 Service Plan and verified by County to be compliant with applicable regula�ons. 

 4.  RATES AND METHOD OF PAY 

 A.  County  shall  reimburse  the  Contractor  at  the  rate  of  $110.00  per  hour  for  services  as 
 outlined  in  the  Service  Ac�vity  Authoriza�on  form  with  services  paid  on  a  per 
 occurrence basis to the nearest quarter hour upon receipt of an invoice. 

 B.  County  will  have  no  legal  obliga�on  to  pay  for  any  unauthorized  services,  including 
 unauthorized expenditures. 

 20 



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Public Health  Consent Calendar Date:  July 05, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Rede Group 

 Address:  240 N Broadway Suite 210 

 City, State, Zip:  Portland, OR 97227 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 01, 2023  Through:  August 31, 2023 

 Contract Amount:  $0 

 Background: 

 The County received funds from the Oregon Health Authority under BM 108 to provide equitable 
 access to all Polk County residents. A recent study of Oregon’s public health system Covid-19 
 pandemic response to fulfill Senate Bill 1554 (2022), found gaps in “limited equity capacity across 
 the state, including significant delays and challenges producing accessible and culturally-tailored 
 public messaging.”   A portion ($50,000) of the $215,788 award has been allocated to Rede Group 
 to provide a Health Equity Assessment. 

 Discussion: 

 This amendment 1 with Rede Group to provide the Health Equity Assessment extends the term date 
 until the end of August to allot more time for deliverable completion. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 There are no further funds exchanged with this extension amendment. Fiscal impact is zero. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this amendment 1 with REDE Group. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT 

 This  Amendment  is  made  and  entered  into  by  and  between  POLK  COUNTY,  a  poli�cal 
 subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon,  hereina�er  referred  to  as  "County"  and  REDE  GROUP, 
 hereina�er referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  and  Contractor  entered  into  an  agreement  (Polk  County  Contract  Number 
 23-52) effec�ve February 01, 2023 incorporated herein by reference (the Agreement);

 WHEREAS, County and Contractor intend to amend the Agreement effec�ve as of July 01, 2023; 

 WHEREAS, the County proposed this amendment to change the Agreement’s termina�on date; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  above-men�oned  par�es,  for  and 
 in considera�on of the mutual promises hereina�er stated as follows: 

 AMENDMENT 

 1.  Extend the term of the Agreement sixty (60) days, with a new termina�on date of
 August 31, 2023.

 Except as amended hereby, all terms and condi�ons of the Agreement remain in full force and 
 effect. 

 BY SIGNATURE BELOW, both par�es agree to and accept the terms of this Amendment between 
 County and Contractor: 

 CONTRACTOR 

 Signature  Date 
 Title: 

 COUNTY 

 Chair  Date 
 Board of Commissioners 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 Morgan Smith  Date 
 County Counsel 

Robert Hutson Digitally signed by Robert Hutson 
Date: 2023.06.30 11:36:28 -07'00'

President

Polk County Contract No. 23-133
(Amendment 1 to Contract No. 23-25



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Public Health  Consent Calendar Date:  July 05, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Liberty Estates, LLC dba Assurance Lactation Consulting 

 Address:  4300 Liberty Road 

 City, State, Zip:  Dallas, OR 97338 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 01, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  Varies 

 Background: 

 Liberty Estates, LLC, doing business as Assurance Lactation Consulting, has agreed to provide 
 Public Health services to referred Polk County Public Health individuals. 

 Discussion: 

 Assurance Lactation Consulting meets the criteria for a service provider and has been cleared to 
 work with us through a criminal history records review. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Public Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
 contract. The fiscal year 2023-2024 Public Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this 
 agreement. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Liberty Estates, LLC, dba Assurance 
 Lactation Consulting. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  06/30/23 

 CONTRACTOR  LIBERTY ESTATES, LLC dba ASSURANCE LACTATION 
 CONSULTING 
 4300 LIBERTY ROAD 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 88-1729650 

 CONTACT PERSON:  BETHANY ROBERTS 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide Community Health Home Visi�ng Nurse services 
 as described in Exhibit B. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM JULY 01, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2024 

 BUDGET LINE #:  235-8540-525-PH41

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  VARIES 

 TERMS:  Service Rates per Exhibit B 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No 23-135



 AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

 POLK COUNTY 
 DIVISION HEALTH 

 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 a poli�cal subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereina�er referred to as "County" and 

 LIBERTY ESTATES, LLC dba ASSURANCE LACTATION CONSULTING 
 4300 LIBERTY ROAD 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 88-1729650 

 hereina�er referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  is  authorized  to  obtain,  by  contract,  the  services  necessary  to  conduct  its 
 opera�on; and 

 WHEREAS,  Contractor  has  available,  or  can  obtain,  the  necessary  licenses  or  cer�ficates 
 required for the performance of said services; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  par�es  above-men�oned,  for  and 
 in considera�on of the mutual promises hereina�er stated as follows: 

 SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A.  The  County  is  desirous  of  securing  the  services  of  the  Contractor  to  perform  services 
 more  specifically  outlined  in  Exhibit  B:  Statement  of  Work,  based  on  Contractor’s 
 specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

 B.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  authorized  services  to  Polk  County  referrals  at  Contractor’s 
 facili�es,  Polk  County  Buildings  on  space  available  basis,  and/or  consumer’s  school 
 facility,  work  loca�on,  or  home  depending  upon  the  needs  of  the  individual.  Depending 
 on  the  nature  of  services  provided,  the  loca�on  of  services  may  be  curtailed  by  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement of Work. 

 C.  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the  document  en�tled  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement  of  Work,  which  is  a�ached  and  by  reference  herein,  made  an  integral  part  of 
 this Agreement. 

 1 



 SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

 A.  As  considera�on  for  the  services  provided  by  the  Contractor  during  the  period  beginning 
 July  1,  2023,  and  ending  June  30,  2024,  payment  shall  be  retroac�ve  for  approved 
 services  provided  to  Polk  County  referrals  on  or  a�er  the  period  beginning  date.  Any 
 renewals  and/or  changes  to  this  agreement  must  be  submi�ed  in  wri�ng,  in  the  form  of 
 an amendment to this Contract and signed by both Par�es. 

 B.  Agreement  is  effec�ve  upon  the  signature  of  all  par�es.  It  is  understood  by  both  par�es 
 that  no  commitments  have  been  or  are  made  by  either  party  beyond  the  termina�on  of 
 the Agreement. 

 C.  The  County  will  pay  to  the  Contractor,  by  check(s)  or  ACH  direct  payment  upon  receipt  of 
 an  authorized  billing  document  at  the  rates  outlined  in  Exhibit  B  and  as  approved  by  Polk 
 County.  Billings  shall  be  submi�ed  to  HS  Fiscal  either  electronically  to 
 hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us  or  by  mail  to  Polk  County  Health  Services  Business  Services 
 Department,  182  SW  Academy  Street  Suite  204,  Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  County  shall 
 endeavor  remit  payment  within  2-3  weeks  of  receipt  of  appropriate  billing,  suppor�ng 
 documenta�on and signed invoice. 

 D.  It  is  agreed  that  Contractor  shall  accept  payment  from  Polk  County  as  full  and  total 
 payment  for  services  and  that  Contractor  shall  not  bill  any  Polk  County  clients  (or  their 
 insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

 E.  Contractor  is  engaged  hereby  as  an  independent  contrac tor,  and  the  services  to  be 
 rendered  are  those  of  an  independent  contractor,  subject  to  ORS  Chapter  656,  and  will 
 be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

 i.  Contractor  will  be  solely  responsible  for  payment  of  any  Federal  or  State  taxes 
 required as a result of this Agreement. 

 ii.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  to  en�tle  Contractor  to  any  benefits  generally 
 granted  to  County  employees.  Without  limita�on,  but  by  way  of  illustra�on,  the 
 benefits  which  are  not  intended  to  be  extended  by  this  Agreement  to  the  Contractor 
 are  vaca�on,  holiday  and  sick  leave,  other  leaves  with  pay,  tenure,  medical  and 
 dental  coverage,  life  and  disability  insurance,  over�me,  Social  Security,  workers' 
 compensa�on, unemployment compensa�on or re�rement benefits . 

 iii.  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  for  purposes  of  the  Oregon  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  Law  (ORS  Chapter  656)  and  is  solely  liable  for  any  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  coverage  under  this  Agreement.  If  the  Contractor  has  the  assistance 

 2 



 of  other  persons  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  qualify 
 and  remain  qualified  for  the  term  of  this  Agreement  as  a  direct  responsibility 
 employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib u�ng employer under ORS 656.411. 

 F.  Exhibit  A  –  Business  Associate  Agreement  a�ached  hereto  is  by  this  reference 
 incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

 SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 A.  Extent  of  Agreement:  This  Agreement  contains  all  the  terms  and  condi�ons  agreed  upon 
 by  the  par�es.  No  other  understandings,  oral  or  otherwise,  regarding  the  subject  ma�er 
 of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the par�es hereto. 

 B.  Cap�ons:  The  cap�ons  or  headings  in  this  Agreement  are  for  convenience  only  and  in  no 
 way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 C.  Payment  as  Sole  Monetary  Obliga�on  of  the  County:  The  Contractor  is  engaged  as  an 
 independent  contractor.  Payment  as  provided  herein  shall  be  the  sole  monetary 
 obliga �on  of  the  County.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  responsi bility  for  payment  of 
 all  opera�ng  costs,  Federal,  State,  County  or  city  taxes/assessments  and  any  other 
 charges  imposed  by  law  upon  employers  shall  be  the  sole  responsibility  of  the 
 Contractor. 

 D.  Licensing  and  Program  Standards:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with  all  applicable 
 State,  County,  and  municipal  standards  for  licensing,  and  any  other  standards  or  criteria 
 described in this Agreement and its a�achments. 

 E.  Contractor-client  Rela�onship:  The  Contractor  will  establish  a  system  through  which  a 
 client  and/or  the  client’s  parents  or  guardian  may  represent  grievances  about  the 
 opera�on  of  the  Contractor’s  service  program.  At  the  �me  arrangements  are  made  for 
 the  Contractor’s  service,  the  Contractor  will  advise  the  child  and  parents  or  guardian  of 
 the provision.  The Contractor shall no�fy the County of all unresolved grievances. 

 F.  Safeguarding of Client Informa�on: 

 i.  The  use  or  disclosure  by  any  party  of  any  informa�on  concern ing  a  recipient  of 
 services  purchased  under  this  Agreement,  for  any  purpose  not  directly  connected 
 with  the  administra �on  of  the  County's  or  the  Contractor's  responsibili�es  with 
 respect  to  such  purchased  services,  is  prohibited,  except  on  wri�en  consent  of  the 
 County,  or  if  the  County  is  not  the  recipient,  on  wri�en  consent  of  the  recipient  or 
 a�orney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 3 



 ii.  For  the  purposes  of  safeguarding  protected  client  informa�on,  Contractor  agrees  to 
 abide  by  all  County  rules  and  regula�ons  regarding  Communica�on  technology  as 
 documented  in  the  County’s  Communica�ons  Technology  Policy.  Contractors 
 providing  services  from  a  County  facility  will  be  provided  appropriate  County 
 equipment  to  perform  its  du�es  under  this  agreement.  To  the  extent  that  Contractor 
 elects  to  use  their  own  technology  (computer,  cellular  phone,  etc…)  Contractor 
 warrants  that  such  equipment  shall  be  compliant  with  County  rules  and  regula�ons, 
 and its obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 G.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  and  Rehabilita�on  Act  of  1973:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply 
 with  the  requirements  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  and  Sec�on  504  of  the 
 Rehabilita �on  Act  of  1973,  and  their  implemen�ng  Federal  regula�ons,  including 
 Execu�ve Order 11246 as amended. 

 H.  Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

 i.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to 
 assure  full  compliance  with  Federal  regula�ons  and  the  County’s  guidelines  on 
 allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

 ii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  maintain  fiscal  records  consistent  with  generally  accepted 
 accoun�ng  prac�ces  and  controls,  which  will  properly  reflect  all  direct  and  indirect 
 costs  and  funds  expended  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor 
 shall  make  these  records  available  at  reasonable  �mes  upon  request  to  State  and 
 Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

 iii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  collect  financial  sta�s�cs  on  a  regular  basis  and  to  make 
 financial reports at �mes in the form prescribed by the County. 

 I.  Program  Records,  Controls,  Reports,  and  Monitoring  Procedures:  The  Contractor  agrees 
 to  maintain  program  records  including  sta�s�cal  records,  and  to  provide  program 
 records  to  the  County  at  �mes  and  in  the  form  prescribed  by  the  County.  The  Contractor 
 agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to  assure  full  compliance 
 with  the  program  and  facili�es  review  (including  mee�ngs  with  consumers,  reviews  of 
 service  records,  review  of  policy  and  procedures,  review  of  staffing  ra�os  and  job 
 descrip�ons,  and  mee�ngs  with  any  staff  directly  of  indirectly  involved  in  the  provision 
 of  services)  may  be  conducted  at  any  reasonable  �me  by  State  and  Federal  personnel 
 and other persons authorized by the County. 

 J.  Reten�on  of  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  retain  all  books,  records,  and  other 
 documents  relevant  to  this  Agreement  for  three  (3)  years  a�er  final  payment  is  made 

 4 



 under  the  Agreement  or  all  pending  ma�ers  are  closed,  whichever  is  later.  If  li�ga�on  or 
 other  ac�on  involving  the  Agreement  is  started  before  the  end  of  the  three  (3)  year 
 period,  the  records  shall  be  retained  un�l  all  issues  arising  out  of  the  ac�on  are  resolved 
 or un�l the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

 K.  Insurance: 

 i.  Contractor  agrees  that  it  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  agent  of  the 
 County.  The  Contractor  and  the  County  shall  not  be  responsible  for  any  legal  liability, 
 loss,  malprac�ce,  damages,  costs  and  expenses  arising  in  favor  of  any  person  on 
 account  of  personal  injuries,  death  or  property  loss  or  damage  occurring,  growing 
 out  of,  incident  to  or  resul�ng  directly  or  indirectly  from  the  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 other party under this Agreement. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  obtain,  and  at  all  �mes  keep  in  effect,  comprehensive  liability 
 insurance  and  property  damage  insurance  covering  ac�vi�es,  opera�ons,  and 
 omissions  of  the  Contractor,  all  subcontractors,  and  all  named  addi�onal  insureds. 
 Contractor  may  sa�sfy  this  requirement  for  general  liability  insurance  in  any  manner 
 allowed  by  ORS  30.282.  Such  liability  insurance,  whatever  the  form,  shall  be  in  an 
 amount  not  less  than  one  million  dollars  ($1,000,000)  with  provision  for  increased 
 coverage  as  such  limits  are  increased  by  legisla�ve  ac�on.  In  the  event  of  unilateral 
 cancella�on  or  restric�on  by  the  insurance  company  of  the  Contractor's  insurance 
 policy  referred  to  in  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor  shall  immediately  no�fy  the 
 County verbally and in wri�ng. 

 iii.  As  evidence  of  the  insurance  coverage  required  by  this  Agreement,  and  prior  to  the 
 execu�on  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  a  Cer�ficate  of  Insurance  to 
 Polk  County,  to  Polk  County  Health  Services,  182  SW  Academy  Street,  Suite  204, 
 Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  Cer�ficate  form,  to  be  completed  by  the  Contractor's 
 insurer,  naming  Polk  County  as  addi�onal  insured,  will  be  maintained  in  the  County's 
 file of this Agreement. 

 iv.  There  shall  not  be  any  cancella�on,  material  changes  or  failure  to  renew  such 
 insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior no�ce to the County. 

 L.  Subcontrac�ng:  Unless  subcontrac�ng  is  authorized  elsewhere  in  the  Agree ment,  the 
 Contractor  shall  not  enter  into  any  subcontracts  for  any  of  the  work  contemplated  under 
 this  Agreement  without  obtaining  prior  wri�en  approval  from  the  County,  which 
 approval  shall  be  a�ached  to  the  original  Agreement.  Approval  by  the  County  of  a 
 subcontract  shall  not  result  in  any  obliga�ons  of  the  County  in  addi�on  to  the  agreed 
 rates  of  payment  and  total  considera�on.  Any  subcontracts  which  the  County  may 

 5 



 authorize  shall  contain  all  requirements  of  this  Agreement,  and  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 responsible  for  the  performance  of  the  subcontractor.  Contractor  may  subcon tract 
 medical  inves�gator's  du�es  so  long  as  the  sub contractor  possesses  medical 
 qualifica�ons equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

 M.  Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on:  Any  altera�ons,  varia�ons,  modifica�ons  to  or  waivers 
 of  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  valid  only  when  they  have  been  reduced  to 
 wri�ng,  duly  signed,  and  approved  by  the  Contractor  and  the  County  and  a�ached  to 
 the original of this Agreement. 

 N.  Excuses  for  Nonperformance:  Neither  party  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  held  responsible 
 for  delay  or  failure  in  performance  of  the  ac�vi�es  required  herein  when  such  delay  or 
 failure  is  due  to  causes  beyond  the  control  and  without  the  fault  or  negligence  of  the 
 party.  Such  causes  may  include,  but  are  not  restricted  to,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  strikes, 
 acts  of  God  or  the  public  enemy,  unusually  severe  weather,  legal  acts  of  public 
 authori�es,  or  delays  or  defaults  caused  by  public  carriers,  which  cannot  reasonably  be 
 forecast  or  provided  against.  Either  party  may  terminate  the  Agreement  a�er 
 reasonably  determining  that  such  delay  or  failure  will  prevent  con�nued  performance  of 
 the  Agreement,  and  a�er  giving  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  other  party  of  the  cause,  its  effect 
 on  Agreement  performance  and  effec �ve  date  of  termina�on.  If  the  Agreement  is  so 
 terminated,  the  obliga�on  of  the  County  shall  be  limited  to  payment  for  services 
 provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of termina�on. 

 O.  Remedies:  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  or  perform  any  of  the  other 
 requirements  under  the  Contract,  and  such  failure  is  not  excused  under  the  paragraph 
 �tled  "Excuses  for  Nonperformance",  the  County,  a�er  giving  the  Contractor  wri�en 
 no�ce  of  such  failure,  may  withhold  part  or  all  of  the  Contractor's  payment  for  the 
 services  un�l  such  failure  is  corrected.  If  the  Contractor  does  not  correct  such  failure 
 within  a  reasonable  �me  allowed  by  the  County,  the  County  may  terminate  the 
 Agreement  in  accordance  with  the  clause  �tled  "Termina�on."  However,  this  paragraph, 
 and  any  ac�ons  taken  or  not  taken  under  it,  shall  not  affect  the  County's  rights  under  the 
 "Termina�on" clause. 

 P.  Termina�on:  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  par�es  or 
 unilaterally  by  both  par�es  at  any  �me  upon  thirty  (30)  days’  no�ce  to  the  other  party 
 in  wri�ng  and  delivered  personally  or  by  Cer�fied  Mail.  The  County  may  also  unilaterally 
 terminate  this  Agreement  effec�ve  upon  delivery  of  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  Contrac tor,  or 
 at  such  later  date  as  may  be  established  by  the  County,  under  any  of  the  following 
 condi�ons: 

 6 



 i.  If  funds,  specifically  authorized  by  Legisla�ve  acts,  do  not  become  available  in 
 amounts  sufficient  to  allow  for  purchase  of  the  stated  quan�ty  of  services.  When 
 possible  and  when  agreed  upon  by  the  par�es,  the  Agreement  may  be  modified  in 
 accordance  with  the  paragraph  en�tled  “Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on”  to 
 accommodate a reduc�on in funds. 

 ii.  If  Federal  or  State  laws,  regula�ons  or  guidelines  are  modified  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 Agreement  or  no  longer  qualify  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments  authorized  by 
 this Agreement. 

 iii.  If  any  license  or  cer�ficate  required  by  law  or  regula�on  to  be  held  by  the  Contractor 
 to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  Agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied,  revoked, 
 not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Contractor  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cer�ficate. 

 iv.  Termina�on  under  this  clause  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obliga�ons  or 
 liabili�es  of  either  party  already  reasonably  incurred  prior  to  such  termina�on, 
 except  that  the  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  its  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es 
 a�er  the  termina�on  date,  which  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es  result  from  the 
 Contractor's  failure  to  provide  for  termina�on  of,  or  exercises  the  right  to  terminate, 
 its  commitments.  No  right  of  ac�on  or  damages  shall  accrue  to  the  benefit  of  the 
 Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

 v.  The  County,  by  wri�en  no�ce  of  default  (including  breach  of  contract)  to  the 
 Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

 a.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  Agreement  within 
 the �me speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

 b.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  perform  any  of  the  other  requirements  of  this 
 Agreement; or 

 c.  If  the  Contractor  so  fails  to  perform  the  work  required  in  the  Agreement  that 
 performance  of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and 
 a�er  receipt  of  wri�en  no�ce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  correct  such  failure  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period 
 as the County may authorize. 

 vi.  If  the  Agreement  is  terminated  under  this  clause,  the  County's  obliga�ons  shall  be 
 limited  to  payment  for  services  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Agreement  prior  to 

 7 



 the  date  of  termina�on,  less  any  damages  suffered  by  the  County.  The  rights  and 
 remedies  of  the  County  in  this  clause  related  to  defaults  (including  breach  of 
 contract)  by  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  exclusive  and  are  in  addi�on  to  any  other 
 rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

 Q.  Hold  Harmless:  Except  for  claims  arising  in  whole  from  the  negligence  of  County,  its 
 employees  or  its  agents,  Contractor  agrees  to  indemnify  and  hold  County  harmless  from 
 and  against  all  ac�ons,  suits,  claims  and  demands  arising  out  of  Contractor’s 
 performance  under  this  Contract  and  agrees  to  defend  County  in  such  ac�ons,  suits, 
 claims and demands. 

 R.  Waiver  of  Default:  Waiver  of  any  default  shall  not  be  deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any 
 subsequent  default.  Waiver  of  breach  of  any  provision  of  the  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any  other  or  subsequent  breach  and  shall  not  be  construed  to 
 be  a  modifica�on  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement  unless  stated  to  be  such  in  wri�ng, 
 signed  by  an  authorized  representa�ve  of  the  County,  and  a�ached  to  the  original 
 Agreement in accordance with the paragraph en�tled "Re-nego�a�on or Modifica�on". 

 S.  Severability:  The  par�es  agree  that  if  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  declared 
 by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdic�on  to  be  illegal  or  in  conflict  with  any  law,  the  validity  of 
 the  remaining  terms  and  provisions  shall  not  be  affected,  and  the  rights  and  obliga�ons 
 of  the  par�es  shall  be  construed  and  enforced  as  if  the  Agreement  did  not  contain  the 
 par�cular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 T.  Fees  Prohibited:  The  Contractor  will  not  impose  or  demand  any  fees  from  any  person  or 
 agency  for  services  provided  and  paid  for  under  this  Agreement,  unless  the  fees  have 
 been approved in advance by the County in wri�ng. 

 U.  Non-Discrimina�on:  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  they  are  an  equal  opportunity 
 employer  and  no  person  shall  be  denied  services  or  discrimi nated  against  on  the  basis  of 
 race,  color,  religion,  sex,  sexual  orienta�on,  na�onal  origin,  marital  status  or  age,  and 
 there  shall  be  no  discrimina�on  in  the  selec�on,  compensa�on  or  the  employ ment 
 prac�ces with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

 V.  Assignment  of  Agreement:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  or  transfer  its  interest  in  this 
 Agreement  without  prior  wri�en  approval  of  the  County,  which  shall  be  a�ached  to  the 
 original  Agreement.  Any  such  assignment,  if  approved,  is  subject  to  such  condi�ons  and 
 provisions,  as  the  County  may  deem  necessary.  No  approval  by  the  County  of  any 
 assignment  or  transfer  of  interest  shall  be  deemed  to  create  any  obliga�on  of  the  county 
 in addi�on to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement considera�on. 

 8 



 W.  Funds  Authorized  and  Available:  The  County  cer�fies  that  at  the  �me  of  signing  this 
 Agree ment,  sufficient  funds  are  authorized  and  available,  or  are  an�cipated  to  be 
 available,  for  expenditure  to  finance  costs  of  this  Agreement  within  the  County's  current 
 appropri a�on or limita�on. 

 X.  Recovery  of  Overpayments:  If  billings  under  this  Agreement,  or  under  any  Agreement 
 between  the  Contractor  and  the  County,  result  in  payments  to  the  Contractor  for  which 
 the  Contractor  is  not  en�tled  under  the  terms  of  such  Agreement,  the  County,  a�er 
 giving  wri�en  no�fica�on  to  the  Contractor,  may  withhold  from  payments  due  to  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  such  amounts,  over  such  periods  of  �me,  as  are 
 necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

 Y.  Criminal  History  Records  Checks:  Contractor  agrees  to  authorize  a  review  of  state  and 
 federal  records  by  Polk  County  as  a  qualified  en�ty,  to  determine  the  nature  of  any 
 criminal  ac�vity  the  Contractor  may  have  been  involved  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 943-007-001  for  purposes  described  in  OAR  407-007-0400.  No  work  will  be  assigned  to 
 Contractor  un�l  a  Criminal  History  Check  is  completed  and  verified  by  the  qualified 
 en�ty.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  Polk  County  within  five  days  of  being  arrested,  charged,  or 
 convicted of any crime. 

 SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

 A.  Payment  of  Subcontractors,  Industrial  Accident  Fund  Contribu�ons,  Liens  and 
 Withholding Taxes: 

 1.  Contractor  shall  make  payment  promptly,  as  due,  to  all  persons  supplying  to  such 
 contractor  labor  or  material  for  the  prosecu�on  of  the  work  provided  for  in  this 
 contract. 

 2.  Contractor  shall  pay  all  contribu�ons  or  amounts  due  the  Industrial  Accident  Fund 
 from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 3.  Contractor  shall  not  permit  any  lien  or  claim  to  be  filed  or  prosecuted  against  the 
 state,  county,  school  district,  municipality,  Municipal  Corpora�on  or  subdivisions 
 thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

 4.  Contractor  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
 employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 B.  Payment  of  Claims  by  County  :  If  Contractor  fails,  neglects  or  refuses  to  make  prompt 
 payment  of  any  claim  for  labor  or  services  furnished  to  the  contractor  or  a  subcontractor 
 by  any  person  in  connec�on  with  the  public  contract  as  such  claim  becomes  due,  the 

 9 



 proper  officer  or  officers  represen�ng  Polk  County  may  pay  such  claim  to  the  person 
 furnishing  the  labor  or  services  and  charge  the  amount  of  payment  against  funds  due  or 
 to  become  due  the  Contractor  by  reason  of  this  contract.  Payment  of  a  claim  in  this 
 manner  shall  not  relieve  the  contractor  or  contractor’s  surety  from  obliga�on  with 
 respect to any unpaid claims. 

 C.  Hours  of  Labor:  All  laborers  providing  contract  services  shall  be  paid  at  least  �me  and  a 
 half  for  all  over�me  worked  in  excess  of  40  hours  in  any  one  week,  except  for  individuals 
 under  these  contracts  who  are  excluded  under  ORS  653.010  to  653.261  or  under  29  USC 
 sec�on 201 to 209 from receiving over�me. 

 D.  Payment  for  Medical  Care:  Contractor  shall  promptly,  as  due,  make  payment  to  any 
 person,  co-partnership,  associa�on  or  corpora�on,  furnishing  medical,  surgical  and 
 hospital  care  or  other  needed  care  and  a�en�on,  incident  to  sickness  or  injury,  to  the 
 employees  for  such  Contractor,  of  all  sums  which  the  Contractor  agrees  to  pay  for  such 
 services  and  all  moneys  and  sums  which  the  contractor  collected  or  deducted  from  the 
 wages  of  employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
 providing or paying such service. 

 E.  Providing  Workers’  Compensa�on  Insurance:  All  employers  working  under  this  contract 
 are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 F.  Health  Care  Benefits  for  Employees:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  health  care  benefits  to 
 all  employees  who  are  performing  services  previously  performed  by  public  employees  if 
 the  condi�ons  specified  in  ORS  653.767  require  such  payment.  Benefits  must  equal  or 
 exceed  those  benefits  specified  in  ORS  279.315(3).  This  clause  does  not  apply  to 
 contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

 G.  Americans  with  Disabili�es  Act  Compliance:  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor  will 
 comply  and  does  comply  with  all  relevant  provisions  of  the  Americans  with  Disabili�es 
 Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 10 



 SIGNATURE PAGE 

 BY SIGNATURE BELOW, both par�es agree to and accept all terms and condi�ons of this 
 Agreement between County and Contractor along with the following: 

 ●  Exhibit A: Business Associate Agreement 
 ●  Exhibit B: Statement of Work 

 CONTRACTOR 

 Signature  Date 
 Title: 

 COUNTY 

 Chair  Date 
 Board of Commissioners 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 Morgan Smith  Date 
 County Counsel 

 11 

07/03/23



 EXHIBIT A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 Between 
 POLK COUNTY  and  LIBERTY ESTATES, LLC dba ASSURANCE LACTATION CONSULTING 

 1.  DEFINITIONS: 

 Except  as  otherwise  defined  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA  Agreement),  any 
 and  all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  defini�on  as  those  in  the  HIPAA 
 Privacy  Rule.  1  Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon, 
 shall  be  referred  as  “COUNTY”  and  LIBERTY  ESTATES,  LLC  dba  ASSURANCE  LACTATION 
 CONSULTING, shall be referred to as “CONTRACTOR”. 

 2.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

 A.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on  other  than 
 as permi�ed or required by this BA Agreement or as permi�ed or required by law. 

 B.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health Informa�on other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 C.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  mi�gate,  to  the  extent  prac�cable,  any  harmful  effect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  by 
 CONTRACTOR in viola�on of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  not  provided  for  by  this  BA  Agreement  of  which  it  becomes 
 aware. 

 E.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restric�ons  and 
 condi�ons  that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to 
 such informa�on. 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa�on in performance of Business Associate func�ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden�fiable Health Informa�on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa�on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 12 



 F.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access, 
 at  the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the 
 COUNTY  or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the 
 requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 G.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for 
 reasonable compliance. 

 H.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  prac�ces,  books,  and  records,  including 
 policies  and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  rela�ng  to  the  use  and 
 disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary 
 of  the  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  �me  and  manner  agreed 
 between  the  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for 
 purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining  the  COUNTY’S  compliance  with  the  Privacy 
 Rule. 

 I.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on 
 and  informa�on  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to 
 respond  to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected 
 Health Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 J.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  �me  and 
 manner  necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informa�on  collected  in  accordance 
 with  sec�on  2.A  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a 
 request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 3.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in 
 this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on to 
 perform certain health plan func�ons for or on behalf of the COUNTY as specified in the 
 Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure 
 would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary 
 policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 13 



 4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

 A.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any limita�on(s) in the  No�ce of Privacy 
 Prac�ces  of the COUNTY in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.520, to the extent that 
 such limita�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 B.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any changes in, or revoca�on of, 
 permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on, to the 
 extent that such changes may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected 
 Health Informa�on. 

 C.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any restric�on to the use or disclosure of 
 Protected Health Informa�on that the COUNTY has agreed to in accordance with 45 
 CFR § 164.522, to the extent that such restric�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or 
 disclosure of Protected Health Informa�on. 

 5.  PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: The COUNTY shall not request CONTRACTOR to 
 use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on in any manner that would not be 
 permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY except if such use or 
 disclosure is permi�ed under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION: 

 A.  Term  . This BA Agreement shall be effec�ve as of July  1, 2023, and shall terminate 
 when all of the Protected Health Informa�on provided by the COUNTY to 
 CONTRACTOR, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY, is 
 destroyed or returned to the COUNTY, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy 
 Protected Health Informa�on, protec�ons are extended to such informa�on, in 
 accordance with the termina�on provisions in this Sec�on. 

 B.  Termina�on for Cause  . Upon the COUNTY’S knowledge  of a material breach by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 i.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to cure the breach without the 
 interven�on of the COUNTY within the �meline specified in Sec�on III (P) of the 
 Polk County Agreement; or 

 ii.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to terminate this BA Agreement and 
 the Polk County Agreement within the �meline specified in Sec�on III of the Polk 
 County Agreement. At the direc�on of its Board of Directors, the COUNTY may 

 14 



 terminate this BA Agreement and the Polk County Agreement as permi�ed in 
 Sec�on III of the Polk County Agreement if CONTRACTOR has not cured the 
 breach upon conclusion of the technical assistance and correc�ve ac�on 
 described in paragraph (i.) of this sec�on; or 

 iii.  If neither termina�on nor cure is feasible, the COUNTY shall report the viola�on 
 to the Secretary. 

 C.  Effect of Termina�on  . 

 i.  Except as provided in paragraph (ii.) of this sec�on, upon termina�on of this BA 
 Agreement, for any reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all Protected 
 Health Informa�on received from the COUNTY, or created or received by 
 CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY. This provision shall apply to Protected 
 Health Informa�on that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 
 CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall retain no copies of the Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 ii.  In the event that CONTRACTOR determines that returning or destroying the 
 Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the 
 COUNTY wri�en no�fica�on of the condi�ons that make return or destruc�on 
 infeasible. Upon wri�en acknowledgement by the COUNTY that the return or 
 destruc�on of Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall 
 extend the protec�ons of this BA Agreement to such Protected Health 
 Informa�on and limit further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health 
 Informa�on to those purposed that make the return or destruc�on infeasible, for 
 so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health Informa�on. 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS: 

 A.  Regulatory References  . References in this BA Agreement  to the Privacy Rule or any 
 sec�on of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or sec�on as in effect or as 
 amended. 

 B.  Amendment  . The COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree to take  such ac�on as is 
 necessary to amend this BA Agreement from �me to �me as is necessary for the 
 COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 C.  Survival  . The respec�ve rights and obliga�ons of  CONTRACTOR under Sec�on 6.C of 
 this BA Agreement shall survive the termina�on of this BA Agreement. 

 15 



 D.  Interpreta�on  . Any ambiguity in this BA Agreement shall be resolved to permit the 
 COUNTY to comply with the Privacy Rule. In the event of any inconsistency between 
 the provisions of this BA Agreement and the mandatory provisions of the Privacy 
 Rule, the Privacy Rule shall control. Where laws in the State of Oregon or other 
 federal law is more stringent than the Privacy Rule, the more stringent Oregon or 
 federal law shall control. 

 8.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

 A.  Background Requirement  : The COUNTY, in accordance  with § 164.306 and § 164.308 
 (b), may permit the CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic 
 Protected Health Informa�on on the COUNTY’S behalf only if the COUNTY obtains 
 sa�sfactory assurances, in accordance with § 164.314(a) that the CONTRACTOR will 
 appropriately safeguard the informa�on. The COUNTY must document the 
 sa�sfactory assurances through a wri�en contract or other arrangement with the 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 B.  Part I. Security Assurances  : The CONTRACTOR will Implement  administra�ve, 
 physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
 confiden�ality, integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health 
 informa�on that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the 
 COUNTY as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
 1996 and the requirements of Health Insurance Reform, the Security Standards 
 (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 i.  Ensure that any agent, including a SUBCONTRACTOR, to whom it provides such 
 informa�on, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to 
 protect it. 

 ii.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 iii.  Authorize termina�on of the contract by the COUNTY, if the COUNTY determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 C.  Part II.  Other arrangements:  When the COUNTY and the  CONTRACTOR are both 
 governmental en��es, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 i.  It enters into a memorandum of understanding with the CONTRACTOR that 
 contains terms that accomplish the objec�ves of Part I.; or 

 16 



 ii.  Other  law  (including  regula�ons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objec�ves of Part I. 

 D.  If the CONTRACTOR is required by law to perform a func�on or ac�vity on behalf of 
 the COUNTY or to provide a service described in the defini�on of CONTRACTOR as 
 specified in § 160.103 of the regula�on to the COUNTY, the COUNTY may permit the 
 CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic Protected Health 
 Informa�on on its behalf to the extent necessary to comply with the legal mandate 
 without mee�ng the requirements of Part I., although the COUNTY will a�empt in 
 good faith to obtain sa�sfactory assurances as required by Part I. (A), and will 
 document the a�empt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if 
 not obtained. 

 17 



 EXHIBIT B: 
 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 POLK  COUNTY,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon  and,  LIBERTY  ESTATES,  LLC  dba 
 ASSURANCE  LACTATION  CONSULTING,  hereina�er  called  “Contractor,”  hereby  agree  to  the 
 following: 

 1.  STATEMENT OF SERVICES 

 A.  Contractor  agrees  to  work  within  scope,  training  and  experience  as  a  Registered  Nurse,  to 
 provide  services,  support  and  training  that  meets  the  needs  of  both  Contractor  and 
 County as evidenced by the Service Authoriza�on and Ac�vity form. 

 B.  Contractor  shall  perform  all  services  deemed  necessary  in  their  professional  opinion  based 
 upon  their  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se  as  evidenced  in  the  applica�on  materials  and 
 other  professional  endorsements,  notwithstanding  any  limita�ons  set  forth  in  this 
 agreement. 

 C.  Contractor  shall  only  use  methods  or  techniques  in  which  the  Contractor  has  documented 
 training,  educa�on  and  exper�se.  Contractor  will  ensure  services  provided  are  within 
 rules and guidelines of Oregon Health Authority, Public Health Division, Chapter 333. 

 2.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 A.  Contractors  must  provide  primary  source  verifica�on  of  creden�als.  No  work  will  be 
 assigned  to  Contractors  who  render  direct  service  to  clients  or  pa�ents  un�l  creden�als 
 have been validated for Medicaid claims. 

 B.  Annual  requirements  mandate  that  the  Contractor  will  submit  a  conflict  of  Interest 
 Statement.  Contractor  queries  of  the  OIG  and  EPLS  List  of  Excluded  Individuals/En��es 
 database  will  also  be  performed  annually.  Bases  for  exclusion  include  convic�ons  for 
 program-related  fraud  and  pa�ent  abuse,  licensing  board  ac�ons  and  default  on  Health 
 Educa�on  Assistance  Loans.  It  is  the  expecta�on  that  the  Contractor  will  maintain 
 creden�aling  required  to  perform  job  du�es  in  good  standing.  It  is  the  responsibility  of 
 the  Contractor  to  report  any  circumstances  that  would  jeopardize  this  standing  or  lead  to 
 exclusionary status. Failure to do so may lead to contract termina�on  . 

 C.  Contractor  agrees  to  report  cases  of  suspected  Medicaid,  Medicare  fraud,  waste,  or  abuse 
 to  the  PCBH  Compliance  Officer  at  503-623-9289.  If  there  is  reason  to  believe  that  PCBH 
 cannot  respond  appropriately  to  a  suspected  case  of  fraud,  waste,  or  abuse,  or  if  the  case 
 involves PCBH, then Contractor agrees to make a report to Ethicspoint at 888-265-4068. 

 18 



 D.  County  may  conduct  performance  reviews  annually  to  assess  Contractor’s  performance  as 
 it relates to the services required under this contract. 

 B.  Absences: 

 i.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  at  least  five  (5)  business  days  in  advance  for  all 
 an�cipated extended absences (i.e. vaca�ons, professional mee�ngs, etc.). 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  of  unplanned  absences  (ie:  illness  or  other 
 unforeseen events) at least one hour prior to expected work �me. 

 C.  Contractor  agrees  to  provide  10  business  day  no�ce  of  changes  to  their  clinic  schedule 
 availability. 

 D.  All  client  records  are  considered  the  property  of  the  County  and  shall  not  be  retained  by 
 the  Contractor.  Contractor  shall  have  all  service  notes  and  documenta�on  completed 
 within  three  business  days  of  service  encounter.  Contractor  shall  maintain  client/pa�ent 
 records and documenta�on within CMS guidelines. 

 E.  Contractor  may  elect  to  use  the  electronic  health  record  system  supported  by  the  County. 
 Contractor  shall  provide  County  with  a  Cer�ficate  of  Electronic  Health  Record  Technology 
 (CEHRT)  when  Contractor  elects  to  use  a  system  that  is  not  supported  by  the  County  or 
 Oregon Health Authority. 

 F.  Documents  that  are  required  for  billing  shall  be  submi�ed  three  days  a�er  the  close  of 
 business  on  the  last  weekday  of  each  month.  Documenta�on  found  to  be  out  of 
 compliance  with  County  and/or  State  guidelines  shall  be  corrected  within  ten  (10) 
 business days. 

 3.  AUTHORIZED SERVICES 

 A.  County  will  only  pay  for  service  and  ac�vi�es  that  have  been  pre  authorized  and  agreed 
 upon in wri�ng by both par�es on a Service Ac�vity Authoriza�on Form. 

 4.  RATES AND METHOD OF PAY 

 A.  County  shall  reimburse  the  Contractor  at  the  rate  of  $60.00  per  hour  for  services  as 
 outlined  in  the  Service  Ac�vity  Authoriza�on  form  with  services  paid  on  a  per  occurrence 
 basis to the nearest quarter hour upon receipt of an invoice. 

 B.  County  will  have  no  legal  obliga�on  to  pay  for  any  unauthorized  services,  including 
 unauthorized expenditures. 

 19 


	Date: 6-
	Text1: Psych. Nurse Practitioner     6-29-23     


